
Online Board Packet 

 
 

Board of Trustees 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
 
 

Tuesday, January 29, 2019 
5:30 p.m. 

 

Pecan Campus 
Ann Richards Administration Building 

Board Room 
McAllen, Texas

 



SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 

Tuesday, January 29, 2019 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 

AGENDA 
“At anytime during the course of this meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive Session under Texas 
Government Code 551.071(2) to confer with its legal counsel on any subject matter on this agenda in which the duty 
of the attorney to the Board of Trustees under the Texas Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of 
Texas clearly conflicts with Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code.  Further, at anytime during the course of this 
meeting, the Board of Trustees may retire to Executive Session to deliberate on any subject slated for discussion at 
this meeting, as may be permitted under one or more of the exceptions to the Open Meetings Act set forth in Title 5, 
Subtitle A, Chapter 551, Subchapter D of the Texas Government Code.  At this meeting, the Board of Trustees may 
deliberate on and take any action deemed appropriate by the Board of Trustees on the following subjects:” 

I. Call Meeting to Order
II. Determination of Quorum

III. Invocation
IV. Public Comments
V. Presentation ................................................................................................... 6 - 7

A. Expression of Appreciation to Trustees for Their Service and Contributions to
South Texas College

B. Presentation on South Texas College Public Relations and Marketing
Strategies with Interact Communications

C. Presentation of Artwork for Student Union by Laura Warren and The Warren
Group Architects, Inc.

D. Presentation on Recognition of South Texas College Department of Public
Safety by the City of McAllen

E. Introduction of South Texas College Faculty Senate Executive Officers

VI. Consideration and Action on Consent Agenda
A. Approval of Board Meeting Minutes ......................................................... 8 - 45 

1. December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting
2. January 15, 2018 Special Board Meeting

B. Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Awards and Agreements .. 46 - 50
1) Texas Workforce Commission, Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) in the

amount of $249,096

2) Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), Carl D. Perkins
Basic Grant, Additional Funds (Reallocation), in the amount of $259,286



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m. 

3) Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), 2018 College
Readiness and Success Models for 60x30TX, Additional funds, in the
amount of $175,088

4) Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce
Solutions, Child Development Associates Credential Program (CDA) in the
amount of $40,575

5) Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce
Solutions, Childhood Conferences, participant scholarship funds in the
amount of $10,000

6) The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate
Grant (TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in
the Amount of $67,733

7) The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate
Grant (TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in
the Amount of $14,906

8) The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate
Grant (TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation,
University of Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV) Subaward in the Amount
of $40,065

9) Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award

VII. Consideration and Action on Committee Items

A. Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee
1. Review and Discussion on Quarterly Investment Report .................. 51 - 62 
2. Presentation of the Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the Period Ending

November 30, 2018 .......................................................................... 63 - 69 

3. Review and Action as Necessary on Renewal of Delinquent Tax Collection
Services for Hidalgo County and Starr County ................................. 70 - 74 

4. Review and Action as Necessary on Resolution to Impose a 15% Penalty
for Collection of Delinquent Taxes as Authorized Under Section 33.07 of the
Texas Property Tax Code for Delinquent Tax Attorney Fees and
Expenses .......................................................................................... 75 - 78 

5. Review and Action as Necessary on Renewal Agreement with Access
Esperanza Clinic on Outpatient Clinic at the Mid Valley Campus ... 79 - 104

6. Review and Action as Necessary on Contract for Electric Power
Services ........................................................................................ 105 - 106 



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m. 

7. Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Purchases,
Renewal, and Interlocal Agreements ............................................ 107 - 112 
A. Awards

1) Purchase of Motor Vehicles (Award)
2) Food Services – Starr County Campus (Award)

B. Instructional Item
3) Science Models, Equipment, and Supplies (Purchase)

C. Non – Instructional Item
4) LED Lamps (Purchase)

D. Technology Items
5) Servers (Purchase)
6) Software Licenses and Maintenance Agreement (Renewal)

E. Interlocal Agreement
7) Facility Usage Interlocal Agreement (Lease/Rental)

8. Discussion and Action as Necessary on External Auditor Services
 ...................................................................................................... 113 - 114 

B. Facilities Committee
1. Review and Action as Necessary on Solicitation of Architectural Services

for Deferred Maintenance for District Wide Roofs ......................... 115 - 116 
2. Update on Status of Non-Bond Construction Projects .................. 117 - 125 

VIII. Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports ........ 126 - 128 
The Checks and the Financial Reports presented for approval are included in 
the Board Packet under SEPARATE COVER 

IX. Informational Items

• President’s Report  ....................................................................... 129 - 135 

X. Announcements ............................................................................................. 136 
A. Next Meetings:

• Tuesday, February 12, 2019
 3:30 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee Meeting
 4:30 p.m. – Facilities Committee Meeting
 5:30 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee Meeting



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting @ 5:30 p.m. 

• Saturday, February 16, 2019

 8:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. – Work Session at the Pecan Campus Student
Union

• Tuesday, February 26, 2019
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting

B. Other Announcements:

• Spring 2019 Census Day is Wednesday, February 6

• South Texas College will be closed Friday, February 15, 2019 for College
Wide Professional Development Day



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 1, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Presentations 

A. Expression of Appreciation to Trustees for Their Service and Contributions
to South Texas College
Dr. Shirley Reed, College President, will present an expression of appreciation to
the Board of Trustees on the behalf of faculty, staff, students, and constituents for
their continued contributions to making South Texas College a world-class,
innovative, and responsive community college.

B. Presentation on South Texas College Public Relations and Marketing
Strategies with Interact Communications
Mr. Ray Pedraza, Assistant Director of Public Relations and Marketing, will
introduce the leadership team from Interact Communications, who are working with
the South Texas College Public Relations and Marketing on the new institutional
marketing strategies:

• Dr. Pam Cox Otto, CEO
• Mr. Mark Mastej, Head of Research, and
• Alehandra Navarro, Director of Communications

South Texas College has partnered with Interact Communication to undertake 
research and develop a branding and marketing campaign geared toward 
increased student enrollment, improved regional perceptions, and reinforcement 
of community pride in South Texas College. 

Dr. Cox Otto and her colleagues will discuss the research, media purchasing 
strategies, and technology used in the ongoing campaign, and will review the 
metrics used to track effectiveness and value of that various strategies. 

C. Presentation of Artwork for Student Union by Laura Warren and The Warren
Group Architects, Inc.
Mrs. Laura Warren, principal and architect with The Warren Group Architects, Inc.,
has donated the beautiful painting “Perception 5” by artist Fernando Giron to South
Texas College, for display in the Student Union Building.

Mrs. Warren and her team designed this building as part of the 2013 Bond
Construction Program, and she purchased this painting because, in her words, it
reminds her “of STC students breaking barriers and making a difference, in spite
of perceptions.  The colors are vibrant and strong, very much like our students’
dreams and character.”

6



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 2, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Administration has asked Mrs. Warren to first present this lovely painting to the 
Board of Trustees, and then it will be proudly and prominently displayed in the 
Student Union Building, for enjoyment by the students, faculty, and staff. 

D. Presentation on Recognition of South Texas College Department of Public
Safety by the City of McAllen
Mr. Paul Varville, Chief Administrator for the Department of Public Safety and the
Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence, will present a recognition by the City
of McAllen.

On January 14, 2019, the City of McAllen formally recognized the South Texas
College Department of Public Safety, along with other participating law
enforcement agencies, for their support and contributions to the 2018 McAllen
Holiday Parade.  Other agencies recognized included the Federal Bureau of
Investigation, US Customs and Border Protection, Federal Air Marshal Service,
Texas Department of Public Safety, and the Hidalgo County Sheriff’s Department.

2018 was the fourth year that South Texas College has assisted the City of McAllen
with their annual parade.  This year, 23 police officers and 36 security guards from
South Texas College provided support staffing to the city, helping ensure the safety
of approximately 250,000 visitors, including traffic control and additional parking at
the Pecan Campus.

E. Introduction of South Texas College Faculty Senate Executive Officers
Mrs. Diane Teter, President of the South Texas College Faculty Senate, has
requested the opportunity to introduce each of the current Faculty Senate
Executive Officers to the Board of Trustees.

South Texas College Faculty Senators and the Executive Committee are elected
each Spring Semester, for the following academic year.  The current executive
officers are as follows:

• Diane Teter, President (Associate Professor of Biology)
• Bruce Griffiths, Vice President (Computer and Advanced Technology

Instructor)
• Dr. Sandra Ledesma, Secretary (Associate Professor of Education)
• Dr. William Carter, Past President (Professor of History)
• Nathan England, President-Elect (Art Instructor)

These presentations are for the Board’s information and feedback to staff, and no action 
is requested. 

7



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 3, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 
The following Board Meeting Minutes are submitted for approval: 
 

1) December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
2) January 15, 2019 Special Board Meeting 

 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and adopt 
the December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes and the January 15, 2019 
Special Board Meeting Minutes as presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:  
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and adopts the December 13, 
2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes and the January 15, 2019 Special Board Meeting 
Minutes as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
 
  

8



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 1, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MEETING 
Thursday, December 13, 2018 @ 5:30 p.m. 

Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 
Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 

Minutes 

Call Meeting to Order: 
The Special Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees was held on 
Thursday, December 13, 2018 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 
at the Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 5:31 p.m. with Mr. 
Paul R. Rodriguez presiding. 
  
Members present: Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, Ms. Rose Benavidez, Mr. Roy de León, Mrs. 
Victoria Cantú, Mr. Gary Gurwitz, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., and Mr. Rene Guajardo 
 
Members absent: None 
 
Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Mr. Jesus Ramirez, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Dr. David 
Plummer, Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Mr. Matthew Hebbard, Mr. Ricardo De La Garza, Mr. 
George McCaleb, Mr. Mike Carranza, Dr. Fernando Chapa, Dr. Rebecca De Leon, Dr. 
Virginia Champion, Mr. Eli Nguma, Mrs. Myriam Lopez, Mr. Robert Cuellar, Mr. Martin 
Villarreal, Mr. Khalil Abdullah, Mrs. Becky Cavazos, Ms. Crystal Bird, Mr. Angel 
Magallanes, Mr. Aaron Rios, Mr. David Segovia, Mrs. Kelly Salazar, and Mr. Andrew Fish. 
 

Determination of a Quorum 
A quorum was present and a notice of the meeting was posted. 
 

Invocation 
Mr. Daniel Ramirez, Director of Public Relations and Marketing, said the invocation. 
 
  

9



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 2, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Public Comments 
No public comments were given and a notice of the meeting was posted. 
 
A. Presentation of $10,290 TASB BuyBoard Rebate Payment Check by the 

Texas Association of School Boards 
Angel Magallanes, Consultant at the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB) 
Buyboard program, presented South Texas College with a check for $10,290, as 
a rebate incentive for the College’s participation in the TASB BuyBoard Purchasing 
Cooperative. 
 
TASB BuyBoard delivers economy of scale and purchasing power to secure better 
pricing on products, equipment, and services.   
 
The rebate was calculated based upon total volume of purchase orders, as 
outlined in their purchasing cooperative agreement. 
 
STC’s participation in the TASB BuyBoard Purchasing Cooperative increased 
significantly during fiscal year 2017-2018, due to the completion of the bond 
construction projects.  While the College has previously received annual rebates 
from TASB BuyBoard, the current rebate of $10,290 far exceeds previous years, 
and TASB requested this opportunity to personally present this rebate to the 
Board. 
 
These funds were deposited in the general fund to support the College’s operation. 

 

B. Report on the 2018 Texas Higher Education Leadership Conference 
Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, Chairman of the Board, attended the Texas Higher 
Education Coordinating Board’s (THECB) 2018 Texas Higher Education 
Leadership Conference in Austin, Texas. 
 
The conference was themed 60x30TX: Ways to Get There from Here, and included 
valuable information for higher education leadership.  This included a review of key 
issues for board governance and the role of leadership in supporting the goals of 
their institutions in serving students, increasing retention and completion, and 
meeting targets in line with the 60x30TX goal of ensuring that 60 percent of young 
adults have earned a higher education credential by the year 20130. 
 
Mr. Rodriguez provided a report on his attendance at the conference.  He noted 
that the conference was well attended by trustees from around the state, and the 
THECB board members, including Dr. Fred Farias, III, who is from the Rio Grande 
Valley and serves as Vice-Chair on the Board. 

  

10



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 3, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

C. Presentation on Office of Public Relations & Marketing Campaign Goals and 
Metrics 
Mr. Daniel Ramirez, Director of Public Relations and Marketing, presented on the 
College’s marketing campaign goals and metrics, as requested by the Board. 
South Texas College has partnered with Interact Communication to undertake 
research and develop a branding and marketing campaign geared toward 
increased student enrollment, improved regional perceptions, and reinforcement 
of community pride in South Texas College. 
 
Mr. Ramirez discussed the media and technology used in the ongoing campaign, 
and will review the metrics used to track effectiveness and value of that various 
strategies. 
 
Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., observed that this presentation provided a review of some of 
the accountability of marketing expenditures that he was hoping to see.  While the 
report was not yet comprehensive in assessing the activities and expenditures, he 
noted that the presentation was on the right track. 

 
D. Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the Period Ending August 31, 2018 

Ms. Kelly R. Salazar from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP, provided the 
Board with the Delinquent Tax Collection Report through August 31, 2018 

 
These presentations were for the Board’s information and feedback to staff, and no action 
was requested. 
 

Approval of Board Meeting Minutes 
The following Board Meeting Minutes were submitted for approval: 
 

1) October 30, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
2) December 4, 2018 Special Board Meeting 

 
Due to the cancellation of the scheduled Regular Board Meeting on November 27, 2018, 
the Minutes for the October 30, 2018 Regular Board Meeting are presented to the Board 
for approval and adoption. 
 
On December 4, 2018, the Board met in a special session to take action on those items 
deferred from November 2018 that could not wait until the December 13, 2018 Regular 
Board Meeting.  The Minutes from that meeting are also presented. 
 
Dr. Salinas proposed revisions to the Minutes as written for the October 30, 2018 Regular 
Board Meeting Minutes, and additional revisions to the Minutes as written for the 
December 4, 2018 Special Board Meeting Minutes. 

11



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 4, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and adopted the December 4, 2018 Special 
Board Meeting Minutes as revised.  The motion carried. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and adopted the October 30, 2018 Regular 
Board Meeting Minutes as revised.  The motion carried. 
 

Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Award(s) 
Authorization to accept and approve the following grant awards and use of related funds 
as authorized by each grant was requested: 
 
1. Texas Workforce Commission, Pell Grant Ability to Benefit Capacity Building in 

the amount of $159,445.83 
This award would help deliver innovative Career Pathways to seventy-seven 
participants that would result in increased attainment of High School Equivalency 
Credentials, Recognized Postsecondary Credentials, and reduced student debt for 
college credit coursework. Partners for this program included the Lower Rio Workforce 
Development Board, Region One Education Service Center, Rio Grande Valley 
Literacy Center, University of Texas Rio Grande Valley High School Equivalency 
Program, Motivation Education and Training Inc., Goodwill Industries, Sandia Depot, 
Ramos Trucking Services, Curly’s Towing Service, Bio-Ops, On Target 
Transportation, McAllen Country Club, Rio Grande Regional Hospital, Knapp Medical 
Center and Valley Regional Medical Center. The funding period for this grant was from 
January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2020.  
 
This award aligned to Strategic Direction #2, Access and Success by providing 
innovative workforce training opportunities for students in a Career Pathway 
Programs.  
 

2. Texas Workforce Commission, ApprenticeshipTexas Grant Partnership with the 
Lower Rio Workforce Development Board in the amount of $173,470.60 
This grant was awarded to the Lower Rio Workforce Development Board in 
partnership with South Texas College for the college to develop four Registered 
Apprenticeship (RA) training programs for local employers. Training will focus on 
occupations including Auto Service Technician, Industrial Maintenance, Heating, 
Ventilation, Air Conditioning (HVAC), Maintenance and Machinist for 8-10 new 
apprentices (per occupation) for a total of thirty-five new apprentices. The total amount 
awarded to the Lower Rio Workforce Development Board was $199,388 of which 
$173,470.60 would fund South Texas College to develop and conducting training. The 

12



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 5, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Institute of Advanced Manufacturing is identifying prospective employers including 
HVAC contractors, local manufacturing companies and automobile dealerships to 
serve as employment sites and provide RA On-the-Job Training. The funding period 
for this grant was from December 20, 2018 to November 30, 2019.  
 
This award aligned to Strategic Direction #3, High Success Rate by providing training 
that  develop skills  to  meet  employer  needs  and  contributed  toward  the  economic  
mobility of the region. 
 

3. Texas Workforce Commission, Accelerate Texas IV: Integrated Education and 
Training Grant in the amount of $499,859 
This grant would provide concurrent enrollment for 200 participants in Workforce 
Training and Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) services. This program was designed 
to build the college’s capacity to expand, develop, and implement the Integrated 
Education and Training (IET) model. Project funding would support the core 
components of IET, including Workforce Training, Workforce Preparation Activities, 
AEL Activities, related coordination, staffing, curriculum development and educational 
and career counseling services. The funding period for this grant was from November 
1, 2018 to October 31, 2020.  
 
This award aligned to Strategic Direction #3, High Success Rate by providing training 
that  develops  skills  to  meet  employer  needs  and  contribute  toward  the  economic  
mobility of the region. 
 

4. State Farm, Good Neighbor Citizenship Grant in the amount of $5,000 
This award was to compliment previous work done through another grant from State 
Farm and South Texas College was invited to apply. The Student Activities and 
Wellness Department would use funds to provide Financial Smarts Literacy 
workshops for students throughout the year. This award was for the period of 
December 1, 2018 to November 31, 2019. 
 
This  grant aligned to Strategic Direction #4,  Collective  Responsibility,  by  providing  
learning  experiences  that  would  help  students  increase  their  knowledge  about  
managing their finances and how to be debt-free. 
 

5. Texas Workforce Commission, Governor’s Summer Merit Program in the 
amount of $46,552 
This grant would provide funding for a total of fifty freshman and sophomore high 
school students to participate in a six-week South Texas College Texas Pre-Freshman 
Engineering Program (TexPREP). Students from Weslaco ISD and PSJA ISD would 

13



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 6, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

participate at the Pecan Campus, students from Weslaco ISD would participate at the 
Mid Valley Campus and students from Roma ISD at the Starr County Campus. 
Participants will develop knowledge and skills by participating in hands-on, problem-
based learning activities for science, technology, pre-engineering and math. This 
highly innovative, collaborative, and academically rigorous program provides students 
the opportunity to be engaged in upper level mathematics and computer science 
curriculum. This award is for the period of January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019. 
 
This grant aligns to Strategic Direction #2, Access and Success by providing 
freshman and sophomore high school students with the opportunity to participate in a 
TexPREP program. 
 

6. The Wells Fargo Rea Charitable Trust Foundation Grant in the amount of 
$60,000 
This grant will help the Music Department expand the existing South Texas College 
Band program with funds to purchase high-quality instruments for use in the 
Symphonic Band, as well as in the Brass Ensemble, Woodwind Ensemble, and 
applied music lessons. The Music Department plans to host performances throughout 
STC’s service area in an effort to expand access to the performing arts. This award is 
for the period of December 1, 2019 to May 16, 2019. 

This grant aligns to Strategic Direction #2, Access and Success by providing 
students an opportunity to learn and engage in the visual and performing arts at 
South Texas College.  

7. The Gene Haas Foundation Scholarship Fund in the amount of $20,000  
This award will fund twenty scholarships at $1,000 each from the Gene Haas 
Foundation to focus on manufacturing education students. Eligible students enrolled 
in South Texas College’s Certificate Program in Manufacturing with plans to pursue 
an Associate Degree in Precision Manufacturing Technology or students enrolled in 
the Associate Degree in Precision Manufacturing Program. The funding period is 
October 11, 2018 to October 10, 2019. 
 
This grant aligns to Strategic Direction # 2, Access and Success by providing students 
with scholarship opportunities.  
 

8. The Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration 
Planning Grant Matching Funds from the Starr County Industrial Foundation in 
the amount of $5,000 
The award from the Department of Commerce was previously authorized by the Board 
in the amount of $120,000 of which $100,000 are federal funds and $20,000 are an 
in-kind match from South Texas College. Funds will be used to develop an Asset Map 

14



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 7, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

for Starr County and to engage community stakeholders in an Economic and 
Workforce Development 2025 Strategic Planning Conference in partnership with the 
Starr County Industrial Foundation. It is requested that the Board of Trustees of South 
Texas College authorize an additional $5,000 in match funds from the Starr County 
Industrial Foundation to the college to meet the 20% match required by the funding 
agency, which brings the project budget to $125,000.  
 
This grant aligns to Strategic Direction #5, Collaboration, by engaging community 
leaders to develop a strategic plan for economic development in Starr County. 
 

9. The Truth Initiative, Tobacco-Free College Grant Program in the amount of 
$20,000 
The Truth Initiative has awarded funding to 152 minority-serving institutions and 
community colleges to advocate for a 100% smoke-free and tobacco-free college 
environment. This grant will be managed by the Nursing and Allied Health Division 
Respiratory Department. Respiratory Club students will promote a tobacco and e-
cigarette free environment by hosting open house events including informational 
booths, social media promotions and flyer and banner distribution at all 5 STC 
campuses. Two student Taskforce Leaders from the Respiratory Club will co-develop 
and lead at least four advocacy activities. By the end of the grant period in 2020, Truth 
Initiative will assist grant staff and Club students to draft a policy recommendation for 
a 100% smoke-free or 100% tobacco-free policy to present to key decision makers. 
The funding period is from February 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020. 

 
This grant aligns to Strategic Direction #4, Collective Responsibility by empowering 
students to work together to design develop and conduct informative events for other 
students, staff and faculty at South Texas College. 
 

The ninth grant, from the Truth Initiative and supporting the Tobacco-Free College Grant 
Program, was announced after the publication of the Board packet, and included for 
action by the Board at the meeting.  The presented grants would provide up to 
$989,327.43 in additional funding for the College to provide services and opportunities 
throughout the region. 

 
Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, the Board of 
Trustees approved and authorized accepting the following grant award(s) and use of 
related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent upon official award as appropriate.  

 
1. Texas Workforce Commission, Pell Grant Ability to Benefit Capacity Building in 

the amount of $159,445.83 

15



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 8, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

2. Texas Workforce Commission, ApprenticeshipTexas Grant Partnership with the 
Lower Rio Workforce Development Board  in the amount of $173,470.60 

3. Texas Workforce Commission, Accelerate Texas IV: Integrated Education and 
Training Grant in the amount of $499,859 

4. State Farm, Good Neighbor Citizenship Grant in the amount of $5,000 
5. Texas Workforce Commission, Governor’s Summer Merit Program in the amount 

of $46,552 
6. The Wells Fargo Rea Charitable Trust Foundation Grant in the amount of 

$60,000 
7. The Gene Haas Foundation Scholarship Fund in the amount of $20,000  
8. The Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration Planning 

Grant Matching Funds from the Starr County Industrial Foundation in the amount 
of $5,000 

9. The Truth Initiative, Tobacco-Free College Grant Program in the amount of 
$20,000 
 

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:  
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes accepting the 
following grant awards and using related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent 
upon official award as appropriate: 

 
1. Texas Workforce Commission, Pell Grant Ability to Benefit Capacity Building in 

the amount of $159,445.83 
2. Texas Workforce Commission, ApprenticeshipTexas Grant Partnership with the 

Lower Rio Workforce Development Board  in the amount of $173,470.60 
3. Texas Workforce Commission, Accelerate Texas IV: Integrated Education and 

Training Grant in the amount of $499,859 
4. State Farm, Good Neighbor Citizenship Grant in the amount of $5,000 
5. Texas Workforce Commission, Governor’s Summer Merit Program in the amount 

of $46,552 
6. The Wells Fargo Rea Charitable Trust Foundation Grant in the amount of 

$60,000 
7. The Gene Haas Foundation Scholarship Fund in the amount of $20,000  
8. The Department of Commerce, Economic Development Administration Planning 

Grant Matching Funds 
9. The Truth Initiative, Tobacco-Free College Grant Program in the amount of 

$20,000 
 
The motion carried.  

16



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 9, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review and Action as Necessary on Proposed Revisions to Policy #3232: Dual 
Credit Student Eligibility Requirements  

Approval of the proposed revisions to Policy #3232: Dual Credit Student Eligibility 
Requirements was requested. 
 
Purpose – The proposed policy revisions were necessary to further improve the success 
of dual credit students by limiting “self-enrollment” in regular (non-S) sections, to ensure 
students receive academic advising and prior approval.   
 
A combination of policy revisions and tuition and fee schedule revisions had been 
implemented to help partnering districts and the College guide students toward successful 
completion of their dual credit courses and programs, and to help prevent students from 
accumulating a poor performance record that will negatively impact their higher education 
opportunities. 
 
The Board previously approved policy revisions that: 

• Limited students to enrollment in courses within their declared major and degree 
plan 

• Limited students to up to 68 attempted credit hours, or completion of an associate 
degree 

 
Justification - The revision adhered with the SACSCOC Dual Credit Policy and the 
National Alliance of Concurrent Enrollment Partnership Accreditation Standards. In 
addition, revisions to the policy were necessary for the following reasons: 

• The number of courses students may enroll in was not clearly defined for Summer 
sessions, which currently permits dual credit students to register for courses 
exceeding the recommended number.  

• Dual credit students who enroll in regular college courses, categorized as 
Independent dual credit students, were doing so without the knowledge of the 
school districts and without consultation with STC’s Dual Credit Program staff. The 
College recently experienced an increase of Independent dual credit students who 
enroll in regular college sections without academic advising.  

 
Current Proposed Revisions to Policy #3232 
During the Summer 2018 sessions, administration noticed that a significant number of 
dual credit students were able to enroll in courses outside the scope of the policy and the 
Memorandum of Understanding signed with the partnering school districts.  While 
administration was happy to observe that the students were largely successful in these 
courses, some of them taking as many as four courses during each summer session, 
administration must ensure that students are properly advised according to accreditation 
standards.  Proper advisement ensures that students are aware of the potential impact 
on financial aid and are following their degree plan. 
 

17



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 10, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Furthermore, high school students were able to sign up for sections that were not set up 
for dual credit courses, which should be restricted for case-by-case approval by the 
College and School District administration of each student’s academic needs. 
 
The proposed revisions to Policy #3232 included: 

• Providing an exemption to the 68-credit hour cap on dual credit courses for 
students pursuing the Associate of Science in Pre-Pharmacy. 

• Limiting the enrollment of dual credit students during summer sessions to two 
courses for Summer I and III, and to two courses for Summer II, to close the 
“loophole” in the policy. 

• Providing an internal approval process for dual credit students to sign up for 
courses outside the scope of Dual Credit Program agreements with partnering 
districts, upon approval by the STC Dean of Dual Credit Programs and School 
District Partnerships, and clarifying that tuition and fees will not be waived for such 
regular courses taken outside the scope of Dual Credit Program agreements. 

 
At the November 6, 2018 Education and Workforce Development Committee meeting, 
Mr. Gary Gurwitz reviewed the proposed revisions, and provided suggestions that 
clarified the language and intention of the changes.  These suggestions were 
incorporated into the proposed revisions presented in this packet. 
 
The proposed revision were provided in the packet, with the revisions as discussed at 
the committee meeting. 
 
On November 6, 2018, the Education and Workforce Development Committee 
recommended Board approval of the proposed revision of Policy #3232: Dual Credit 
Student Eligibility Requirements as presented and which would supersede any previously 
adopted Board policy. 
 
Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposed revision of 
Policy #3232: Dual Credit Student Eligibility Requirements as presented and which would 
supersede any previously adopted Board policy.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on the Proposed Revisions to the 
Vision, Mission, and Core Values of South Texas College 

The Board was asked to approve the proposed revisions to the Vision, Mission, and Core 
Values of South Texas College, as presented. 
 
South Texas College Board Policy #900 calls upon the College to have a Comprehensive 
Mission, including an institutional Vision, Purpose, Core Values, Guiding Principles, and 
Strategic Directions.  These serve as the foundation for all institutional operations, 

18



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 11, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

programs, and activities, which must all be consistent with the framework provided by the 
Comprehensive Mission. 
 
This was consistent with the College’s accreditation requirement, by the Southern 
Association of Colleges and Schools – Commission on Colleges (SACSCOC), which will 
review the institutional mission as part of their principles of accreditation review.  As 
stated by SACSCOC:  

“A clearly defined and comprehensive mission guides the public’s perception of 
the institution. It conveys a sense of the institutions uniqueness and identifies the 
qualities, characteristics, and values that define its role and distinctiveness within 
the diverse higher education community.  Fundamental to the structure of an 
institutions effectiveness, the mission reflects a clear understanding of the 
institution by its governing board, administration, faculty, students, staff, and all 
constituents.” 

 – 2018 Principles of Accreditation, SACSCOC, Section 2 

 
Presentation to the Education and Workforce Development Committee 
Dr. David Plummer, Vice President for Information Services, Planning, Performance, & 
Strategic Initiatives, and Dr. Fernando Chapa, Dean for Institutional Research, 
Effectiveness, & Strategic Planning, presented the proposed revisions to the South Texas 
College Vision, Mission, Core Values at the November 6, 2018 Education and Workforce 
Development Committee meeting.  This presentation reviewed: 

 
Vision, Mission, Core Values (VMV) Committee Development and Process 
The South Texas College Vision, Mission, Core Values (VMV) Committee is 
comprised of representatives from each Division, campus, and employee 
classification throughout the College.  The VMV Committee was formed in March 2018 
to begin the development of the revised institutional Vision, Mission, and Core Values. 
 
The VMV Committee was charged with developing an aspirational vision statement, 
a shared understanding of the institution’s intended direction (mission), and a set of 
core values that communicate the essence of the institution’s identify and support the 
vision. 
 
Throughout the Spring and Summer 2018 semesters, the VMV Committee met to 
develop and refine a draft document and solicit feedback from stakeholders 
throughout the College.  After several cycles of such feedback and revision, the VMV 
Committee brought the document to various institutional committees, such as: 
 
• President’s Cabinet,  
• President’s Administrative Staff,  

19



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 12, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

• Planning & Development Committee,  
• Academic Council, and 
• Professional Development Day Fall 2018 
 
At each presentation, further feedback and comment were solicited and incorporated 
as appropriate.  This process was again repeated through the conclusion of the 
drafting process in September 2018.  The finalized document would be used by the 
Strategic Planning Committee as a guide in developing the formal 2019 – 2025 
Strategic Directions and Strategic Goals for South Texas College. 
 
Proposed Revisions to the Vision, Institutional Mission, and Core Values 
Dr. Plummer and Dr. Chapa reviewed the process with the Education and Workforce 
Development Committee for preliminary feedback. 
 
Mr. Gurwitz, as the sole attending Committee member, was supportive of the effort to 
generally improve upon and make more efficient the College’s Vision, Mission, and 
Core Values. 
 
Mr. Gurwitz’ feedback was incorporated into the revisions proposed below for the 
Board’s consideration: 

 
Vision 

Current: 

South Texas College is a world-class institution advancing regional 
prosperity through education for a better quality of life in our community. 
 
Proposed Revision: 

South Texas College will be a global model in educational innovation serving as a 
catalyst to drive regional prosperity, economic development, and the social mobility 
of those we serve. 

 

Main Purpose 
Current: 

South Texas College is an innovative, public, post-secondary institution 
providing quality education and career pathways for the people and 
communities of Hidalgo and Starr counties. The College achieves 
student success, nurtures talent development, and promotes economic 
vitality through collaborative and creative approaches to teaching, 
learning, and support services. 
 

20



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 13, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Proposed Revision: 

South Texas College is a public institution of higher education that provides 
educational opportunities through excellence in teaching and learning, workforce 
development, cultural enrichment, community service, and regional and global 
collaborations. 

 
Core Values 

Current: 

1. Student Success: We promote student success and completion 
through the implementation of diverse strategies and initiatives. 

2. Opportunity: We value providing access and opportunities to 
students to meet the needs of our communities. 

3. Excellence: We value excellence in teaching, learning, and all 
support services. 

4. Innovation: We encourage creativity and champion innovative 
approaches to teaching, learning, and services. 

5. Community: We value engaging the community in students' learning 
experiences and in the positive transformation of our region. 

6. Professionalism: We demonstrate professionalism through 
collegiality, respect, and recognition for each other. 

7. Collaboration: We value collaboration and communication among 
STC employees and STC constituents. 

8. Integrity: We value integrity through honest and transparent 
communication and courageous dialogue. 

Proposed Revision: 

1. Student Success: We are committed to the personal, academic and career 
goals of each student. 

 
2. Excellence: We are committed to excellence and innovation in teaching, 

learning, and services. 
 
3. Opportunity: We are committed to providing access and support for students 

to achieve their academic and career goals. 
 
4. Community: We are committed to equitable results through inclusion, 

diversity, collaboration, and engagement. 
 

21



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 14, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

5. Integrity: We are committed to being respectful, professional, honest, 
accountable, and transparent.  

 
On November 6, 2018, the Education and Workforce Development Committee 
recommended Board approval of the proposed revisions to the Vision, Mission, and Core 
Values of South Texas College as presented. 
 
Dr. Salinas noted that he hadn’t been available to attend the November 6, 2018 committee 
meeting, and that Mr. Gurwitz had presided over the meeting. 
 
Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mr. Gary Gurwitz, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and adopted the proposed revisions to the 
Vision, Mission, and Core Values of South Texas College pertinent to some suggestions 
that Dr. Salinas would provide. 
 
Dr. Salinas suggested that the proposed Vision be modified to state that” 

South Texas College will be encompass a global model in emerging educational 
innovation serving as a catalyst to drive regional prosperity, economic 
development, and the social mobility of those we served. 
 

He observed that these changes bring strength to the Vision. 
 
Dr. Salinas reviewed the eight core values that were part of the College’s practices, and 
noted that they would be streamlined to five values.  He proposed that these are each 
revised to remove the wording “We are” and replace it to “South Texas College is” in 
each. 
 
Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez noted that he preferred the language “we are” within the proposed 
values, and Ms. Rose Benavidez concurred. 
 
Ms. Rose Benavidez further asked about the Vision statement, asking about the value of 
adding “encompass” as Dr. Salinas proposed.   
 
Dr. Salinas noted that “will be” implies that the College is not yet delivering the Vision. 
 
Ms. Benavidez noted that her understanding of a Vision statement was more aspirational. 
 
Mr. Gary Gurwitz noted that at the Committee meeting, he observed that staff had very 
carefully drafted the proposed language.  He noted that if they made changes at the Board 
meeting, someone might come up with a revision the next day, and the next, and so on.  
He opined that there is value in drawing the line at revising the language somewhere, and 
suggested that the Board could adopt the language as proposed by administration. 
 
Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez observed that the proper time for such a discussion might be at a 
Board Retreat, instead of at a regular board meeting. 

22



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 15, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Dr. David Plummer noted that there would be ongoing review and revision of the Mission, 
Vision, and Core Values during the strategic planning process planned for the ongoing 
year, and it would be brought back for the trustees’ input and suggestions again in the 
near future. 
 
Whatever the Board decided on December 13, 2018, they would be provided additional 
opportunities for review and revision of the adopted Mission, Vision, and Core Values. 
 
Dr. Salinas clarified that he did not wish to deny the work that had been done by staff on 
the Mission, Vision, and Core Values; however, he felt strongly that the Board should 
have input on the final project. 
 
Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez recommended moving forward with what was approved by the 
committee, with respect to Dr. Salinas’ comments and noting that the Board would have 
the opportunity to review this again in a forthcoming retreat. 
 
The motion before the Board incorporated the revisions as proposed by Dr. Salinas.  The 
motion failed to carry, with five votes opposed and two in favor of the motion. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and adopted the proposed revisions to the 
Vision, Mission, and Core Values of South Texas College as presented by the Committee.  
The motion carried, with five in support and two opposed to the new motion. 
 

Review and Approval of the Diagnostic Medical Sonography 
Associate of Applied Science Program 

The Board was asked to approve and authorize administration to offer the Diagnostic 
Medical Sonography Associate of Applied Science program. 
 
The proposed Diagnostic Medical Sonography Associate of Applied Science Degree 
would allow students to gain the knowledge and skills necessary to seek employment as 
a certified diagnostic medical sonographer, including extensive knowledge in ultrasound 
physics and instrumentation, use of Doppler imaging, cross-sectional anatomy and 
pathophysiology.  Clinical and practicum aspects of the program will include hands-on 
training with experiences sonographers in various medical facilities. 
 
EMSI data indicates a strong demand for Diagnostic Medical Sonographers in the local 
region, with an expected 24.7% growth in demand in the Lower Rio Grande Valley from 
2018 – 2028. 
 

23



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 16, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Upon completion, students with the Diagnostic Medical Sonography Associate of Applied 
Science Degree would be eligible and prepared for the American Registry for Diagnostic 
Medical Sonography (ARDMS) national examination 
 
Program implementation costs would be low, as South Texas College currently offers the 
necessary coursework, including for its current Advanced Technical Certificate in 
Diagnostic Medical Sonography. 
 
The Board packet contained the Program Development Packet, which included: 

• Program Development Checklist 
• Program Demand and Projected Outcomes 
• Program Summary 
• Enrollment Management Plan 
• Student Survey 
• Proposed Curriculum & Course Descriptions 
• Instructional Costs and Projected Revenues 
• Supporting Documents: 

o Advisory Committee Members List 
o Letters of Support 

 
Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Vice President for Academic Affairs, Dr. Murad Odeh Interim 
Administrator for Curriculum & Student Learning, and Ms. Crystal Bird, Radiologic 
Technology Clinical Coordinator Instructor, reviewed the proposed new program and the 
development process with the Education and Workforce Development Committee on 
December 4, 2018, and responded to questions. 
 
On December 4, 2018, the Education and Workforce Development Committee 
recommended Board approval to offer the Diagnostic Medical Sonography Associate of 
Applied Science program as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized offering the Diagnostic 
Medical Sonography Associate of Applied Science program as presented.  The motion 
carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary Regarding the Fiscal Year 2018 
Financial Audit  

On December 4, 2018, Mr. David Segovia and staff from Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC 
reviewed the status of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Years 
Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017 with the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources and 
responded to questions posed by the Trustees. 

24



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 17, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

The auditors reported an “unmodified” opinion, and informed the Committee that this is 
highest opinion available, formerly labelled an “unqualified opinion.” 
 
The external financial auditors presented on the FY 2018 net position, revenues and 
expenditures, and on tuition, fees, and student enrollment trends. 
 
The auditors also gave a strong commendation to the College’s business office for the 
implementation and adherence to strong fiscal controls. 
 
No action was taken at the Committee meeting. 
 
A draft of the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Years Ended August 
31, 2018 and 2017 was included under separate cover. 
 
The Fiscal Year 2018 Financial Audit was presented at the December 13, 2018 Board 
Meeting for review and to take action. 
 
Mr. David Segovia presented a brief review of the Fiscal Year 2018 Financial Audit to the 
Board, noting there were non-substantial changes to the audit after the publication of the 
Board packet.  An update was provided at the Board meeting. 
 
Mr. Segovia confirmed that Carr, Riggs, & Ingram, LLC accepted the Fiscal Year 2018 
Financial Audit as presented to the Board.  He further read the following into the Board 
record: 

“In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly 
in all material respects the financial position of South Texas College as 
of August 31 and the changes in financial position and cash flows for 
the year ending, in accordance with accounting principals generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 

  
Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College accepted the Fiscal Year 2018 Financial Audit as 
presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Disposal of Surplus Property 
Valued at $5,000 and Over 

Approval to dispose of surplus property valued at $5,000 and over through a live auction 
was requested. 
 

25



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 18, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Purpose – The Fixed Assets Department requested the disposal through a live auction of 
surplus property valued at $5,000 and over.  In addition, these capital assets would be 
removed from the College’s fixed assets ledger. 
 
Justification and Benefit – It was necessary to dispose of obsolete, damaged, and not 
functioning property for safety purposes and due to the lack of storage area for surplus 
property. 
 
Background – The surplus property goes through an evaluation process by the 
departments to determine if the items are damaged beyond repair and unable to utilized 
district wide.  After this evaluation process, the department submits a request to have the 
property removed from the department and relocated to the Shipping and Receiving 
Warehouse for auction. 
 
The auction items were located at the South Texas College Receiving Department, 3700 
W. Military Hwy., McAllen, TX.  The auction would be scheduled in the spring at the 
auctioneers’ site due lack of space at the Central Receiving Warehouse. 
 
The items valued over $5,000 were included in the College’s inventory through the Banner 
system.  
 
Enclosed Documents - The listing of the items to be auctioned was provided in the packet 
for the Board’s review and information. 
 
On November 6, 2018, the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 
recommended Board approval of the disposal of surplus property valued at $5,000 and 
over through a live auction and for these capital assets to be removed from the College’s 
fixed assets ledger as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the disposal of surplus 
property valued at $5,000 and over through a live auction and for these capital assets to 
be removed from the College’s fixed assets ledger as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on 2018 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for 
Hidalgo and Starr Counties  

Approval of the 2018 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr Counties was requested. 
 
Purpose – The Hidalgo County Tax Assessor-Collector and the Starr County Tax 
Assessor-Collector have provided the 2018 Tax Roll Totals for approval by the College’s 
governing body. 

26



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 19, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Justification - The 2018 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr Counties requires 
approval from the governing body in order to be in compliance with Section 26.09 Item (e) 
of the Property Tax Code, which reads: 
 

“The assessor shall enter the amount of tax determined as provided by this section 
in the appraisal roll and submit it to the governing body of the unit for approval.  The 
appraisal roll with amounts of tax entered as approved by the governing body 
constitutes the unit’s tax roll.” 

 
Background - Mr. Pablo “Paul” Villarreal, Jr., RTA, Assessor-Collector of Hidalgo County, 
and Ms. Maria Ameida Salinas, TAC, Assessor-Collector of Starr County, have entered 
the amount of tax determined as provided by Section 26.09 Item (e) of the Property Tax 
Code and have submitted to South Texas College the tax roll/tax levy totaling 
$67,294,779.57. 
 
The tax rolls for Tax Year 2017 and 2018 were as follows: 
  

 
Enclosed Documents - The 2018 Tax Roll Totals documents from each county were 
provided in the packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 
Upon a recommendation by the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee, the 
Board approved the allocated costs payments for Hidalgo and Starr Counties on 
December 4, 2018.  This allowed staff adequate time to submit the first payment to Starr 
County prior to December 31, 2018, before the College closes for Winter Break. 
 
On December 4, 2018, the Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee 
recommended Board approval of the 2018 Tax Roll/Tax Levy for Hidalgo and Starr 
Counties as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the 2018 Tax Roll/Tax Levy 
for Hidalgo and Starr Counties as presented.  The motion carried. 
  

 Hidalgo County  Starr County  Total 

2017 $62,624,834.26  $3,983,974.12  $66,608,808.38 

2018 63,236,679.08  4,058,100.49   67,294,779.57 

Increase/(Decrease) $611,844.82  $74,126.37  $685,971.19 

27



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 20, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review and Acceptance of Internal Audit Report in the Area of Fleet 
Fuel Card Use  

Mr. Khalil Abdullah, Internal Auditor, attended the November 6, 2018 Finance, Audit, and 
Human Resources Committee meeting to discuss the procedures, findings, and 
recommendations of the internal audit report in the area of Fleet Fuel Card Use. 
 
The Internal Audit Report was provided in the packet for the Board’s review. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee reviewed the internal audit report 
on November 6, 2018.  The committee was not asked for a formal recommendation of 
Board acceptance or other action. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College accepted the Internal Audit Report in the area of Fleet 
Fuel Card Use as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on 2013 Bond Construction Program 
Warranty Items Action Plan 

College staff from Finance and Administrative Services and Facilities Planning and 
Construction have prepared a list outlining warranty items to be addressed for the 2013 
Bond Construction Program Warranty Items Action Plan.  
 
Broaddus & Associates was asked to provide updates for each warranty item. The Board 
was asked to review and recommend action as necessary. 
 
The Board packet included the Warranty Items Action Plan as developed and maintained 
by administration. 

Campus Specific Warranty Items: 
1. Starr County Campus - Thermal Plant Vault Water Issue 
2. Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence – Parking and Site 

Improvements Asphalt failures at Cityscape drives 
 
There were no recommendations form the Facilities Committee, and no action was taken. 
  

28



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 21, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial Completion for the 
Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring and Starr County 
Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator 

Approval of substantial completion for the following Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator 
and Wiring and Starr County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center 
Generator projects was requested. 
 

Project Completion 
Recommended Date Received 

1. Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring 
 
Engineer: DBR Engineering 
Construction Manager at Risk: McDonald 
Electric 

Substantial 
Completion 

Recommended 

TBD-Week of 
November 5, 

2018 

2. Starr County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis 
Management Center Generator 
 
Engineer: DBR Engineering 
Construction Manager at Risk: McDonald 
Electric 

Substantial 
Completion 

Recommended 

September 20, 
2018 

 
Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring 
DBR Engineering and college staff visited the site and developed a construction punch 
list.  The contractor was pending a factory start-up for the generator, which was expected 
to be performed during the week of November 5, 2018. A draft Certificate of Substantial 
Completion was issued and would be finalized once pending work was completed. 
 
Starr County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator 
DBR Engineering and college staff visited the site and developed a construction punch 
list.  As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, the project was 
certified by the engineer on September 20, 2018. A Certificate of Substantial Completion 
was issued. Substantial Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project.   
 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included a copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate for the Starr County 
Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator and a copy of the 
Substantial Completion Certificate for the Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring.  
 
On November 6, 2018, the Facilities Committee refrained from recommending Board 
action on this item, pending delivery of a signed copy of the Substantial Completion 
Certificate for the Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring portion of the project.  
That certification has since been finalized, and staff has received the necessary 
documentation. 
  

29



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 22, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized substantial completion for the 
Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring and Starr County Campus Buildings E & 
J Crisis Management Center Generator projects as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Architectural 
Services for the Pecan Campus Information Technology Building M 

Office and Work Space Renovation  
Approval to contract architectural design services to prepare plans for the Pecan Campus 
Information Technology Building M Office and Work Space Renovation project was 
requested. 
 
Purpose 
The proposed Pecan Campus Information Technology Building M Office and Work Space 
Renovation project was needed to renovate four (4) existing classrooms totaling 4,222 
square feet into office spaces on the second floor of Building M to be used for relocating 
staff from the Institutional Research & Effectiveness and Research & Analytical Services 
departments, currently located at Pecan Plaza. The design scope of work includes, but is 
not limited to design, analysis, preparation of plans and specifications, permit 
applications, construction administration, and inspection of the project. 
 
Justification 
The procurement of an architect would allow the architect to work with staff to prepare all 
necessary design development drawings and specifications in preparation for the 
construction documents phase using college design standards as well as all applicable 
codes and ordinances. Construction documents would then be issued for solicitation of 
construction proposals. Once received, construction proposals would be evaluated and 
submitted to the Facilities Committee with a proposed recommendation to the Board to 
award a construction contract. 
 
Background 
On October 22, 2018, South Texas College began soliciting for architectural design 
services for the purpose of selecting a firm to prepare the necessary plans and 
specifications for the Pecan Campus Building M Office and Work Space Renovation 
project. A total of twenty-two (22) firms received a copy of the RFQ and a total of seven 
(7) firms submitted their responses on October 29, 2018.  
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted and available in the unexpended 
construction budget for FY 2018-2019. 
  

30



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 23, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

 
Pecan Campus Information Technology Building M Office and Work Space 

Renovation Project Budget 
Budget 

Components 
Amount 

Budgeted Actual Cost 

Design $32,400 Actual design fees are estimated and will be 
finalized during contract negotiations. 

Construction $324,000 Actual cost will be determined after the solicitation 
of construction proposals. 

 
Reviewers 
College staff from the Facilities Planning & Construction and Purchasing departments 
completed evaluations for the seven (7) firms and prepared a scoring and ranking 
summary; as a result of these evaluations, Boultinghouse Simpson Gates Architects is 
recommended for Board approval. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included the scoring and ranking summaries and plans indicating the areas 
of the proposed renovations for the Board’s review and information. 
 
On December 4, 2018, the Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract 
architectural design services with Boultinghouse Simpson Gates Architects for 
preparation of plans and specifications for the Pecan Campus Information Technology 
Building M Office and Work Space Renovation project as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting architectural 
design services with Boultinghouse Simpson Gates Architects for preparation of plans 
and specifications for the Pecan Campus Information Technology Building M Office and 
Work Space Renovation project as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Civil Engineering 
Services for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 1 

Resurfacing 
Approval to contract civil engineering design services to prepare plans for the Nursing & 
Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 1 Resurfacing project was requested. 
 
Purpose 
The proposed Nursing & Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 1 Resurfacing project was 
part of the College’s Deferred Maintenance Plan for the proper maintenance of the 
College’s facilities. The procurement of a civil engineer would provide for design services 
necessary for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 1 Resurfacing project. The 
design scope of work included, but was not limited to design, analysis, preparation of 

31



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 24, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

plans and specifications, permit applications, construction administration, and inspection 
of the project. 
 
Justification 
The procurement of a civil engineer would allow for the engineer to work with staff to 
prepare all necessary design development drawings and specifications in preparation for 
the construction documents phase using college design standards as well as all 
applicable codes and ordinances. Construction documents would then be issued for 
solicitation of construction proposals. Once received, construction proposals would be 
evaluated and submitted to the Board of Trustees with a recommendation to award a 
construction contract. 
 
Background 
On November 1, 2018, South Texas College began soliciting for engineering design 
services for the purpose of selecting a firm to prepare the necessary plans and 
specifications for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 1 Resurfacing project. 
A total of thirteen (13) firms received a copy of the RFQ and a total of seven (7) firms 
submitted their responses on November 15, 2018.  
 
Funding Source 
Funds for these expenditures were budgeted and available in the renewals and 
replacement budget for FY 2018-2019. 
 

Nursing & Allied Health Campus Parking Lot #1 Project Budget 
Budget 

Components 
Amount 

Budgeted Actual Cost 

Design $25,000 Actual design fees are estimated and will be 
finalized during contract negotiations. 

Construction $250,000 Actual cost will be determined after the solicitation 
of construction proposals. 

 
Reviewers 
College staff from the Facilities Planning & Construction, Operations & Maintenance, and 
Purchasing departments completed evaluations for the seven (7) firms and prepared a 
scoring and ranking summary; as a result of these evaluations, R. Gutierrez Engineering 
Corporation is recommended for Board approval. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included the scoring and ranking summaries and a site plan indicating the 
proposed resurfacing locations for the Board’s review and information. 
 
On December 4, 2018, the Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract 
civil engineering services with R. Gutierrez Engineering Corporation for the Nursing & 
Allied Health Campus Parking Lot 1 Resurfacing project as presented. 
 

32



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 25, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting civil engineering 
services with R. Gutierrez Engineering Corporation for the Nursing & Allied Health Campus 
Parking Lot 1 Resurfacing project as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction 
Services for the Pecan Campus Sand Volleyball Courts 

Approval to contract construction services for the Pecan Campus Sand Volleyball Courts 
project was requested. 
 
Purpose 
The procurement of a contractor would provide for construction services necessary for 
the Pecan Campus Sand Volleyball Courts project. 
 
Background 
The Pecan Campus Sand Volleyball Courts project was requested by the College’s 
Student Activities department and approved as a Capital Improvement Project for use as 
part of their athletic activities program. On February 27, 2018, the Board of Trustees 
approved Alvarado Architects & Associates, Inc. for design services for the Pecan 
Campus Sand Volleyball Courts project. The architects prepared and issued the 
necessary plans and specifications for the solicitation of competitive sealed proposals for 
this phase. 
 
Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals for this project began on October 30, 2018.  
A total of eight (8) sets of construction documents were issued to general contractors and 
a total of four (4) proposals were received on November 19, 2018. 
 

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals 

October 30, 2018 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began. 

November 19, 2018 Four (4) proposals were received.   

 
College staff reviewed and evaluated the competitive sealed proposal and recommend 
NM Contracting, LLC as the highest ranked in the amount of $95,532.  
  

33



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 26, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Funding Source 

 
Funds were available in the Unexpended Construction Plant Fund budget for fiscal year 
2018-2019. The recommended construction proposal was higher than the budgeted 
amount due to the specialized sand material and rubberized perimeter protection surface 
recommended and specified by the architect. 
 
Reviewers 
The proposals were reviewed by College staff from the Facilities Planning & Construction, 
Maintenance & Operations, and Purchasing departments. 
 
Enclosed Documents 
Staff evaluated the proposal and provided a proposal summary for the Board’s review 
and information. It is recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended for 
Board approval. 
 
On December 4, 2018, the Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract 
construction services with NM Contracting, LLC in the amount of $95,532 for the Pecan 
Campus Sand Volleyball Courts project as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized contracting construction 
services with NM Contracting, LLC in the amount of $95,532 for the Pecan Campus Sand 
Volleyball Courts project as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Construction 
Services for the District-Wide Basketball Court Repainting 

Approval to contract construction services for the District-Wide Basketball Court 
Repainting project was requested. 
 
Purpose 
The procurement of a contractor would provide for construction services necessary for 
the District-Wide Basketball Court Repainting project. 
  

Source of Funding 
Amount 

Budgeted 

Highest Ranked 
Proposal 

NM Contracting, LLC Budget Variance 
Unexpended Construction 
Plant Fund $50,000 

 
$95,532 

 
($45,532) 

Total Amount $50,000 $95,532 ($45,532) 

34



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 27, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Background 
The proposed District-Wide Basketball Court Repainting project was part of the College’s 
Deferred Maintenance Plan for the proper maintenance of the College’s facilities. The 
College has outdoor basketball court facilities at the Pecan Campus, Nursing and Allied 
Health Campus, Starr County Campus, and the Technology Campus. They were 
constructed in 2006 and the basketball court surfaces are in need of repainting and minor 
surface repairs. 
 
Staff from the Facilities Planning and Construction and Purchasing Departments prepared 
and issued the necessary plans and specifications for the solicitation of competitive 
sealed proposals for this phase. 
 
Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals for this project began on October 8, 2018.  A 
total of six (6) sets of construction documents were issued to general contractors and a 
total of two (2) proposals were received on October 26, 2018. 
 

Timeline for Solicitation of Competitive Sealed Proposals 

October 8, 2018 Solicitation of competitive sealed proposals began. 

October 26, 2018 Two (2) proposals were received.   

 
College staff reviewed and evaluated the competitive sealed proposal and recommend 
Teni-Trak, Inc. as the highest ranked in the amount of $53,125.  
 
Funding Source 

 
Funds were budgeted in the Renewal and Replacement Plant Fund budget for fiscal year 
2018-2019. 
  
Reviewers 
The proposals were reviewed by College staff from the Facilities Planning & Construction, 
Maintenance & Operations, and Purchasing departments. 
 
  

Source of Funding 
Amount 

Budgeted 

Highest Ranked 
Proposal 

Teni-Trak, Inc. Budget Variance 
Renewal and 
Replacement Plant Fund $55,000 

 
$53,125 

 
$1,875 

Total Amount $55,000 $53,125 $1,875 

35



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 28, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Enclosed Documents 
Staff evaluated the proposal and provided a proposal summary for the Board’s review 
and information. It was recommended that the top ranked contractor be recommended 
for Board approval. 
 
The Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to contract construction services 
with Teni-Trak, Inc. in the amount of $53,125 for the District-Wide Basketball Court 
Repainting project as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Ms. Rose Benavidez, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approve and authorize contracting construction services 
with Teni-Trak, Inc. in the amount of $53,125 for the District-Wide Basketball Court 
Repainting project as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contracting Maintenance 
Services for District-Wide Roof Recoating  

Approval to obtain maintenance services for district-wide roof recoating was requested. 
 
Purpose 
The roof maintenance services were necessary for buildings at the following locations: 
 

Mid Valley Campus 
• Mid Valley Campus, Building D - Workforce Innovation Center (2004) 
• Mid Valley Campus, Building E – Library (2004) 
• Mid Valley Campus, Building F - Student Union (previously Student Services) 

(2004) 
• Mid Valley Campus, Building G - North Academic (2004) 

 
Nursing & Allied Health Campus 
• Nursing & Allied Health, Building A – NAH East (2000 and 2004) 

 
Starr County Campus 
• Starr Campus, Building A - Admin Bookstore (1998) 
• Starr Campus, Building B - Center for Learning Experience (1998) 
• Starr Campus, Building C - North Academic (1998) 
• Starr Campus, Building D - Workforce Innovation (2004) 
• Starr Campus, Building E - South Academic (2004) 
• Starr Campus, Building F - Cultural Arts (2004) 
• Starr Campus, Building G - Student Services (2004) 
• Starr Campus, Building H - Student Activity Center (2004) 

 

36



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 29, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Background 
The proposed roof recoating services are part of the College’s Deferred Maintenance 
Plan for the proper maintenance of the College’s facilities.  

• The buildings that will undergo this maintenance were built between 1998 and  
2004.  

• The roofs for these buildings are between fourteen (14) and twenty (20) years old 
and their current roof warranties are nearing their expiration periods.  

 
Due to ongoing discussions between administration and legal counsel, Dr. Shirley A. 
Reed recommended that this item be postponed until the January 2019 Facilities 
Committee.   
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board agreed 
to postpone this item until the January 2019 Facilities Committee meeting.  The motion 
carried. 
 

Discussion and Action as Necessary on Ratifying the Agreement with 
Halff Associates for the 2013 Bond Construction Pecan Campus 

Thermal Plant Chiller Incident  
On August 22, 2017, the Board of Trustees authorized Legal Counsel to give notice of 
claim to all potential parties and authorized the College President to engage a forensic 
expert as necessary regarding the Pecan Campus Thermal Plant Chiller Incident. 
 
Mr. Jesus Ramirez, Legal Counsel, will provide an update on the legal case of South 
Texas College v. Johnson Controls, Inc., Zitro Electric, LLC, and D. Wilson Construction 
(Cause No. C-0700-18-H) at the December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting. 
 
Mr. Ramirez recommended approval of an agreement with Halff Associates for expert 
advice concerning the Pecan Campus Thermal Plant Chiller Incident.  Upon the advice 
of Legal Counsel, Dr. Reed has executed the agreement, and presented it for ratification 
by the Board of Trustees. 
 
The Facilities Committee did not take action on this item. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Mr. Roy de León, the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and ratified the agreement with Halff 
Associates for expert advice concerning the Pecan Campus Thermal Plant Chiller 
Incident.  The motion carried. 
  

37



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 30, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

Update on Status of Non-Bond Construction Projects 
The Facilities Planning and Construction staff prepared the attached design and 
construction update. This update summarizes the status of each capital improvement 
project currently in progress. Mary Elizondo and Rick de la Garza will be present to 
respond to questions and address concerns of the committee. 
 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
Board action was requested to approve the checks for release and the financial reports 
for the month of November 2018.  The approval was for checks submitted for release in 
the amount greater than $125,000.00 and checks in the amount greater than $25,000.00 
that were released as authorized by Board Policy No. 5610. 
 
These checks and financial reports were scheduled for presentation to the Board on 
November 27, 2018, but that meeting was cancelled due to scheduling conflicts. 
 
Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, was 
available to provide a review of the Financial Report for the month of November 2018, 
and responded to questions posed by the Board. 
 
The checks and the financial reports submitted for approval were included in the Board 
packet under separate cover. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Roy de León and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, the Board of 
Trustees approve and authorize the submitted checks for release in an amount over 
$125,000.00, the checks that were released as authorized by Board Policy #5610, and 
the financial reports submitted for the month of November 2018. 
 

Announcements 
A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, January 15, 2019 

 3:30 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee Meeting 
 4:30 p.m. – Facilities Committee Meeting 
 5:30 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee Meeting 

 

• Tuesday, January 29, 2019 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

38



December 13, 2018 Regular Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 31, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 8:59 AM 

12/13/2018  
Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

B. Other Announcements: 

• South Texas College will be closed Monday, December 17, 2018 – Wednesday, 
January 2, 2019 in observance of Winter Break. 

• South Texas College will host a Board Appreciation Breakfast for local school district 
partners on Friday, January 18, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. at the Cooper Center for Performing 
Arts. 

 

Adjournment 
There being no further business to discuss, the Regular Meeting of the South Texas 
College Board of Trustees adjourned at 7:09 p.m. 
 
I certify the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the Thursday, December 13, 
2018 Regular Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 

 
 
 
 

X
Mr Roy de León
Board Secretary

39



January 15, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 1, Revised 01/24/2019 @ 2:01 PM 

01/15/2019  
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES SPECIAL MEETING 

Tuesday, January 15, 2019 @ 5:15 p.m. 
Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room 

Pecan Campus, McAllen, Texas 78501 

Minutes 

Call Meeting to Order: 
The Special Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees was held on 
Tuesday, January 15, 2019 in the Ann Richards Administration Building Board Room at 
the Pecan Campus in McAllen, Texas.  The meeting commenced at 5:19 p.m. with Mr. 
Paul R. Rodriguez presiding. 
  
Members present: Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, Ms. Rose Benavidez, Mrs. Victoria Cantú, Mr. 
Gary Gurwitz, Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., and Mr. Rene Guajardo 
 
Members absent: Mr. Roy de León 
 
Also present: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, Mr. Jesus Ramirez, Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Dr. David 
Plummer, Dr. Anahid Petrosian, Mr. Matthew Hebbard, Mr. Ricardo De La Garza, Mr. 
George McCaleb, Dr. Jayson Valerio, Mrs. Becky Cavazos, Mr. Ray Pedraza, Mr. Khalil 
Abdullah, Mr. Paul Varville, and Mr. Andrew Fish. 
 

Determination of a Quorum 
A quorum was present and a notice of the meeting was posted. 

Review and Action as Necessary on the Proposed Bachelor of 
Science in Nursing Program  

The Board was asked to approve the proposed Bachelor of Science in Nursing (BSN) 
Program as presented. 
 
Prior Committee and Board Action 
The Board originally approved the program on August 22, 2017; however, administration 
delayed the application process to further ensure the College was in full compliance with 
all criteria and newly developed guidelines for Texas Board of Nursing approval. 
 
The BSN Program was presented once again for consideration.  While the prior Board 
authorization satisfied the state’s requirement for governing board approval, 

40



January 15, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 2, Revised 01/24/2019 @ 2:01 PM 

01/15/2019  
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

administration provided this update and an opportunity to discuss the program and ask 
the Board of Trustees to reaffirm the prior approval. 
 
BSN Program Development at South Texas College 
South Texas College was a strong proponent for the role of community colleges to meet 
the increasing demand for high-skilled registered nurses with the baccalaureate 
credential.  The Program Summary included a survey of the research showing the great 
demand for an increased presence of BSN-holding registered nurses; the Institute of 
Medicine recommended that at least 80% of nurses should hold a baccalaureate degree 
by 2020, and Texas was well short of that mark in 2018, at 61.7%. 
 
Legislative Authority to Develop BSN Program 
With tremendous support from the local delegation and legislative consultants Dean 
McWilliams and Leticia Van de Putte, Senate Bill 2118 passed the 85th Texas Legislature 
and provided legislative authority for Texas community colleges that meet selective 
criteria to offer the BSN Program.   
 
Proposed South Texas College RN-to-BSN Program 
The proposed BSN program would establish an RN-to-BSN track, developed for existing 
registered nurses to continue their education to attain the BSN.  This BSN program would 
further develop critical clinical and knowledge-based skills initially included in an 
Associate Degree Nursing (ADN) program, providing a pathway for registered nurses to 
meet the expectations of hospitals and healthcare partners nationwide. 
 
Hybrid Program 
This was a unique and innovative program, which was significantly different from bachelor 
programs at Texas A&M and UTRGV.  The South Texas College RN-to-BSN Program 
would be a hybrid on-line program, integrating face-to-face activities with online learning 
resources to help students pursue their degree while working as full time nurses. 
 
Clinical Component 
The program would also include a clinical component, which is often not included in 
bachelor’s programs.  This component was included in the South Texas College RN-to-
BSN program to ensure that graduates have “hands-on” learning experience beyond their 
associate degree learning experience. 
 
On Tuesday, January 15, 2019, the Education and Workforce Development Committee 
recommended Board approval of the proposed Bachelor of Science in Nursing Program. 
 

41



January 15, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 3, Revised 01/24/2019 @ 2:01 PM 

01/15/2019  
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

Upon a motion by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr. and a second by Mrs. Victoria Cantú, the Board 
of Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized the proposed Bachelor of 
Science in Nursing Program as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial Completion for the 
Mid Valley Campus Covered Walkway for Bus Drop Off  

Approval of substantial completion for the Mid Valley Campus Covered Walkway for Bus 
Drop Off project was requested. 
 

Project Completion 
Recommended Date Received 

1. Mid Valley Campus Covered Walkway for Bus  
Drop Off 
 
Contractor: G&G Contractors 

Substantial 
Completion 

Recommended 

December 26, 
2018 

 
Facilities Planning & Construction staff visited the site and developed a construction 
punch list on December 26, 2018.  A Certificate of Substantial Completion was issued. 
Substantial Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project.   
 
Enclosed Documents 
A copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate and a photo was enclosed for the Board’s 
review and information.  
 
On Tuesday, January 15, 2019, the Facilities Committee recommended Board approval 
of substantial completion for the Mid Valley Campus Covered Walkway for Bus Drop Off 
project as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized substantial completion for the 
Mid Valley Campus Covered Walkway for Bus Drop Off project as presented.  The motion 
carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Substantial Completion for the 
Technology Campus Advanced Technical Careers Building B Fire 

Sprinkler Replacement Project  
Approval of substantial completion for the Technology Campus Advanced Technical 
Careers Building B Fire Sprinkler Replacement project was requested. 
 

42



January 15, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 4, Revised 01/24/2019 @ 2:01 PM 

01/15/2019  
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

Project Completion 
Recommended Date Received 

1. Technology Campus Advanced Technical 
Careers Building B Fire Sprinkler Replacement 
 
Engineer: Halff Associates 
Contractor: G&G Contractors 

Substantial 
Completion 

Recommended 

January 03, 2019 

 
Halff Associates and College staff visited the site and developed a construction punch 
list.  As a result of this site visit and observation of the completed work, the project was 
certified by the engineer on January 03, 2019. A Certificate of Substantial Completion 
was issued. Substantial Completion was accomplished within the time allowed in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project.   
 
Enclosed Documents 
The packet included a copy of the Substantial Completion Certificate for the Board’s 
review and information.  
 
On Tuesday, January 15, 2019, the Facilities Committee recommended Board approval 
of substantial completion for the Technology Campus Advanced Technical Careers 
Building B Fire Sprinkler Replacement project as presented. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized substantial completion for the 
Technology Campus Advanced Technical Careers Building B Fire Sprinkler Replacement 
project as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Review and Action as Necessary on Final Completion for the Pecan 
Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring and Starr County Campus 

Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator 
Approval of final completion for the following Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and 
Wiring and Starr County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator 
projects was requested. 
 

Project Completion 
Recommended Date Received 

1. Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring 
 
Engineer: DBR Engineering 
Contractor: McDonald Electric 

Final Completion 
Recommended 

TBD 

43



January 15, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 5, Revised 01/24/2019 @ 2:01 PM 

01/15/2019  
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

2. Starr County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis 
Management Center Generator 
 
Engineer: DBR Engineering 
Contractor: McDonald Electric 

Final Completion 
Recommended 

TBD 

 
Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring 
Final Completion, including punch list items, was accomplished as required in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. It was recommended that final completion 
and release of final payment for this project with McDonald Electric be approved.  The 
original cost approved for this project was in the amount of $186,676. 
 
Starr County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator 
Final Completion, including punch list items, was accomplished as required in the 
Owner/Contractor agreement for this project. It was recommended that final completion 
and release of final payment for this project with McDonald Electric be approved.  The 
original cost approved for this project was in the amount of $257,793.   
 
The following charts summarize the above information:  
 

 

 
Letters of Final Completion for the Starr County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis 
Management Center Generator and the Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring 
projects were not available by the publication deadline, but were provided prior to the 
Board meeting. 
 
On Tuesday, January 15, 2019, the Facilities Committee recommended Board approval 
of final completion for the Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring and Starr 
County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator projects as 
presented. 
 

Pecan Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring 

Construction 
Budget 

Approved 
Proposal 
Amount 

Net Total 
Change 
Orders 

Final Project 
Cost 

Previous 
Amount Paid 

Remaining 
Balance 

$186,676 $186,676 $0 $186,676 $177,342.20 9,333.80 

Starr County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator 

Construction 
Budget 

Approved 
Proposal 
Amount 

Net Total 
Change 
Orders 

Final Project 
Cost 

Previous 
Amount Paid 

Remaining 
Balance 

$257,793 $257,793 $27,700 $285,493 $271,218.35 $14,274.65 

44



January 15, 2019 Special Board Meeting Minutes 
Page 6, Revised 01/24/2019 @ 2:01 PM 

01/15/2019  
Special Board Meeting Minutes 

Ms. Rose Benavidez noted that the Facilities Committee directed staff to look into 
landscaping options to improve the generator site at the Starr County Campus. 
 
Upon a motion by Mr. Gary Gurwitz and a second by Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., the Board of 
Trustees of South Texas College approved and authorized final completion for the Pecan 
Plaza Emergency Generator and Wiring project in the amount of $9,333.80 and Starr 
County Campus Buildings E & J Crisis Management Center Generator project in the 
amount of $14,274.65, with both amounts to be paid to McDonald Electric, subject to the 
delivery of any pending final project documentation as presented.  The motion carried. 
 

Announcements 
A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, January 29, 2019 
 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 

 
B. Other Announcements: 

• South Texas College will host a Board Appreciation Breakfast for local school district 
partners on Friday, January 18, 2018 at 8:30 a.m. at the Cooper Center for Performing 
Arts. 

 

Adjournment 
There being no further business to discuss, the Special Meeting of the South Texas 
College Board of Trustees adjourned at 5:24 p.m. 
 
I certify the foregoing are the true and correct minutes of the Tuesday, January 15, 2019 
Special Board Meeting of the South Texas College Board of Trustees. 
 

 
 
 X

Mr Roy de León
Board Secretary

45



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 4, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Award(s) 
Authorization to accept and approve the following grant awards and use of related funds 
as authorized by each grant is requested: 
 
1. Texas Workforce Commission, Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) in the 

amount of $249,096 
The JET grant from the Texas Workforce Commission will help address the current 
needs of the region by providing students enrolled in South Texas College’s Associate 
Degree Nursing (ADN) Program with the opportunity to gain experience using 
specialized equipment used by in-demand occupations. The simulation equipment will 
enable students to practice technical nursing skills safely and competently. The grant 
funding period is from August 2018 to August 2019. 
 
This award aligns with Strategic Direction #3, High Success Rate, by ensuring that 
students engage in learning that will prepare them for the workforce, which positively 
affects the economic and social mobility of residents in our region. 
 

2. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), Carl D. Perkins Basic 
Grant, Additional Funds (Reallocation) in the amount of $259,286 
The purpose of the Carl D. Perkins Basic Grant is to improve graduation, retention, 
access, quality, and to provide for the expansion of Career and Technical Education 
(CTE) programs. 
 
Each year, after initial allocations to selected programs, the THECB issues a 
reallocation of the available remaining funds.  These funds will be used for 
instructional resources and equipment for CTE programs. Access to books and state 
of the art equipment and materials will support CTE students in developing skills for 
emerging technologies in CTE programs.  The funding period is from September 1, 
2018 to August 31, 2019. 
 
With this reallocation, the Carl D. Perkins Basic Grant award to South Texas College 
for this funding period totals to $2,082,415. 
 
This award aligns to Strategic Direction #1, Clear Pathways, by providing students 
with opportunities in career and technical education, including extensive support to 
complete programs successfully. This award also aligns to Strategic Direction #2, 
Access and Success, by increasing community awareness and access to Career and 
Technical Education training and programs. 

  

46



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 5, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

3. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), 2018 College Readiness 
and Success Models for 60x30TX, Additional Funds in the amount of $175,088 
This grant is to enhance and scale co-requisite model offerings for Integrated Reading 
and Writing classes with History, Political Science, Arts, and Academic English to 
meet or exceed the requirements of House Bill 2223. The proposed project supports 
student success by offering co-requisite models concurrently leading to successful 
course completion of both academic and developmental classes.  
 
At the time of initial Board approval, the Board was informed that there was a 
possibility of additional funds being provided by THECB.  These additional funds are 
being awarded to cover the remaining 25% ($66,638) of funds requested in the 
application and 50% ($108,450) for anticipated completion funding as requested in 
the application. Total funding from THECB for this grant will not exceed $250,088, 
which includes initial funds previously authorized in the amount of $75,000. The 
funding period is from August 15, 2018 to August 31, 2020.  
 
This grant aligns to Strategic Direction #2, Access and Success by increasing the 
college going and college completing rates in the region. 
 

4. Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce Solutions, 
Child Development Associates Credential Program (CDA) in the amount of 
$40,575 
This grant from Workforce Solutions provides funding for Child Development 
Associates Credential courses to be taken by employees of Child Care Services 
Vendors in Starr, Hidalgo and Willacy Counties. These funds will be used for tuition, 
fees and textbooks for up to 25 candidates for the Fall 2019 semester.  If more 
participants express interest in the CDA program, Workforce Solutions will allow South 
Texas College to request additional funds. This award is for the period of January 1, 
2019 to December 31, 2019. 
 
This grant aligns to Strategic Direction #2, Access and Success, through coordinated 
efforts with Workforce Solutions to outreach prospective students to enroll at South 
Texas College in a Child Development Program.   
 

5. Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce Solutions, 
Childhood Conferences Participant Scholarship Funds in the amount of $10,000 
This grant provides funding for registration for 50 participants to attend the Special 
Needs and Leadership Conference and for 100 participants to attend the Child Care 
and Early Childhood Conference (conducted in Spanish), which is hosted by South 
Texas College’s Child Development and Early Childhood Program. If additional 
participants express interest in registering for the conferences, Workforce Solutions 
will allow South Texas College to request additional funds.  Conferences will take 

47



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 6, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

place on the following dates:  April 2019, June 2019 and October 2019. This award is 
for the period of January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.  
 
This grant aligns to Strategic Direction #2, Access and Success, by promoting a 
college-going culture through proactive outreach targeting prospective students to 
attend conferences. 
 

6. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in the amount 
of $67,733 
This grant provides funds to increase the number of courses offered in the 
competency-based (CB) format for the CB Bachelor’s Programs in Organizational 
Leadership and Technology Management.  Upper division and general education 
courses will be converted to the CB format to ensure the programs offer the same 
quality and resources as traditional bachelor’s programs.  The funding period is from 
January 2019 to January 1, 2024.   
 
This grant is aligned to Strategic Direction #2, Access and Success by increasing the 
number of competency-based courses in the Bachelor’s of Applied Technology and 
Science Programs.  
  

7. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in the amount 
of $14,906 
Grant funds will be used to create a handbook that standardizes and codifies 
guidelines for creating and administering competency-based (CB) programs for South 
Texas College (STC) faculty, staff, and administrators and other institutions of higher 
learning in accordance with pertinent accreditation standards, College policies and 
procedures, and best practices. The funding period is from January 2019 to February 
28, 2020.  
 
This award aligns to Strategic Direction #4, Collective Responsibility, as it encourages 
South Texas College faculty in the Division of Math, Science, and Bachelor Programs 
to work together within and across disciplines to design the best learning experiences 
for students, leading to their academic success, career readiness, and timely 
completion.  
 

8. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation, University of 
Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV) Subaward in the amount of $40,065 
South Texas College and the University of Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV) will 
collaborate to develop a 100% online competency-based (CB) Bachelor of Science 
Degree in Early Care and Early Childhood Studies (ECEC).  

48



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 7, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

The benefits of this project are increased enrollment, expanded inventory of CB 
courses, and additional pathways for students to earn bachelor’s degree that are 
affordable, accessible, and accelerated. In addition, STC will contribute $5,855 in-kind 
support for overseeing the planning, implementation and evaluation of the project. The 
funding period is from January 2019 to January 1, 2024.   
 
This award aligns to Strategic Direction #2, Access and Success, by creating a 
competency-based Bachelor of Science Degree in Early Care and Early Childhood 
Studies as an affordable, accessible, and accelerated path to completion of the 
bachelor degree program. 
 

9. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award 
 
The presented grants would provide up to $856,749 in additional funding for the College 
to provide services and opportunities throughout the region. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended the Board of Trustees approve and authorize accepting the following 
grant award(s) and use of related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent upon 
official award as appropriate.  

 
1. Texas Workforce Commission, Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) in the amount 

of $249,096 
2. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), Carl D. Perkins Basic 

Grant, Additional Funds (Reallocation), in the amount of $259,286 
3. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), 2018 College Readiness 

and Success Models for 60x30TX, Additional funds, in the amount of $175,088 
4. Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce Solutions, 

Child Development Associates Credential Program (CDA) in the amount of 
$40,575 

5. Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce Solutions, 
Childhood Conferences, participant scholarship funds in the amount of $10,000 

6. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in the Amount of 
$67,733 

7. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in the Amount of 
$14,906 

8. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation, University of 
Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV) Subaward in the Amount of $40,065 

9. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award 

49



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 8, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees:  
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes accepting the 
following grant awards and using related funds as authorized by each grant, contingent 
upon official award as appropriate: 

 
1. Texas Workforce Commission, Workforce Commission, Jobs and Education for 

Texans (JET) in the amount of $249,096 
2. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), Carl D. Perkins Basic 

Grant, Additional Funds (Reallocation), in the amount of $259,286 
3. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), 2018 College Readiness 

and Success Models for 60x30TX, Additional funds, in the amount of $175,088 
4. Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce Solutions, 

Child Development Associates Credential Program (CDA) in the amount of 
$40,575 

5. Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce Solutions, 
Childhood Conferences, participant scholarship funds in the amount of $10,000 

6. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in the Amount of 
$67,733 

7. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in the Amount of 
$14,906 

8. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant 
(TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation, University of 
Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV) Subaward in the Amount of $40,065 

9. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award 

 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed. M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
  

50



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 9, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Review and Discussion on Quarterly Investment Report 
A report on the College’s Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended November 
30, 2018, is being presented. The Board is asked to approve the Investment Report as 
presented. 
 
Purpose – Ms. Susan Anderson from Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. will present on the 
status of the College’s Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended November 30, 
2018 and provide a further update at the meeting. Ms. Anderson will present an overview 
of the investments, the annual interest earnings, the quarterly interest earnings, and 
economic overview. 
 
Justification – The report being presented will provide a brief review and update of the 
College’s Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended November 30, 2018 to the 
College’s Board of Trustees.  
 
Background – The Texas Public Funds Information Act (PFIA) and the College’s Policy 
#5120: Investment Policy and Investment Strategy Statement, requires an Investment 
Report to be prepared and submitted to the Board of Trustees and the President quarterly.  
 
Reviewers - The Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, Business Office 
staff, and Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. (Investment Advisor) have reviewed the 
information being presented. 
 
Enclosed Documents – A copy of the Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended 
November 30, 2018 follows in the packet for the Board’s information and review. 
 
Dr. Shirley A. Reed, President, and Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and 
Administrative Services, will be present at the Board Meeting to address any questions. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the Quarterly Investment Report for the Quarter Ended November 30, 2018, as 
presented. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the Quarterly Investment Report for the 
Quarter Ended November 30, 2018, as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President  

51



QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT
For the Quarter Ended

November 30, 2018

Prepared by

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.

The investment portfolio of the South Texas College is in co mpliance with the Public Funds Investment Act and the South 
Texas College Investment Policy.

Maria G. Elizondo, Vice President for Finance & Administrative Services                         Date

Myriam Lopez, Comptroller                                                                                                 Date

Paul R. Rodriguez, Board of Trustees, Desi gnated Investment Officer                              Date

Disclaimer: These reports were compiled using information provided by the South Texas College.  No procedures were performed to test the accuracy or 
completeness of this information.  The market values included in  these reports were obtained by Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. from sources believed to be 
accurate and represent proprietary valuation.  Due to market fluc tuations these levels are not necessarily reflective of current liquidation values.  Yield 
calculations are not determined using standard performance formulas, are not repres entative of total return yields and do not account for investment adviser 
fees.

52



Summary

Quarter End Results by Investment Category:

Asset Type Book Value Market Value Book Value Market Value Ave. Yield
DDA/MMA/NOW 129,694,895.36$   129,694,895.36$   85,920,445.77$     85,920,445.77$        1.57%
Pools 11,964,874.86       11,964,874.86       12,028,057.76       12,028,057.76          2.20%
CD/Security 108,710,326.64     108,710,326.64     140,607,156.08     140,607,156.08        2.34%

Totals 250,370,096.86$   250,370,096.86$   238,555,659.61$   238,555,659.61$      

     Quarterly Portfolio Performance          Year-to-Date Portfolio Performance     
Average Quarterly Yield 2.06% Average Quarter End Yield 2.06%

Rolling Three Month Treasury 2.28% Rolling Three Month Treasury 2.28%
Rolling Six Month Treasury 2.31% Rolling Six Month Treasury 2.31%

 TexPool 2.20%

    INTEREST EARNINGS     
 PRIOR YEAR   CURRENT YEAR  

Quarterly Interest Received $795,377.35 (Unaudited) $1,180,168.05 (Unaudited)
Accrued Interest-End of Quarter $120,538.65 (Unaudited) $128,871.60 (Unaudited)

Fiscal YTD Interest Received $795,377.35 (Unaudited) $1,180,168.05 (Unaudited)

Note: Average yields calculated using quarter end report average yield and adjusted book value, but do not include adviser fees and realized and 
unrealized gains or losses.

August 31, 2018 November 30, 2018

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.
Page 1.

53



Economic Overview 11/30/2018

 

The Federal Open Market Committee (FOMC) maintained the Fed Funds target range to 2.00% - 2.25% (Effective Fed Funds are trading +/-2.18%).  An additional increase is still anticipated in Dec 
2018.  The projected 2019 increases are less certain.  Gradual FRB portfolio reduction continues by limiting reinvestment of maturing holdings.  Third Quarter GDP grew 3.5% (second estimate).  
Employment/ Unemployment remain solid.  Crude oil decreased below +/-$60.  The Stock Markets are lower but trying to stabilize.  Housing appears to be weakening.  The flattening yield curve may 
impact long range FOMC actions.

0
250
500
750

1,000
1,250
1,500
1,750
2,000
2,250
2,500
2,750
3,000
3,250

S&P 500

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50
US Treasury Historical Yields - Since Nov 2015

Six Month T-Bill Two Year T-Note Ten Year T-Note

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

3.00

3.50 Treasury Yield Curves

November 30, 2017 August 31, 2018 November 30, 2018

0.00
0.50
1.00

1.50

2.00
2.50

3.00

3.50
4.00

4.50
5.00

5.50
US Treasury Historical Yields - Since 2006

Six Month T-Bill Two Year T-Note Ten Year T-Note

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.
Page 2.

54



 

Coupon/ Maturity Settlement Original Face\ Book Market Market Life  
Description Rating Discount Date Date Par Value Value Price Value (Days) Yield
BBVA - Operating 1.41% 12/01/18 11/30/18 16,623,623.93$   16,623,623.93$   1.00 16,623,623.93$   1 1.41%
BBVA - Payroll 1.41% 12/01/18 11/30/18 330,786.51          330,786.51          1.00 330,786.51          1 1.41%
BBVA - Student 1.41% 12/01/18 11/30/18 298,135.73          298,135.73          1.00 298,135.73          1 1.41%
BBVA - Operating Reserve (3) 0.00% 12/01/18 11/30/18 20,000,000.00     20,000,000.00     1.00 20,000,000.00     1 0.00%
BBVA - I&S Bond 96,02,03,04,07,10,14,15 1.41% 12/01/18 11/30/18 2,449,501.32       2,449,501.32       1.00 2,449,501.32       1 1.41%
BBVA - I&S Bond 99 & 07 1.41% 12/01/18 11/30/18 676.62                 676.62                 1.00 676.62                 1 1.41%
BBVA - Construction E&G Transfer 1.41% 12/01/18 11/30/18 5,435,625.19       5,435,625.19       1.00 5,435,625.19       1 1.41%
BBVA - Construction LT Bonds Series 2015 1.41% 12/01/18 11/30/18 209,016.27          209,016.27          1.00 209,016.27          1 1.41%
Green Bank MMA 2.32% 12/01/18 11/30/18 10,203,733.46     10,203,733.46     1.00 10,203,733.46     1 2.32%
NexBank MMA 2.48% 12/01/18 11/30/18 30,369,346.74     30,369,346.74     1.00 30,369,346.74     1 2.48%
TexPool LGIP AAAm 2.20% 12/01/18 11/30/18 12,028,057.76     12,028,057.76     1.00 12,028,057.76     1 2.20%

BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.15% 01/31/19 03/29/18 3,043,607.14       3,043,607.14       1.00 3,043,607.14       62 2.15%
BBVA Compass Bank CD 1.42% 03/01/19 05/18/17 5,107,938.28       5,107,938.28       1.00 5,107,938.28       91 1.42%
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.20% 03/01/19 03/29/18 5,074,381.22       5,074,381.22       1.00 5,074,381.22       91 2.20%
BBVA Compass Bank CD 1.43% 04/01/19 05/18/17 5,108,706.58       5,108,706.58       1.00 5,108,706.58       122 1.43%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 1.48% 05/01/19 05/18/17 5,112,481.55       5,112,481.55       1.00 5,112,481.55       152 1.48%
East West Bank CD 2.69% 05/01/19 11/07/18 5,008,851.33       5,008,851.33       1.00 5,008,851.33       152 2.69%
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.35% 05/04/19 05/04/18 1,517,874.95       1,517,874.95       1.00 1,517,874.95       155 2.35%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 1.63% 06/03/19 07/31/17 5,109,856.67       5,109,856.67       1.00 5,109,856.67       185 1.63%
East West Bank CD 2.74% 06/03/19 11/07/18 5,009,016.00       5,009,016.00       1.00 5,009,016.00       185 2.74%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 1.65% 07/01/19 07/31/17 5,111,218.55       5,111,218.55       1.00 5,111,218.55       213 1.65%
East West Bank CD 2.78% 07/01/19 11/07/18 5,009,147.74       5,009,147.74       1.00 5,009,147.74       213 2.78%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.38% 07/31/19 03/28/18 6,604,568.36       6,604,568.36       1.00 6,604,568.36       243 2.38%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.12% 08/01/19 01/30/18 10,177,979.37     10,177,979.37     1.00 10,177,979.37     244 2.12%
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.72% 08/31/19 08/31/18 15,202.74            15,202.74            1.00 15,202.74            274 2.72%
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.72% 08/31/19 08/31/18 201,432.86          201,432.86          1.00 201,432.86          274 2.72%
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.72% 08/31/19 08/31/18 117,477.05          117,477.05          1.00 117,477.05          274 2.72%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.42% 09/03/19 03/28/18 5,081,798.70       5,081,798.70       1.00 5,081,798.70       277 2.42%
Southside Bank CD 1.50% 09/06/19 09/18/17 5,075,422.66       5,075,422.66       1.00 5,075,422.66       280 1.50%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.16% 10/01/19 01/30/18 10,181,364.70     10,181,364.70     1.00 10,181,364.70     305 2.16%
East West Bank CD 2.87% 11/01/19 11/07/18 5,009,444.15       5,009,444.15       1.00 5,009,444.15       336 2.87%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.21% 11/01/19 01/30/18 3,055,679.34       3,055,679.34       1.00 3,055,679.34       336 2.21%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.35% 11/01/19 03/06/18 3,047,649.77       3,047,649.77       1.00 3,047,649.77       336 2.35%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.67% 01/07/20 09/11/18 502,233.58          502,233.58          1.00 502,233.58          403 2.67%
East West Bank CD 2.91% 01/07/20 10/23/18 1,003,114.03       1,003,114.03       1.00 1,003,114.03       403 2.91%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.55% 03/20/20 03/28/18 5,086,225.79       5,086,225.79       1.00 5,086,225.79       476 2.55%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.68% 04/01/20 05/04/18 5,067,932.07       5,067,932.07       1.00 5,067,932.07       488 2.68%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.70% 05/01/20 05/04/18 5,068,441.90       5,068,441.90       1.00 5,068,441.90       518 2.70%
East West Bank CD 2.99% 07/01/20 10/23/18 5,015,998.86       5,015,998.86       1.00 5,015,998.86       579 2.99%

Investment Holdings
November 30, 2018

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.
Page 3.

55



 

Coupon/ Maturity Settlement Original Face\ Book Market Market Life  
Description Rating Discount Date Date Par Value Value Price Value (Days) Yield

Investment Holdings
November 30, 2018

LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.94% 08/03/20 09/11/18 5,024,597.29       5,024,597.29       1.00 5,024,597.29       612 2.94%
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.96% 09/01/20 09/11/18 5,024,764.83       5,024,764.83       1.00 5,024,764.83       641 2.96%
East West Bank CD 3.06% 10/01/20 10/23/18 10,032,748.02     10,032,748.02     1.00 10,032,748.02     671 3.06%

238,555,659.61$ 238,555,659.61$ 238,555,659.61$ 191 2.06%
 (1) (2)

(1) Weighted average life - Pools, Money Market Funds, and Bank Deposits are assumed to have a one day maturity.

(3) Compensating Balances - although shown as a 0% coupon/discount, the account generates an earnings credit to offset depository bank fees.

(2) Weighted average yield to maturity - The weighted average yield to maturity is based on Adjusted Book Value, adviser fees and realized and unrealized gains/losses are not considered.  The pool and mutual fund 
yields are the average for the last month of the quarter.  Bank deposit yields are estimated from the monthly allocated earnings.

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.
Page 4.

56



DDA/MMA/ 
NOW
36%

Pools 
5%

CD/Security 
59%

Portfolio Composition

 $-

 $50

 $100

 $150

 $200

 $250

 $300

 $350

 $400

 $450

M
ill

io
ns

Quarter-End Book Value

0.00

0.50

1.00

1.50

2.00

2.50

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e

Total Portfolio Performance

 Weighted Average Yield  TexPool

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.
Page 5.

57



Coupon/ Maturity Original Face\ Purchases/ Sales/Adjust/ Original Face\
Description Discount Date Par Value Book Value Adjustments Maturities Par Value Book Value
BBVA - Operating 1.41% 12/01/18 30,999,642.11$   30,999,642.11$   –$                  (14,376,018.18)$ 16,623,623.93$   16,623,623.93$   
BBVA - Payroll 1.41% 12/01/18 309,603.45          309,603.45          21,183.06                                     330,786.51          330,786.51          
BBVA - Student 1.41% 12/01/18 919,315.15          919,315.15                                    (621,179.42)        298,135.73          298,135.73          
BBVA - Operating Reserve (3 ) 0.00% 12/01/18 25,000,000.00     25,000,000.00                               (5,000,000.00)     20,000,000.00     20,000,000.00     
BBVA - I&S Bond 96,02,03,04,07,10,14,15 1.41% 12/01/18 1,402,702.67       1,402,702.67       1,046,798.65                                2,449,501.32       2,449,501.32       
BBVA - I&S Bond 99 & 07 1.41% 12/01/18 549.69                 549.69                 126.93                                          676.62                 676.62                 
BBVA - Construction E&G T ransfer 1.41% 12/01/18 10,490,327.27     10,490,327.27                               (5,054,702.08)     5,435,625.19       5,435,625.19       
BBVA - Construction LT  Bonds Series 2015 1.41% 12/01/18 324,479.14          324,479.14                                    (115,462.87)        209,016.27          209,016.27          
Green Bank MMA 2.32% 12/01/18 10,148,626.16     10,148,626.16     55,107.30                                     10,203,733.46     10,203,733.46     
NexBank MMA 2.48% 12/01/18 50,099,649.72     50,099,649.72                               (19,730,302.98)   30,369,346.74     30,369,346.74     
TexPool LGIP 2.20% 12/01/18 11,964,874.86     11,964,874.86     63,182.90                                     12,028,057.76     12,028,057.76     

BTH Bank CD 1.10% 09/04/18 5,097,122.96       5,097,122.96                                 (5,097,122.96)     –                        –                        
Southside Bank CD 1.15% 10/01/18 5,086,632.58       5,086,632.58                                 (5,086,632.58)     –                        –                        
Southside Bank CD 1.20% 11/01/18 5,090,427.40       5,090,427.40                                 (5,090,427.40)     –                        –                        
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.15% 01/31/19 3,027,158.38       3,027,158.38       16,448.76                                     3,043,607.14       3,043,607.14       
BBVA Compass Bank CD 1.42% 03/01/19 5,089,689.09       5,089,689.09       18,249.19                                     5,107,938.28       5,107,938.28       
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.20% 03/01/19 5,000,000.00       5,000,000.00       74,381.22                                     5,074,381.22       5,074,381.22       
BBVA Compass Bank CD 1.43% 04/01/19 5,090,326.35       5,090,326.35       18,380.23                                     5,108,706.58       5,108,706.58       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 1.48% 05/01/19 5,093,457.23       5,093,457.23       19,024.32                                     5,112,481.55       5,112,481.55       
East West Bank CD 2.69% 05/01/19 –                        –                        5,008,851.33                                5,008,851.33       5,008,851.33       
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.35% 05/04/19 1,508,911.01       1,508,911.01       8,963.94                                       1,517,874.95       1,517,874.95       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 1.63% 06/03/19 5,089,147.18       5,089,147.18       20,709.49                                     5,109,856.67       5,109,856.67       
East West Bank CD 2.74% 06/03/19 –                        –                        5,009,016.00                                5,009,016.00       5,009,016.00       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 1.65% 07/01/19 5,090,250.07       5,090,250.07       20,968.48                                     5,111,218.55       5,111,218.55       
East West Bank CD 2.78% 07/01/19 –                        –                        5,009,147.74                                5,009,147.74       5,009,147.74       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.38% 07/31/19 6,565,106.13       6,565,106.13       39,462.23                                     6,604,568.36       6,604,568.36       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.12% 08/01/19 10,123,785.90     10,123,785.90     54,193.47                                     10,177,979.37     10,177,979.37     
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.72% 08/31/19 15,237.66            15,237.66                                      (34.92)                 15,202.74            15,202.74            
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.72% 08/31/19 201,924.34          201,924.34                                    (491.48)               201,432.86          201,432.86          
BBVA Compass Bank CD 2.72% 08/31/19 117,763.93          117,763.93                                    (286.88)               117,477.05          117,477.05          
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.42% 09/03/19 5,050,926.76       5,050,926.76       30,871.94                                     5,081,798.70       5,081,798.70       
Southside Bank CD 1.50% 09/06/19 5,056,305.66       5,056,305.66       19,117.00                                     5,075,422.66       5,075,422.66       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.16% 10/01/19 10,126,134.05     10,126,134.05     55,230.65                                     10,181,364.70     10,181,364.70     
East West Bank CD 2.87% 11/01/19 –                        –                        5,009,444.15                                5,009,444.15       5,009,444.15       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.21% 11/01/19 3,038,720.97       3,038,720.97       16,958.37                                     3,055,679.34       3,055,679.34       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.35% 11/01/19 3,029,668.72       3,029,668.72       17,981.05                                     3,047,649.77       3,047,649.77       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.67% 01/07/20 –                        –                        502,233.58                                   502,233.58          502,233.58          
East West Bank CD 2.91% 01/07/20 –                        –                        1,003,114.03                                1,003,114.03       1,003,114.03       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.55% 03/20/20 5,053,674.19       5,053,674.19       32,551.60                                     5,086,225.79       5,086,225.79       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.68% 04/01/20 5,033,851.44       5,033,851.44       34,080.63                                     5,067,932.07       5,067,932.07       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.70% 05/01/20 5,034,104.64       5,034,104.64       34,337.26                                     5,068,441.90       5,068,441.90       

Book and Market Value Comparison
August 31, 2018 November 30, 2018

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.
Page 6.

58



Coupon/ Maturity Original Face\ Purchases/ Sales/Adjust/ Original Face\
Description Discount Date Par Value Book Value Adjustments Maturities Par Value Book Value

Book and Market Value Comparison
August 31, 2018 November 30, 2018

East West Bank CD 2.99% 07/01/20 –                        –                        5,015,998.86                                5,015,998.86       5,015,998.86       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.94% 08/03/20 –                        –                        5,024,597.29                                5,024,597.29       5,024,597.29       
LegacyTexas Bank CD 2.96% 09/01/20 –                        –                        5,024,764.83                                5,024,764.83       5,024,764.83       
East West Bank CD 3.06% 10/01/20 –                        –                        10,032,748.02                              10,032,748.02     10,032,748.02     

TOTAL 250,370,096.86$ 250,370,096.86$ 48,358,224.50$ (60,172,661.75)$ 238,555,659.61$ 238,555,659.61$ 

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C.
Page 7.

59



Allocation
November 30, 2018
Book & Market Value

Total Operating Operating 
Construction Endowment Interest & 

Sinking Bonds GO 2015

BBVA - Operating  $                16,623,623.93  $    16,623,623.93  $                    –    $                –    $                     –    $                    –   
BBVA - Payroll 330,786.51                       330,786.51           
BBVA - Student 298,135.73                       298,135.73           
BBVA - Operating Reserve 20,000,000.00                  20,000,000.00      
BBVA - I&S Bond 96,02,03,04,07,10,14,15 2,449,501.32                           2,449,501.32 
BBVA - I&S Bond 99 & 07 676.62                              676.62                 
BBVA - Construction E&G Transfer 5,435,625.19                          5,435,625.19 
BBVA - Construction LT Bonds Series 2015 209,016.27                                209,016.27 
Green Bank MMA 10,203,733.46                         10,203,733.46 
NexBank MMA 30,369,346.74                         29,278,383.95 1,090,962.79       
TexPool LGIP 12,028,057.76                      11,413,337.37           614,720.39 

   
01/31/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 3,043,607.14                           3,043,607.14 
03/01/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 5,107,938.28                             5,107,938.28 
03/01/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 5,074,381.22                             5,074,381.22 
04/01/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 5,108,706.58                             5,108,706.58 
05/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,112,481.55                             5,112,481.55 
05/01/19–East West Bank CD 5,008,851.33                             5,008,851.33 
05/04/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 1,517,874.95                          1,517,874.95 
06/03/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,109,856.67                             5,109,856.67 
06/03/19–East West Bank CD 5,009,016.00                             5,009,016.00 
07/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,111,218.55                             5,111,218.55 
07/01/19–East West Bank CD 5,009,147.74                             5,009,147.74 
07/31/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 6,604,568.36                           6,604,568.36 
08/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 10,177,979.37                         10,177,979.37 
08/31/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 15,202.74                                15,202.74 
08/31/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 201,432.86                            201,432.86 
08/31/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 117,477.05                            117,477.05 
09/03/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,081,798.70                             5,081,798.70 
09/06/19–Southside Bank CD 5,075,422.66                             5,075,422.66 
10/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 10,181,364.70                         10,181,364.70 
11/01/19–East West Bank CD 5,009,444.15                             5,009,444.15 
11/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 3,055,679.34                             3,055,679.34 
11/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 3,047,649.77                          3,047,649.77 
01/07/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 502,233.58                                502,233.58 
01/07/20–East West Bank CD 1,003,114.03                          1,003,114.03 
03/20/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,086,225.79                             5,086,225.79 
04/01/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,067,932.07                             5,067,932.07 
05/01/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,068,441.90                             5,068,441.90 

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. Page 8.

60



Allocation
November 30, 2018
Book & Market Value

Total Operating Operating 
Construction Endowment Interest & 

Sinking Bonds GO 2015

07/01/20–East West Bank CD 5,015,998.86                          5,015,998.86 
08/03/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,024,597.29                             5,024,597.29 
09/01/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,024,764.83                             5,024,764.83 
10/01/20–East West Bank CD 10,032,748.02                         10,032,748.02 

Totals  $              238,555,659.61  $  186,068,926.86  $ 38,139,567.21  $  334,112.65  $  13,804,036.62  $      209,016.27 

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. Page 9.

61



Allocation
August 31, 2018
Book & Market Value

Total Operating Operating 
Construction Endowment Interest & 

Sinking Bonds GO 2015

BBVA - Operating  $                30,999,642.11  $    30,999,642.11  $                    –    $                –    $                     –    $                    –   
BBVA - Payroll 309,603.45                       309,603.45           
BBVA - Student 919,315.15                       919,315.15           
BBVA - Operating Reserve 25,000,000.00                  25,000,000.00      
BBVA - I&S Bond 96,02,03,04,07,10,14,15 1,402,702.67                           1,402,702.67 
BBVA - I&S Bond 99 & 07 549.69                              549.69                 
BBVA - Construction E&G Transfer 10,490,327.27                      10,490,327.27 
BBVA - Construction LT Bonds Series 2015 324,479.14                                324,479.14 
Green Bank MMA 10,148,626.16                         10,148,626.16 
NexBank MMA 50,099,649.72                         49,015,069.27 1,084,580.45       
TexPool LGIP 11,964,874.86                      11,353,383.56           611,491.30 

   
09/04/18–BTH Bank CD 5,097,122.96                             5,097,122.96 
10/01/18–Southside Bank CD 5,086,632.58                             5,086,632.58 
11/01/18–Southside Bank CD 5,090,427.40                             5,090,427.40 
01/31/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 3,027,158.38                           3,027,158.38 
03/01/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 5,089,689.09                             5,089,689.09 
03/01/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 5,000,000.00                             5,000,000.00 
04/01/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 5,090,326.35                             5,090,326.35 
05/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,093,457.23                             5,093,457.23 
05/04/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 1,508,911.01                          1,508,911.01 
06/03/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,089,147.18                             5,089,147.18 
07/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,090,250.07                             5,090,250.07 
07/31/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 6,565,106.13                           6,565,106.13 
08/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 10,123,785.90                         10,123,785.90 
08/31/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 15,237.66                                15,237.66 
08/31/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 201,924.34                            201,924.34 
08/31/19–BBVA Compass Bank CD 117,763.93                            117,763.93 
09/03/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,050,926.76                             5,050,926.76 
09/06/19–Southside Bank CD 5,056,305.66                             5,056,305.66 
10/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 10,126,134.05                         10,126,134.05 
11/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 3,038,720.97                             3,038,720.97 
11/01/19–LegacyTexas Bank CD 3,029,668.72                          3,029,668.72 
03/20/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,053,674.19                             5,053,674.19 
04/01/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,033,851.44                             5,033,851.44 
05/01/20–LegacyTexas Bank CD 5,034,104.64                             5,034,104.64 

Totals  $              250,370,096.86  $  200,488,186.45  $ 36,530,916.72  $  334,925.93  $  12,691,588.62  $      324,479.14 

Valley View Consulting, L.L.C. Page 10.

62



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 10, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Presentation of the Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the Period 
Ending November 30, 2018 

Ms. Kelly R. Salazar from Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP, will provide the 
Board with the Delinquent Tax Collection Report through November 30, 2018. 
 
No action is required. 
 
  

63



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

First Quarter Delinquent Tax Collection Report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP 
1512 S. Lone Star Way, Edinburg, Texas 78539 Phone: 956-383-4500 Fax: 956-383-7820 

64



LAW OFFICES 
OF 

LINEBARGER  GOGGAN  BLAIR & SAMPSON, LLP 
ATTORNEYS AT LAW 

1512 S. LONE STAR WAY 

EDINBURG, TEXAS  78539 

___________________ 

Telephone: (956) 383-4500 

Facsimile: (956) 383-7820 

 
      January 29, 2018 
Dr. Shirley A. Reed, President        
Mr. Paul R. Rodriguez, Chairman 
Rose Benavidez, Vice Chair 
Roy de León, Secretary 
Victoria Cantu, Member  
Gary Gurwitz, Member 
Dr. Alejo Salinas, Jr., Member 
Rene Guajardo, Member 
South Texas College 
3201 West Pecan Boulevard 
McAllen, Texas 78501 
 
 
 
Dear Dr. Reed: 
 

Our firm is pleased to submit a summary of our collection efforts on behalf of South Texas 
College.  We present this summary in an effort to keep you and the Board of Trustees informed as to 
our efforts and activities. 
 

Enclosed, you will find summaries of the different collection efforts made by our office.  
Understanding the need of each County is unique, we have developed a team approach that 
individualizes the collection efforts in each area.  The Hidalgo County team is led by Mrs. Lucy Canales 
and the Starr County team is led by Ms. Kelly R. Salazar.  Each attorney brings many years of experience 
to this endeavor and coordinates a team effort in which will result in better collections for South Texas 
College. 
 
 

Very Truly Yours,      Very Truly Yours, 

                                  
Lucy G. Canales      Kelly R. Salazar 
Capital Partner      Partner 

 

RE: Delinquent Tax Collection Report from September 1, 2018 through November 30, 
2018 

65



 

 

LINEBARGER GOGGAN BLAIR & SAMPSON APPROACH 
 
The delinquent tax collection program for South Texas College continues 
to emphasize two basic premises:  work with individual taxpayers to collect 
taxes owed to South Texas College and use tool of litigation as a final 
option. 
 
 

 
TAXPAYER ASSISTANT PROGRAMS 
Our firm has always placed great emphasis on a taxpayer assistance program, 

which complements every facet of our collection activities. Linebarger provides 

fair, equitable assistance to all taxpayers throughout the collection process. Our 

experience in assisting taxpayers gives us the understanding and the knowledge 

necessary to resolve tax-related problems for your taxpayers. Linebarger’s 

collection activities, and particularly our mailings and property inspections, 

generate a huge number of telephone calls, taxpayer walk-ins, and payment 

agreements.  

HIDALGO COUNTY 

STARR COUNTY 

 
LITIGATION SUMMARY 
 
Filing a lawsuit to collect delinquent taxes is used as a final resort; after 
diligent efforts to contact and work with taxpayers are fully exhausted.  
Once the decision to file suit has been made, a complete property title 
search is conducted, the taxable property is further identified and all 
interested parties including all lien holders, are identified and served with 
notice of the lawsuit.   
 
 

 Over 11,607 Incoming/Outgoing Calls 

 Over 2,533 Taxpayer Walk-Ins 

 Over 1,808 Property Inspections 

 Over 282 Payment Agreements Initiated 

 17,744 Statements Mailed 

 Over 1,142 Incoming/Outgoing Calls 

 Over 240 Property Inspections 

 Over 437 Taxpayer Walk-Ins 

66



 

 

Hidalgo County 

Litigation Activity Cases Base, Penalty and 
Interest 

 Lawsuits/Interventions Filed 355 $186,385 

 Lawsuits Disposed 665 $480,412 

 Judgments Taken 

 Tax Warrants 
 

296 

31 

 

$162,176 

$18,979 

 

 

Starr County 

Litigation Activity Cases Base, Penalty and 
Interest 

 Lawsuits Filed 356 $186,385 

 Lawsuits Disposed 

 Judgments Taken 
 

447 

229 

 

$339,997 

$162,176 

 

 
Tax Sale Activity 
 
Our Office regularly monitors all judgments we take on behalf of South 
Texas College.  During this reporting period, three (3) tax sales were 
conducted in Hidalgo County placing fifty five (55) properties for sale.   
 

Tax Sale Result Number of 
Properties 

Base, Penalty 
 and Interest 

Pulled-Paid Before Sale 8 $3,735 
Pulled-Payment Agreement 3 $1,436 
Struck Off 5 $16,808 
Sold 12 $9,055 
Pulled-Other 27 $24,928 

 
  

67



 

 

 

COLLECTION HIGHLIGHTS 
 

Hidalgo County Collections 
 

 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Starr County Collections 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

Source: Starr Co. Tax Office  

$82,100 $86,898 

$47,417 
$52,067 

Sept. 2017-Nov. 2017
DTR Bal. $3,588,927

Sept. 2018-Nov. 2018
DTR Bal. $3,736,477

P&I Base Tax

$129,516
$138,965

Source: Hidalgo Co. Tax Office  

$717,038 $737,350 

$230,748 $234,743 

Sept. 2017-Nov. 2017
Adj. DTR $8,741,107

Sept.  2018-Nov. 2018
Adj. DTR $8,869,050

P&I

Base
Tax

$972,093$947,786

68



 

 

FUTURE OVERVIEW 

 

Review of Pending Judgments and the Filing of Additional Lawsuits 
 During the next quarter, we will continue to work pending lawsuits for 

full payment or payment agreements.  We will also continue researching 

the delinquent tax roll for possible new lawsuits; both real and personal 

property accounts.   

 We will place high priority on top delinquent accounts for collections that 

are in litigation. 

 We will continue filing lawsuits every month on delinquent accounts 

owing 3 or more years. 

 
Continued Monitoring of Bankruptcy Accounts 

 As a continuation of our standard operating practice, we will actively 

monitor and verify accounts in bankruptcy for the payment of taxes, 

penalties, and interest owed to South Texas College. 

 We will continue to represent the District in court on all bankruptcy 

matters. 

 

Mailing Program 
Scheduled mailings on behalf of the South Texas College for the following 
month:  
 

 January 2019 (Completed) 

 February 2019 

 March 2019 
 

Scheduling of Property Sales 
As properties are taken to judgment, they will be reviewed and checked 
for payment.  Those judgments with no taxpayer response will be further 
reviewed and scheduled for possible tax sale.   
 
Property Visits 
On site visits are being conducted on targeted accounts weekly. 

 
Execution of the work plan established for the South Texas College will include the constant 

monitoring of collection figures in order to adjust resources and enforce the collection of 

delinquent taxes.  Our collection efforts will also include prosecuting pending suits to conclusion, 

mailing monthly letters, and filing new suits in order to maximize the collection of taxes.  We will 

continue to work closely with you and your administrative staff to provide assistance and advice 

on all property tax matters, including changes in the law brought about by amendments to the 

Texas Property Tax Code. 

69



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 11, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Review and Action as Necessary on Renewal of Delinquent Tax 
Collection Services for Hidalgo County and Starr County 

Approval to renew the contract with Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP to provide 
delinquent tax collection services for Hidalgo and Starr counties at a 15 percent fee based 
on the amount of delinquent tax, penalty, and interest collected for a period from May 1, 
2019 through April 30, 2020 is requested. 
 
Purpose – The delinquent tax collection services contract with Linebarger Goggan Blair 
& Sampson, LLP expires on April 30, 2019.  Approval to renew the contract for a one-
year period is needed in order to provide collection services for delinquent property taxes 
that are owed to the College. 
 
Justification - Property Tax Code Section 6.30 (c) states that the governing body of a 
taxing unit may contract with any competent attorney to represent the unit to enforce the 
collection of delinquent taxes.  The attorney’s compensation is set in the contract, but the 
total amount of compensation provided may not exceed 20 percent of the amount of 
delinquent tax, penalty, and interest collected.  The Board of Trustees previously 
approved a 15 percent penalty fee. 
 
Background – The contract for delinquent tax collection services was awarded to 
Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP at the January 31, 2017 Board meeting for the 
contract period beginning May 1, 2017 through April 30, 2018 with two (2) one-year 
renewal options. This is the last renewal of the two (2) one-year renewal options. 
 
Funding Source – The delinquent tax collection services fee of 15 percent is paid to the 
delinquent tax attorney from the tax collection revenues collected by Hidalgo County and 
Starr County. 

Enclosed Documents - A Summary of Cumulative Delinquent Tax Levy Collections by 
Fiscal Year and a Summary Total Tax Levy Uncollected is presented in the packet for the 
Board’s information and review. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the renewal of the Delinquent Tax Contracts for Starr County and Hidalgo County at a 15 
percent fee based on the amount of delinquent tax, penalty, and interest collected with 
Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP for one-year period from May 1, 2019 to April 
30, 2020 as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the renewal of the Delinquent Tax Contracts for Starr County and Hidalgo 
County at a 15 percent fee based on the amount of delinquent tax, penalty, and interest 
collected with Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP for one-year period from May 1, 
2019 to April 30, 2020 as presented. 

70



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 12, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

The Following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the renewal of the Delinquent Tax 
Contracts for Starr County and Hidalgo County at a 15 percent fee based on the amount 
of delinquent tax, penalty, and interest collected with Linebarger Goggan Blair & 
Sampson, LLP for one-year period from May 1, 2019 to April 30, 2020 as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
 
  

71



1 Not including penalty and interest and other collections such as special inventory, refunds, and redemptions 

South Texas College 
Summary of Cumulative Delinquent Tax Levy Collections by Fiscal Year  

Not Including Penalty, Interest, and Other Collections1 
Hidalgo County and Starr County 

As of Each Fiscal Year End 

 
Fiscal Year 

Total Cumulative 
Delinquent  

Tax Levy (Adjusted)  

Delinquent 
Tax Levy 

Collected for 
Current and 
Prior Years 

% 
Delinquent 

Tax Levy 
Collected 

Cumulative 
Delinquent  

Tax Levy  
Uncollected at 
Fiscal Year End 

% Delinquent 
Tax Levy 

Uncollected 

8/31/2002 3,244,428.26 1,006,249.37 31.01% 2,238,178.89 68.99% 

8/31/2003 3,615,648.58 1,166,448.10 32.26% 2,449,200.48 67.74% 

8/31/2004 5,091,331.97 1,751,912.15 34.41% 3,339,419.82 65.59% 

8/31/2005 5,978,239.23 2,085,693.50 34.89% 3,892,545.73 65.11% 

8/31/2006 6,746,745.98 2,358,746.57 34.96% 4,387,999.41 65.04% 

8/31/2007 7,224,499.45 2,769,522.98 38.34% 4,454,976.47 61.66% 

8/31/2008 7,129,924.85 2,420,602.01 33.95% 4,709,322.84 66.05% 

8/31/2009 7,556,574.12 2,498,540.41 33.06% 5,058,033.71 66.94% 

8/31/2010 8,258,756.74 2,729,121.63 33.05% 5,529,635.11 66.95% 

8/31/2011 8,530,967.53 2,523,445.77 29.58% 6,007,521.76 70.42% 

8/31/2012 8,752,982.60 2,582,406.29 29.50% 6,170,576.31 70.50% 

8/31/2013 8,447,972.68 2,451,424.36 29.02% 5,996,548.32 70.98% 

8/31/2014 8,177,151.97 2,332,595.47 28.53% 5,844,556.50 71.47% 

8/31/2015 7,962,716.58 2,398,069.32 30.12% 5,564,647.26 69.88% 

8/31/2016 8,126,450.21 2,363,719.49 29.09% 5,762,730.72 70.91% 

8/31/2017 8,425,936.98 2,438,224.01 28.94% 5,987,712.97 71.06% 

8/31/2018 8,862,522.79 2,687,463.75 30.32% 6,175,059.04 69.68% 

12/31/2018 9,213,310.69 889,345.08 9.65% 8,323,965.61 90.35% 
 

Fiscal Year 

Total Cumulative 
Delinquent  

Tax Levy (Adjusted)  

Delinquent 
Tax Levy 

Collected for 
Current and 
Prior Years 

% 
Delinquent 

Tax Levy 
Collected 

Cumulative 
Delinquent  

Tax Levy  
Uncollected at 
Fiscal Year End 

% 
Delinquent 

Tax Levy 
Uncollected 

8/31/2002 578,910.06 80,941.58 13.98% 497,968.48 86.02% 

8/31/2003 667,348.56 83,672.46 12.54% 583,676.10 87.46% 

8/31/2004 957,436.55 128,665.07 13.44% 828,771.48 86.56% 

8/31/2005 1,249,563.04 217,103.60 17.37% 1,032,459.44 82.63% 

8/31/2006 1,355,472.42 189,483.47 13.98% 1,165,988.95 86.02% 

8/31/2007 1,518,552.99 195,526.47 12.88% 1,323,026.52 87.12% 

8/31/2008 1,655,912.68 173,773.17 10.49% 1,482,139.51 89.51% 

8/31/2009 1,816,829.44 218,163.48 12.01% 1,598,665.96 87.99% 

8/31/2010 1,979,486.75 185,900.69 9.39% 1,793,586.06 90.61% 

8/31/2011 2,180,147.10 210,889.63 9.67% 1,969,257.47 90.33% 

8/31/2012 2,320,220.72 206,007.67 8.88% 2,114,213.05 91.12% 

8/31/2013 2,466,505.02 179,535.66 7.28% 2,286,969.36 92.72% 

8/31/2014 2,707,453.40 233,429.98 8.62% 2,474,023.42 91.38% 

8/31/2015 2,837,289.99 214,046.85 7.54% 2,623,243.14 92.46% 

8/31/2016 3,077,455.22 222,939.72 7.24% 2,854,515.50 92.76% 

8/31/2017 3,394,185.81 355,066.15 10.46% 3,039,119.66 89.54% 

8/31/2018 3,549,970.60 364,080.40 10.26% 3,185,890.20 89.74% 

12/31/2018 3,832,761.22 86,781.94 2.26% 3,745,979.28 97.74% 
 

Hidalgo 
County 

Starr 
County 

72



1 Not including penalty and interest and other collections such as special inventory, refunds, and redemptions 

South Texas College 
Summary of Cumulative Delinquent Tax Levy Collections by Fiscal Year  

Not Including Penalty, Interest, and Other Collections 1 
As of Each Fiscal Year End 

 
Hidalgo and Starr County  -  Combined 

 

 
 

Fiscal Year 

Total Cumulative 
Delinquent 

Tax Levy 
(Adjusted)  

Delinquent 
Tax Levy 

Collected for 
Current and 
Prior Years 

% 
Delinquent 

Tax Levy 
Collected 

Cumulative 
Delinquent 

Tax Levy  
Uncollected at 
Fiscal Year End 

% 
Delinquent 

Tax Levy 
Uncollected 

8/31/2002 3,823,338.32 1,087,190.95 28.44% 2,736,147.37 71.56% 

8/31/2003 4,282,997.14 1,250,120.56 29.19% 3,032,876.58 70.81% 

8/31/2004 6,048,768.52 1,880,577.22 31.09% 4,168,191.30 68.91% 

8/31/2005 7,227,802.27 2,302,797.10 31.86% 4,925,005.17 68.14% 

8/31/2006 8,102,218.40 2,548,230.04 31.45% 5,553,988.36 68.55% 

8/31/2007 8,743,052.44 2,965,049.45 33.91% 5,778,002.99 66.09% 

8/31/2008 8,785,837.53 2,594,375.18 29.53% 6,191,462.35 70.47% 

8/31/2009 9,373,403.56 2,716,703.89 28.98% 6,656,699.67 71.02% 

8/31/2010 10,238,243.49 2,915,022.32 28.47% 7,323,221.17 71.53% 

8/31/2011 10,711,114.63 2,734,335.40 25.53% 7,976,779.23 74.47% 

8/31/2012 11,073,203.32 2,788,413.96 25.18% 8,284,789.36 74.82% 

8/31/2013 10,914,477.70 2,630,960.02 24.11% 8,283,517.68 75.89% 

8/31/2014 10,884,605.37 2,566,025.45 23.57% 8,318,579.92 76.43% 

8/31/2015 10,800,006.57 2,612,116.17 24.19% 8,187,890.40 75.81% 

8/31/2016 11,203,905.43 2,586,659.21 23.09% 8,617,246.22 76.91% 

8/31/2017 11,820,122.79 2,793,290.16 23.63% 9,026,832.63 76.37% 

8/31/2018 12,412,493.39 3,051,544.15 24.58% 9,360,949.24 75.42% 

12/31/2018 13,046,071.91 976,127.02 7.48% 12,069,944.89 92.52% 
 

73



 T
ax

 Y
ea

r 
Ad

ju
st

ed
 

Ta
x 

Le
vy

Ta
x 

Le
vy

C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

 W
ith

ou
t 

Pe
na

lty
 a

nd
 In

te
re

st
Ta

x 
Le

vy
U

nc
ol

le
ct

ed

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge
 o

f 
U

nc
ol

le
ct

ed
 

Le
vy

Pe
na

lty
, I

nt
er

es
t, 

an
d 

O
th

er
 

C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

Ta
x 

Le
vy

 C
ol

le
ct

ed
 

In
cl

ud
in

g 
Pe

na
lty

, 
In

te
re

st
, 

an
d 

O
th

er
 

C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

%
 C

ol
le

ct
ed

 
In

cl
ud

in
g 

Pe
na

lty
, 

In
te

re
st

, a
nd

 O
th

er
 

C
ol

le
ct

io
ns

19
96

10
,2

11
,7

19
.0

0
10

,1
56

,8
18

.9
8

(5
4,

90
0.

02
)

-0
.5

4%
61

6,
04

9.
92

10
,7

72
,8

68
.9

0
10

5.
50

%

19
97

10
,5

89
,6

85
.5

0
10

,5
29

,6
89

.3
8

(5
9,

99
6.

12
)

-0
.5

7%
64

3,
47

1.
24

11
,1

73
,1

60
.6

2
10

5.
51

%

19
98

10
,9

50
,5

73
.0

4
10

,8
82

,6
45

.8
8

(6
7,

92
7.

16
)

-0
.6

2%
72

3,
39

8.
48

11
,6

06
,0

44
.3

6
10

5.
99

%

19
99

11
,6

22
,7

14
.4

5
11

,5
45

,3
80

.6
3

(7
7,

33
3.

82
)

-0
.6

7%
42

3,
89

0.
41

11
,9

69
,2

71
.0

4
10

2.
98

%

20
00

12
,5

09
,1

26
.0

0
12

,4
19

,2
80

.3
3

(8
9,

84
5.

67
)

-0
.7

2%
88

5,
03

6.
91

13
,3

04
,3

17
.2

4
10

6.
36

%

20
01

13
,8

60
,7

75
.0

0
13

,7
64

,5
72

.3
8

(9
6,

20
2.

62
)

-0
.6

9%
80

5,
47

7.
35

14
,5

70
,0

49
.7

3
10

5.
12

%

20
02

29
,2

74
,8

24
.6

7
29

,0
53

,7
39

.1
9

(2
21

,0
85

.4
8)

-0
.7

6%
1,

49
5,

97
5.

36
30

,5
49

,7
14

.5
5

10
4.

35
%

20
03

30
,5

20
,4

00
.0

0
30

,2
87

,6
03

.9
3

(2
32

,7
96

.0
7)

-0
.7

6%
1,

46
8,

30
1.

57
31

,7
55

,9
05

.5
0

10
4.

05
%

20
04

32
,8

61
,1

57
.0

0
32

,6
00

,5
25

.8
2

(2
60

,6
31

.1
8)

-0
.7

9%
1,

71
7,

83
0.

15
34

,3
18

,3
55

.9
7

10
4.

43
%

20
05

34
,3

63
,2

87
.7

6
34

,0
56

,1
23

.8
6

(3
07

,1
63

.9
0)

-0
.8

9%
1,

61
5,

39
2.

22
35

,6
71

,5
16

.0
8

10
3.

81
%

20
06

36
,8

28
,7

38
.0

0
36

,5
17

,2
85

.7
1

(3
11

,4
52

.2
9)

-0
.8

5%
1,

76
5,

36
7.

73
38

,2
82

,6
53

.4
4

10
3.

95
%

20
07

41
,5

21
,3

32
.0

0
41

,1
68

,7
56

.0
7

(3
52

,5
75

.9
3)

-0
.8

5%
2,

47
1,

82
0.

07
43

,6
40

,5
76

.1
4

10
5.

10
%

20
08

44
,6

23
,5

30
.0

0
44

,2
27

,7
18

.9
8

(3
95

,8
11

.0
2)

-0
.8

9%
2,

72
3,

06
4.

81
46

,9
50

,7
83

.7
9

10
5.

22
%

20
09

45
,0

94
,3

29
.0

0
44

,6
33

,4
64

.7
5

(4
60

,8
64

.2
5)

-1
.0

2%
1,

75
7,

07
1.

45
46

,3
90

,5
36

.2
0

10
2.

87
%

20
10

44
,7

45
,0

08
.9

7
44

,2
58

,6
93

.7
8

(4
86

,3
15

.1
9)

-1
.0

9%
1,

28
0,

87
3.

49
45

,5
39

,5
67

.2
7

10
1.

78
%

20
11

44
,1

00
,4

16
.8

4
43

,4
82

,3
39

.5
1

(6
18

,0
77

.3
3)

-1
.4

0%
1,

11
8,

80
4.

23
44

,6
01

,1
43

.7
4

10
1.

14
%

20
12

44
,2

41
,5

30
.7

1
43

,6
26

,6
62

.1
5

(6
14

,8
68

.5
6)

-1
.3

9%
1,

05
9,

59
2.

68
44

,6
86

,2
54

.8
3

10
1.

01
%

20
13

45
,2

10
,2

76
.7

3
44

,3
69

,0
32

.9
5

(8
41

,2
43

.7
8)

-1
.8

6%
1,

12
3,

46
2.

70
45

,4
92

,4
95

.6
5

10
0.

62
%

20
14

56
,8

69
,7

23
.4

5
55

,7
66

,7
11

.0
5

(1
,1

03
,0

12
.4

0)
-1

.9
4%

1,
96

9,
05

3.
65

57
,7

35
,7

64
.7

0
10

1.
52

%

20
15

60
,5

54
,9

35
.2

4
59

,1
26

,9
18

.7
3

(1
,4

28
,0

16
.5

1)
-2

.3
6%

1,
45

9,
93

0.
97

60
,5

86
,8

49
.7

0
10

0.
05

%

20
16

63
,0

75
,9

62
.6

9
61

,3
05

,4
84

.4
7

(1
,7

70
,4

78
.2

2)
-2

.8
1%

1,
04

5,
58

2.
97

62
,3

51
,0

67
.4

4
98

.8
5%

20
17

66
,4

39
,2

35
.9

8
64

,2
19

,8
88

.6
1

(2
,2

19
,3

47
.3

7)
-3

.3
4%

1,
44

7,
30

8.
39

65
,6

67
,1

97
.0

0
98

.8
4%

D
el

in
qu

en
t S

ub
to

ta
l

79
0,

06
9,

28
2.

03
77

7,
99

9,
33

7.
14

(1
2,

06
9,

94
4.

89
)

-1
.5

3%
29

,6
16

,7
56

.7
5

$ 
   

 
80

7,
61

6,
09

3.
90

$ 
   

  
10

2.
22

%

20
18

*
67

,2
94

,7
79

.5
7

27
,7

70
,3

09
.5

5
   

   
   

  
(3

9,
52

4,
47

0.
02

)
-5

8.
73

%
31

3,
59

6.
90

28
,0

83
,9

06
.4

5
41

.7
3%

To
ta

l
85

7,
36

4,
06

1.
60

$ 
 

80
5,

76
9,

64
6.

69
$ 

   
 

(5
1,

59
4,

41
4.

91
)

$ 
   

-6
.0

2%
29

,9
30

,3
53

.6
5

$ 
  

83
5,

70
0,

00
0.

35
$ 

   
97

.4
7%

* T
he

 T
ax

 L
ev

y 
U

nc
ol

le
ct

ed
 fo

r L
ev

y 
20

18
 w

ill 
be

co
m

e 
de

lin
qu

en
t 7

/1
/2

01
9-

un
au

di
te

d

So
ut

h 
Te

xa
s 

C
ol

le
ge

 
Su

m
m

ar
y 

of
 T

ot
al

 T
ax

 L
ev

y 
U

nc
ol

le
ct

ed
In

cl
ud

in
g 

Pe
na

lty
, I

nt
er

es
t, 

an
d 

O
th

er
 C

ol
le

ct
io

ns
 B

y 
Ta

x 
Ye

ar
 fo

r H
id

al
go

 C
ou

nt
y 

an
d 

St
ar

r C
ou

nt
y

A
s 

of
 D

ec
em

be
r 3

1,
 2

01
8

74



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 13, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Review and Action as Necessary on Resolution to Impose a 15% 
Penalty for Collection of Delinquent Taxes as Authorized Under 

Section 33.07 of the Texas Property Tax Code for Delinquent Tax 
Attorney Fees and Expenses 

Approval of the Resolution imposing a 15 percent penalty for collection of delinquent 
taxes as authorized under Section 33.07 of the Texas Property Tax Code for attorney 
fees and expenses is requested. 

Purpose – A resolution authorizing the College to levy an additional penalty of 15 percent 
to the delinquent 2018 district taxes is needed in order to recover the cost of attorney 
fees and expenses for the collection of delinquent taxes, penalty, and interest due on 
2018 taxes which will remain delinquent on July 1, 2019. 

Justification – Board action will be necessary on the Resolution previously prepared by 
legal counsel to approve the 15 percent additional penalty for the payment of attorney 
fees and expenses for the collection cost of delinquent taxes for Hidalgo County and Starr 
County collection services.  
 
According to Section 6.30 (c), Attorneys Representing Taxing Units, of the Texas 
Property Tax Code, the total amount of the contracted attorney’s compensation may not 
exceed 20 percent of the amount of delinquent tax, penalty, and interest collected. 
 
Background – The Resolution imposing a 15 percent penalty for the collection of tax year 
2017 delinquent taxes, the College’s prior levy tax year, was approved by the Board on 
January 30, 2018. 
 
Enclosed Documents – The Resolution to be completed with the delinquent tax attorney 
firm awarded is provided in the packet for the Board’s review and information. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the Resolution imposing a 15% penalty for collection of delinquent taxes as authorized 
under Section 33.07 of the Texas Property Tax Code for Board approval as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the Resolution imposing a 15% penalty for collection of delinquent taxes as 
authorized under Section 33.07 of the Texas Property Tax Code for Board approval as 
presented. 
  

75



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 14, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

The Following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the Resolution imposing a 15% penalty 
for collection of delinquent taxes as authorized under Section 33.07 of the Texas Property 
Tax Code for Board approval as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
  

76



RESOLUTION  

 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SOUTH 

TEXAS COLLEGE LEVYING AN ADDITIONAL PENALTY OF 

15% TO THE DELINQUENT 2018 DISTRICT TAXES PURSUANT 

TO SECTION 33.07 OF THE STATE OF TEXAS PROPERTY TAX 

CODE. 

 

 

STATE OF TEXAS   §    

 

 

COUNTY OF STARR  § 

 

AND HIDALGO   §   

 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE  § 

DISTRICT 

 

WHEREAS, South Texas College (the “College”) has an amount of uncollected 

delinquent taxes due and owing the College for the tax year 2018; and 

 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 33.07 of the Texas Property Code, the Board of 

Trustees is authorized to levy an additional penalty to recover the cost of collection of the 

amount of taxes, penalty, and interest due on 2018 taxes which remain delinquent on July 1, 

2019; and, 

 WHEREAS, the College has contracted Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson, LLP 

for delinquent tax collection in Hidalgo County and Starr County; and 

 WHEREAS, both contracts provide for compensation, pursuant to Section 6.30 of the 

Texas Property Tax Code, at a rate of fifteen (15%) percent of collections. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF SOUTH 

TEXAS COLLEGE, THAT; 

 

1. Pursuant to Section 33.07 of the Texas Property Tax Code, there is hereby levied on 

all 2018 delinquent taxes, the penalty of fifteen (15%) percent on the amount of taxes, 

penalty and interest due as of July 1, 2019, and thereafter for taxes levied for the tax 

year 2018.  Such penalty is for the purpose of defraying costs of collection under the 

contract with the attorneys representing the College pursuant to the authority of 

Section 6.30 of the Texas Property Tax Code. 

77



2. The Tax Assessor-Collector for the College are hereby ordered and authorized to 

deliver a Notice of Delinquency and Notice of Additional Penalty to the property 

owners who have outstanding delinquent taxes for the tax year 2018 at least thirty 

(30) and not more than sixty (60) days before July 1, 2019. 

3. A tax lien shall be attached to the property on which the 2018 tax is imposed to secure 

payment of the penalty herein adopted and levied. 

 

CONSIDERED, PASSED, APPROVED AND SIGNED this_______day of ________, 2019 

at a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of South Texas College at which a quorum was 

present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Texas Government Code 

Chapter 551. 

 

SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 

 

 

BY:________________________________ 

                Chairman 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

BY:__________________________________ 

       Secretary 

  

 

    

 

 

78



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 15, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Review and Action as Necessary on Renewal Agreement with Access 
Esperanza Clinic on Outpatient Clinic at the Mid Valley Campus 

Approval of renewal agreement with Access Esperanza Clinics on outpatient clinic at the 
Mid Valley Campus starting on February 1, 2019 to January 31, 2020, with a yearly review 
and renewal of services is requested. 
 
Purpose – The Access Esperanza Clinics at the Mid Valley Campus is to provide students 
easy access to healthcare education, affordable, and high-quality preventive health care 
at no or very low cost. 
 
Justification – The outpatient clinic at the Mid Valley Campus will offer preventive health 
care services for the Mid Valley students, 18 years of age and older, which will be 
convenient for easy student access for health services and a healthy lifestyle.  
 
Students, faculty, and staff would have access to following services: 
 

• health screening services, testing, and basic management for diabetes, high 
cholesterol, and high blood pressure 

• urinary tract infection testing and treatment 
• cancer screening exams both men and women 
• HIV screening test 
• sexually transmitted infections testing and treatment 
• pregnancy testing and educational instruction 
• health care education 
• community referral for complex medical treatment and social services 

Current Terms 
 

• The clinic is available to all South Texas College students 18 years of age and 
older, and is open one day per week, unless the demand is greater.  Students below 
the age of 18 are referred to another clinic as appropriate. 

 
• Access Esperanza Clinics covers all clinical and staffing costs and operates the 

clinic.  South Texas College promotes the clinic’s availability and provides two 
adjacent classrooms as the clinic site. 

• The clinic uses classrooms 211 and 213 at the Mid Valley Campus Nursing and 
Allied Health Building B and are charged a monthly facility use rate of $1.00 per 
square feet.  The charge is based on two classrooms of 672 square feet each, for 
a total monthly charge of $1,344.00 and a total annual charge of $16,128.00.  The 
Nursing and Allied Health Building B is located in the North West corner of the 
campus. 

79



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 16, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Renewal Terms Requested by Access Esperanza Clinics 
 
Access Esperanza Clinics requested changes to the lease agreement and College staff is 
recommending the following changes to the renewal terms: 
 

• Due to low participation, Access Esperanza Clinics is requesting to modify the lease 
agreement by allowing the clinic to serve faculty and staff, in addition to students. 

 
• Due to low participation, Access Esperanza Clinics is requesting to modify Section 

3.01 of the lease agreement by reducing rental cost for clinic rooms at South Texas 
College.  The requested monthly facility use rate requested is $0.50 per square 
feet, reduced from $1.00 per square feet.  The clinic uses two classrooms of 672 
square feet each.  As a result, the total monthly charge will be $336.00 with a total 
annual charge of $4,032.00. 

• In an effort to increase participation, Access Esperanza Clinics is requesting the 
following outreach and awareness efforts for Spring 2019:  

 
⇒ Host an open house the first week of classes 
⇒ Co-host an event with Student Engagement (brand awareness) 
⇒ Update clinic flyers to focus more on diabetes testing and management 

services 
⇒ Give presentations to the student leadership and the Student Ambassador 

groups and encourage members to distribute clinic flyers 
 

⇒ Promote clinic on campus TV screens 
⇒ Promote clinic to students, faculty, and staff at the Pecan campus 
⇒ Give more class presentations (core classes) 
⇒ Host a focus group at the beginning of the semester to better understand 

students’ attitudes about the clinic and its services 

Background - The Board awarded the contract to enter into an agreement with Access 
Esperanza Clinics at the September 19, 2017 Board of Trustees meeting for one year 
with a yearly review and renewal of services.  The renewal period will be for February 1, 
2019 to January 31, 2020. 
 

Award Board Meeting Date Original Term Renewal Term 
Original 9/19/17 2/01/18 – 1/31/19 

 

Renewal 01/29/19  2/01/19 – 1/31/20 
 
Reviewers – The renewal agreement with Access Esperanza Clinics was reviewed by 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, Purchasing 
Department staff, and South Texas College’s legal counsel. 

80



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 17, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Enclosed Documents – The items below are presented in the packet for the Board’s 
information and review. 
 

1. Draft Lease Agreement prepared by administration from South Texas College 
2. Exhibit A - STC Facility Use Charges Schedule 
3. Exhibit B - Collaboration Letter from Access Esperanza Clinics  
4. Exhibit C – Exhibit to the Agreement 
5. Exhibit D – Statement of Confidentiality Acknowledgment Statement 

Kathryn Hearn, Community Services Director from Access Esperanza Clinics, attended 
the January 15, 2019 Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee meeting to 
address questions by the committee. 
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the proposed renewal of agreement with Access Esperanza Clinics on outpatient clinic at 
the Mid Valley Campus starting on February 1, 2019 to January 31, 2020, with a yearly 
review and renewal of services as presented. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the renewal of agreement with Access Esperanza Clinics on outpatient clinic at 
the Mid Valley Campus starting on February 1, 2019 to January 31, 2020, with a yearly 
review and renewal of services as presented. 
 
The Following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the renewal of agreement with Access 
Esperanza Clinics on outpatient clinic at the Mid Valley Campus starting on February 1, 
2019 to January 31, 2020, with a yearly review and renewal of services as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
 

 
 
  

81



 

1 

 
AGREEMENT  

BETWEEN ACCESS ESPERANZA CLINICS INC. AND  
SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 

 
 
 This Agreement is made this 1st day of February, 2019, by and between Access 
Esperanza Clinics Inc., a Texas nonprofit corporation, hereinafter referred to as “Access 
Esperanza Clinics” or “Lessee”, and SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE, a political subdivision 
of the State of Texas, hereinafter referred to as “STC”, “the College” or “Lessor”, each a 
“Party” and collectively “Parties”. 
 
 WHEREAS, Access Esperanza Clinics desires to enter into a lease agreement 
(“Agreement”) with STC at its Mid Valley Campus, located at 400 North Border Ave, 
Weslaco, TX 78596;  
 
 WHEREAS, Access Esperanza Clinics and STC have agreed it will be mutually 
beneficial to both parties to lease such real property on the terms and conditions herein 
contained; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the following, Access 
Esperanza Clinics and STC hereby agree as follows: 
 

 
ARTICLE 1 - LEASE 

 
1.01. Lease. For and in consideration of the rents, covenants, and promises herein 
contained to be kept, performed, and observed by Lessee, Lessor does hereby lease 
and demise to Lessee and Lessee does hereby rent and accept from Lessor, lease 
space located in Weslaco, TX, Mid Valley Campus, comprising an area of 1,344 square 
feet in the Nursing Allied Health Building B and more particularly described in Exhibit A, 
which is attached hereto and made a part hereof for all purposes (hereinafter referred to 
as the “Leased Premises”). 

 
 

ARTICLE 2 – TERM AND TERMINATION 
 
2.01. Term.  This Lease shall be for a term (the “Term”), commencing on February 1, 
2019 and ending on January 31, 2020 (the “Termination Date”), unless sooner 
terminated as provided herein.  
 
2.02. Termination without Cause.  This Agreement may be terminated by either Party 
upon sixty (60) days’ written notice to the other Party. 
 
2.03. Termination for Default.  This Agreement may be terminated for default pursuant 

82



 

2 

to Article 14 herein.    
 
2.04 Notice of Termination. Notice of termination by a Party shall be delivered to the 
other Party pursuant to Article 18 herein.   
 

 
ARTICLE 3 – RENT 

 
3.01. Rent.  Lessee agrees to pay Lessor a monthly rental of one dollar ($.50) per 
square foot. The rental shall be paid in advance on or before the first day of each 
month.  The rent will be prorated for the first month accordingly (depending on the 
number of days of the month).  
 
 

ARTICLE 4 – UTILITIES 
 
4.01. Utilities. Lessor shall pay or cause to be paid all charges for heat, gas, electricity 
and trash removal and Lessor shall pay or cause to be paid all charges for water and 
sewer. Lessee shall not be responsible for any utility charges used in and about the 
Leased Premises during the term of this Agreement. Utilities are included as part of 
space usage fees. 
 
4.02. Services. Utilities and custodial services at the facilities used by Lessee shall be 
provided by Lessor at the same level as for all other Lessor facilities. Lessor makes no 
guarantee that utilities or custodial services will be without interruption at any time 
during the term of this Agreement.  
 

 
ARTICLE 5 – RENOVATIONS, IMPROVEMENTS & FIXTURES 

  
5.01. Renovations & Improvements.  Lessee shall not make any alterations, 
additions, or improvements to the Leased Premises without the prior written consent of 
Lessor. Any and all plans for any improvements to the Leased Premises shall be 
submitted for approval to Lessor in writing.   
 
5.02. Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment. Subject to review and approval by Lessor, 
Lessee shall, as necessary to carry out its purposes set forth under this Agreement, 
have the right to install shelves, temporary office partitions, machinery, equipment, or 
other fixtures, in, on or about the Leased Premises, provided that Lessee complies with 
all applicable governmental laws, ordinances, codes and regulations regarding such 
fixtures. Lessee has the right to remove such fixtures at the termination of this 
Agreement. Lessee shall repair, at its own expense, any damage to the Leased 
Premises cause by the removal of fixtures. 
 
 

83



 

3 

5.03. Use of Lessor Furniture.  Lessor agrees to lend desks, tables, and chairs to 
Lessee with the express condition that said items be returned to STC upon termination 
of this Agreement. 
 
5.04. Ownership of Improvements & Fixtures.  It is expressly understood and agreed 
that, during the term of this Lease any and all buildings, improvements and fixtures, of 
whatsoever nature at any time constructed, placed, or maintained on any part of the 
Leased Premises, if not removed by Lessee on or before the date of termination of the 
Agreement, shall become the property of Lessor.   
 

 
ARTICLE 6 – PERMITTED USE OF LEASED PREMISES AND OTHER SERVICES 

 
6.01. Permitted Use.  Lessee may use the Leased Premises exclusively for the 
purpose for which Lessee has been organized and as described in Exhibit B, which will 
be primarily for the provision of individualized preventative health care and wellness 
education to South Texas College students of eighteen years and older and College 
employees.   
 
6.02. Keys. Lessor will provide Lessee a set of key(s) to the Leased Premises. Upon 
termination of the Lease Agreement, key(s) shall be returned to the South Texas 
College Director of Facilities Operations and Maintenance or College of Facilities 
Operations and Maintenance designee.   
 
6.03. Access to Campus Parking. Lessee employees will have access to campus 
parking with an appropriate parking permit. Six parking permits will be issued to 
Lessee’s employees by the STC Department of Public Safety. Parking fines will be 
assessed if the Lessee employee does not display the appropriate parking permit and 
fines may be issued for parking and moving traffic violations. 

 
6.04. Food Services. Lessee employees will have access to Lessor’s on-campus 
cafeteria facilities for the purchase of food and beverages.  
 
6.05. Emergency Notification System. Lessee’s employees will be included in the 
Lessor’s Emergency Notification System upon Lessee providing the Lessor’s 
Information Technology Department with the Lessee’s employees’ email addresses, 
preferred email addresses, and cell phone numbers. 
 
6.06. Public Safety Law Enforcement and Security Services.  The STC Department 
of Public Safety is a public police department and will respond to Lessee’s employees 
on the same basis as it does to STC employees and students.  
 
  
 
 

84



 

4 

ARTICLE 7 – MAINTENANCE & CUSTODIAL SERVICES 
 
7.01. Maintenance.  Lessor agrees to maintain and repair, at the Lessor’s expense, any 
portion/part of the Leased Premises as may be needed to continue the intended use of 
the Leased Premises under this Agreement other than repairs for damages deemed to 
have been caused through unreasonable abuse by Lessee and/or its associated 
occupants. If caused through unreasonable abuse by Lessee, the results of such 
damage will be repaired by Lessor to conform to the condition of the premises on the 
commencement date of the lease, but those reasonable costs of repairs will be 
reimbursed to the Lessor by the Lessee.   
 
7.02. Custodial.  Lessor agrees to provide usual custodial services for any portion of 
the Leased Premises as may be needed to continue the intended use of the Leased 
Premises under this Agreement, subject to the exception for care and disposal of 
medical waste, as described in Section 7.03.   
 
7.03. Clean Medical Waste. Lessee agrees to clean, sanitize, and disinfect the space 
and provide and dispose all of medical and lab supplies and waste as required. Lessee 
shall comply with the required Texas Commission of Environmental Quality 
(TCEQ)/United States Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) Waste Guidelines.  
 
 

ARTICLE 8 – TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATIONS 
 
8.01. Technology & Communications. Lessor agrees to provide a telephone and local 
area telephone/fax connectivity at Lessor’s expense. Lessee will provide internet 
connectivity at Lessee’s expense. At its cost, Lessee may add the necessary lines and 
cables required for internet connection within the leased space.  Lessor will not provide 
any computer software, hardware, or equipment, such as, but not limited to, laptops, 
desktops, scanners, or copiers, etc. Lessor agrees to post contact information, including 
the telephone number for the Lessee, on its official webpage. 
  
 

ARTICLE 9 – SIGNS 
 
9.01. Signs. Subject to the written approval of Lessor, and to the extent necessary 
under the terms of this Agreement and subject to applicable laws, ordinances and 
regulations, Lessee shall have the right to install signs on the Leased Premises, with 
prior approval from Lessor. Lessee must remove all signs at the termination of this 
Agreement and repair any damage resulting from the erection or removal of the signs.  
 
 

ARTICLE 10 – LESSEE’S PERSONAL PROPERTY INSURANCE 
 
10.01. Insurance. Lessee shall maintain all insurance for Lessee’s personal property 

85



 

5 

located within the Leased Premises and Lessee covenants and agrees that Lessor shall 
have no responsibility for damage or destruction of Lessee’s personal property located 
within the Leased Premises except for damage caused by the Lessor’s sole negligence. 
 

ARTICLE 11 – LIABILITY INSURANCE AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
11.01. Liability Insurance.  (a) The parties acknowledge that Lessor’s liability to 
Lessee’s officers, employees and third parties for negligent acts of Lessor is limited by 
the Texas Tort Claims Act. Lessor shall, during the term of the Lease, provide and 
maintain insurance in sufficient amounts to cover Lessor’s liability, if any.  Lessee shall, 
during the term of the Lease provide and maintain in force during the term of this 
Agreement liability insurance in the amounts deemed adequate by Lessee. A copy of 
the Certificate of Insurance must be presented to the Lessor. (See Exhibit C to Lease 
between Access Esperanza Clinics and South Texas College.”)   
 
 

ARTICLE 12 – NOTICE OF DAMAGE 
 
12.01. Notice of Damage. If the Leased Premises, or any structures or improvements 
on the Leased Premises, should be damaged or destroyed by fire, tornado, or other 
casualty, Lessee shall give immediate written notice of the damage or destruction to 
Lessor, including a description of the damage and, as far as known to Lessee, the 
cause of the damage. 
  
 

ARTICLE 13 – DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION 
 
13.01. Damage or Destruction.  If the building on the Leased Premises should be 
totally destroyed by fire, tornado, or other casualty, or if it should be so damaged that 
rebuilding or repairs cannot reasonably be completed within thirty (30) working days 
from the date of the occurrence of the damage, this Agreement, at the option of either 
party, shall terminate, effective as of the date of said occurrence. 
 
 

ARTICLE 14 – DEFAULT 
 
14.01. Default by Lessee.  If Lessee shall remain in default under any condition of this 
Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from Lessor, Lessor may 
at its option, upon notice to Lessee, terminate this Agreement. 

 
 
14.02. Default by Lessor. If Lessor shall remain in default under any condition of this 
Agreement for a period of thirty (30) days after written notice from Lessee, Lessee may 
at its option, upon notice to Lessor, terminate this Agreement.  
 

86



 

6 

ARTICLE 15 – OPERATIONS AND SERVICES PROVIDED BY LESSEE 
 

15.01. Operations and Services provided by Lessee.  Operations and Services 
provided by Lessee are included as Exhibit B. 
  
15.02. Services.  Lessee shall provide preventive health care services exclusively for 
students enrolled at South Texas College’s Mid-Valley Campus at Weslaco, Texas and 
employees employed by South Texas College.  

 
a) Lessee will follow Lessor’s board approved academic calendar including 

the beginning and ending of semesters and holidays.  
 

b) The preventive health services shall be provided free of charge for 
Medicaid-qualifying students and employees. Lessee will charge and 
report its services to Medicaid. 

 
15.03. Required License(s) and Credential(s). Lessor requires Lessee to possess 
required license(s), certification(s), and credential(s) to operate and provide services at 
Lessor’s premises, and to prominently display such licenses, certifications and 
credentials. Lessee agrees to employ only individuals with the required licenses, 
certifications or credentials to perform the medical services being provided.  
 
 

ARTICLE 16 – CONDUCT AND COMPLAINT CASES, INCLUDING TITLE IX 
 
16.01. Title IX Statement. Title IX of the Education Amendments 1972 (20 U.S.C. 
Section 1681, et seq.) and it’s implementing regulations, 34 C.F.R. Part 106 (Title IX), 
state, “No person in the United States shall, on the basis of sex, be excluded from 
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any 
education program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.” 
 
16.02. Conduct and Complaint Cases, Including Title IX. Lessee and Lessor will 
cooperate and collaborate in addressing conduct cases and complaints, including Title 
IX, involving Lessee patients and employees and Lessor students, faculty, staff, and/or 
property.  
 
16.03. Communication, Coordination, and Collaboration  
 

a) Confidentiality. All services provided by Lessee to patients will be kept 
confidential except for the following circumstances: 
 

i. If the patient wants information shared with the College or 
campus security, campus or local law enforcement, the Lessee 
must obtain consent for release of the information. When 
releases of information are required, it will be written, informed, 

87



 

7 

and reasonably promptly handled.  
ii. Lessee will engage in a good faith presentation of the remedial 

support Lessor and their agents may provide to a patient who 
has experienced any form of sexual based unwelcome conduct 
and will encourage patient to report the conduct to Lessor or 
allow Lessee to present such information.  The support provided 
by Lessor may include academic assistance and adjustments, 
counseling and other customized support.  Additionally, Lessee 
agrees to provide all patients experiencing unwelcome sexual 
misconduct with Lessor’s Resource Brochure outlining on-
campus support and reporting protocol.  

iii. Lessee will report to Lessor when the student or employee 
being treated poses an imminent risk of harm to self or others, 
or reveals that he/she is at an imminent risk of harm.  

iv. Lessor agrees to maintain and provide to Lessee a current list of 
the names of all entities whom Lessor allows to access the 
space leased by Lessee and their reason for access, (ex. 
"custodial staff").  This does not apply to patients receiving 
treatment. Lessor will ensure that everyone whom Lessor allows 
to access the Mid-Valley Campus space leased by Lessee will 
sign and abide by the Statement of Confidentiality agreement 
(South Texas/Access Esperanza Clinics Statement of 
Confidentiality Acknowledgement Statement) (attached as 
Exhibit D). Lessor agrees to provide to Lessee a copy of those 
signed statements within 14 days of their signature. 

 
b) Trainings. Lessee is required to participate in all identified trainings 

provided by Lessor related to Title IX and sexual misconduct, including but 
not limited to dating violence, discrimination, domestic violence, 
harassment, intimate partner abuse, sexual harassment, sexual violence, 
stalking, and retaliation. The Parties agree to keep each other informed 
about current trends and patterns in sexual assault both on and off 
campus. 
 

c) Lessor Resources and Support Services. Lessee agrees to provide 
patients the informational resources and materials provided by Lessor 
related to Title IX and sexual misconduct, including but not limited to 
dating violence, discrimination, domestic violence, harassment, intimate 
partner abuse, sexual harassment, sexual violence, stalking, and 
retaliation. Lessee also agrees to provide patients information regarding 
Lessor’s Counseling and Support Services and other resources available, 
including academic support and assistance.  

 
d) Aggregate Non-Personally Identifiable Data. Lessee agrees to provide 

aggregate non-personally identifiable data, as permitted by law and as 

88



 

8 

requested by Lessor, to the Title IX Coordinator related to incidents of 
sexual misconduct and other reportable offenses to include in its annual 
Clery Act security report and to help the college identify patterns or 
systemic problems related to sexual violence. Once this Agreement 
becomes effective, the data must be submitted the first of every month, 
beginning with March 1, 2019. The data should include number of patients 
with cases involving sexual misconduct, the location of the violation (i.e. 
on or off campus), the nature of each violation, the gender of the parties 
(that is, how many victims identified as female, how many as male, how 
many accused were identified as female, how many as male). This 
information should be provided in aggregate form so that the information is 
not linkable to a specific individual.   

 
e) Lessor’s Department of Public Safety. To the extent allowed and as 

required by law and Lessor policy, Lessee agrees to promptly share 
information about crimes that may pose an imminent serious threat to the 
health and safety of a member or members of campus or near-campus 
communities, as is necessary to facilitate the issuance of Clery Act 
requirements on timely warnings, emergency notifications, and the legally 
mandatory reporting of crime statistics. 

 
f) Title IX Staff Contact Information.   

 

Title IX   Coordinator 
Mary Elizondo, MBA, CPA, CFE, CGMA 
Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services  
3201 West Pecan Blvd. X224 
McAllen, Texas 78501 
956-872-3558 
marye@southtexascollege.edu 

 
Title IX   Deputy Coordinator 
Brenda J. Balderaz 
Director of Human Resources  
2501 West Pecan Blvd.  
McAllen, TX 78501 
956-872-5057 
brendajb@southtexascollege.edu 

 
 
 
 
 

89

mailto:marye@southtexascollege.edu
mailto:brendajb@southtexascollege.edu


 

9 

Title IX   Deputy Coordinator 
Janette Garcia 
Institutional Equity Manager 
3201 West Pecan Blvd. X 223 
McAllen, TX 7801 
3201 West Pecan Blvd.  
956-872-2307 
jgarcia_3213@southtexascollege.edu 

 
Title IX   Deputy Coordinator 
Santa E. Pena  
Director of Counseling  
3201 West Pecan Blvd. K2.900 
McAllen, Texas 78573 
956-872-2140 
santaep@southtexascollege.edu  

 
Title IX   Deputy Coordinator 
Paul Varville 
Chief Administrator for Department Public Safety and Regional Center for 
Public Safety Excellence  
2509 West Pecan Blvd. 
McAllen, TX  78501 
956-872-2330 
pbvarvil@southtexascollege.edu 

 
 

ARTICLE 17 – REPRESENTATIONS 
 
17.01. Representation of Agency.  Lessee will provide medical services to identified 
students enrolled at South Texas College and College employees as described in the 
attached Exhibit B.  Lessee is not an agent of the College and may not represent itself 
as an agent of the College. 
 
17.02. Employees of Lessee.  Individuals employed by Lessee, whether to provide 
medical services or perform administrative tasks, are not employees of the College and 
may not represent themselves as employees of the College. There is no agency 
relationship between the College and employees of Lessee.  
 
 

ARTICLE 18 - NOTICE 
 

18.01. Notice. Except as may be otherwise specifically provided in this Agreement, all 

90

mailto:jgarcia_3213@southtexascollege.edu
mailto:santaep@southtexascollege.edu
mailto:pbvarvil@southtexascollege.edu


 

10 

notices, demands, requests or communications required or permitted hereunder shall 
be in writing and shall either be (i) personally delivered against a written receipt, or (ii) 
addressed to the parties at the addresses set forth below, or (iii) at such other 
addresses as may have been specified by written notice delivered in accordance 
herewith: 
 

If to Lessor: South Texas College 
                                        Attention: Dr. Shirley A. Reed, President 
                                         3201 West Pecan Blvd. 
                                         McAllen, Texas 78501 
 

If to Lessee: Access Esperanza Clinics 
 Attention: Mr. Patricio Gonzales, CEO 

916 E. Hackberry Ave, Suite A 
McAllen, Texas 78501  

     
        

ARTICLE 19 - MISCELLANEOUS 
 
19.01 Transferability.  Neither Party may transfer or assign this Agreement, in whole or 
in part, without the prior written consent of the other Party. 

 
19.02 Entire Agreement.  This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and 
understanding of the parties with respect to the matters contained herein and 
supersedes all prior agreements and contracts. 

 
19.03 Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by, and 
interpreted in accordance with, the laws of the State of Texas.  Hidalgo County, Texas, 
shall be the sole and exclusive venue for any litigation, special proceeding or other 
proceeding as between the parties that may be brought under, or arises out of, this 
Agreement.   
 
19.04. Cumulative Remedies.  All rights and remedies of Lessor and Lessee under this 
Agreement shall be cumulative, and none shall exclude any other right or remedy 
provided by law or by any other provision of this Agreement.  All such rights and 
remedies may be exercised and enforced concurrently and whenever, and as often, as 
occasion for their exercise arises. 
 
19.05. Waiver of Breach.  A waiver by either Lessor or Lessee of a breach or default of 
any provision under this Agreement by the other Party shall not constitute a continuing 
waiver or a waiver of any subsequent breach or default. 
 
19.06. Responsibility for Negligence and Third Party Claims. To the extent 
authorized by the laws and Constitution of the State of Texas, each Party to this 
Agreement shall be responsible for damages to persons or property resulting from 

91



 

11 

negligence on the part of its employees, agents, or officers. Neither Party assumes any 
responsibility to the other Party for the consequences of any act or commission of any 
person, firm, or other entity not a party to this Agreement. 
 
 
 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee approve the execution of this 
Lease Agreement by a motion duly made, seconded, and adopted by the appropriate 
governing bodies thereof. 

 
 
SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE 
 

 
By: _____________________________ 
 Dr. Shirley A. Reed, President 

 
 
 

ACCESS ESPERANZA CLINICS INC. 
 
 
By: _____________________________ 
 Mr. Patricio Gonzales, CEO 

 

92



A
cc

e
ss

 E
sp

e
ra

n
za

 C
lin

ic
s

Sp
ac

e
Si

ze
 (

sf
)

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 

C
la

ss
ro

o
m

s/
La

b
s

M
o

n
th

ly
 

U
ti

liz
at

io
n

 

Fa
ct

o
r 

(%
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 

R
en

ta
l R

at
e

 

($
/s

q
)

M
o

n
th

ly
 R

e
n

ta
l 

C
o

st
 (

$
)

N
u

m
b

er
 o

f 

M
o

n
th

s

A
n

n
u

al
 R

en
ta

l 

C
o

st
 (

$
)

C
la

ss
ro

o
m

*
6

7
2

1
1

0
0

%
0

.5
0

$
   

   
   

   
3

3
6

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
2

4
,0

3
2

.0
0

$
   

   
   

C
la

ss
ro

o
m

 *
6

7
2

1
1

0
0

%
0

.5
0

$
   

   
   

   
3

3
6

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

1
2

4
,0

3
2

.0
0

$
   

   
   

To
ta

l U
ti

liz
ed

 S
p

ac
e

1
,3

4
4

2
6

7
2

.0
0

$
   

   
   

   
  

8
,0

6
4

.0
0

$
   

   
   

*N
o

te
s:

  

ST
C

 F
ac

ili
ty

 U
se

 C
h

ar
ge

s 
Sc

h
e

d
u

le

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

p
u

s-
B

u
ild

in
g 

B
, R

o
o

m
 2

1
1

 a
n

d
 R

o
o

m
 2

1
3

Ex
h

ib
it

 A

1
/1

1
/2

0
1

9
  1

0
:2

2
 A

M

93



Campus Clinic Collaboration  
Access Esperanza Clinics, Inc.  and South Texas College 

Contact Information 
Access Esperanza Clinics, Inc. 
916 E. Hackberry Ave, Suite A, McAllen, TX 78501 
O: 956.688.3700  |  F: 956.618.3718 
Website: www.AccessClinics.org 
Patricio Gonzales, MSSW-LMSW - patricio.gonzales@accessclinics.org 

Mission Statement 

The mission of Access Esperanza Clinics Inc. (AEC) is to provide education, advocacy, and 

affordable high-quality health care to ensure all individuals in our community can access sexual 

and reproductive health care services.  

Since its founding by members of the First United Methodist Church in 1964, AEC has 

championed its mission of helping low-income women stay healthy and prevent unplanned 

pregnancies, improving quality of life in the community. AEC aspires to continue this trajectory 

and expand its efforts to prevent chronic illness. AEC operates as an independent 501(c)(3) non-

profit organization and qualifies as a state health program provider to serve low-income 

women, men, and teens.  

Agency Overview 

Continuing the founders’ legacy, AEC operates five health clinics in Hidalgo County, including 

the Rev. English Clinic in McAllen, the Rev. Galloway Clinic in Mission, and clinics in Edinburg, 

Weslaco, and San Juan. Clinics are expected to serve at least 15,000 people during 2017. 

AEC’s typical clinic patient is Latina, in her mid-20s, who lives at or below the federal poverty 

level. She comes to the clinic for reproductive life planning, mainly to prevent unplanned 

pregnancies. Most patients are uninsured and report AEC as their only health care provider.  

Nurse practitioners and physician assistants provide day-to-day patient care. Services focus on 

family planning and preventive health care, including physical exams, clinical exams for the 

breast, cervix, and testes, and testing and treatment for STIs. A full range of contraceptives, 

including long acting reversible contraceptives, are available at each clinic site. AEC’s expanded 

family planning program offers preventive wellness screenings that include testing and basic 

916 E. Hackberry Ave, McAllen, TX 78501 | 956.688.3700 

www.AccessClinics.org | Patricio.Gonzales@AccessClinics.org 

Exhibit B

94

mailto:patricio.gonzales@accessclinics.org
http://www.accessclinics.org/


management for diabetes, high cholesterol, and hypertension. Over 95 percent of clients 

qualify for state or federal family planning programs and pay little or nothing for their care. 

The local medical community strongly supports AEC. Ob-Gyn Dr. Fernando Otero volunteers as 

the agency’s Medical Director, overseeing clinical protocols and providing colposcopy services. 

Surgeon Dr. Fredricka Borland evaluates patients with suspicious breast masses.  

AEC’s award-winning community education programs promote family planning and healthy 

lifestyles and will reach 15,000 people by the end of 2017. Promotora community health 

workers participate in over 100 community fairs annually and conduct weekly outreach at WIC 

centers, colleges, community centers, and social service agencies. Small group discussions or 

“platicas” are held in homes and at social service agencies to teach healthy life habits. Family 

communication workshops are held several times each year to help parents and their children 

or teens learn about growing up and healthy lifestyles.  

AEC supports a university student organization at the University of Texas Rio Grande Valley that 

meets each week for training on family planning and healthy relationship issues. The group 

promotes healthy relationships to over 1,000 students a year through campus outreach and 

awareness events.  

Primary program funding comes from the federal Title X program contracted through the 

Women’s Health and Family Planning Association of Texas, the state’s Healthy Texas Women 

program, and the Texas Family Planning Program. The agency is also supported through private 

foundations grants, Medicaid, private insurance, and private pay patient fees.  

Project Need 

Preventive healthcare, education, and timely management are important to maintaining good 

health, especially for younger individuals. According to a 2015 Institute of Medicine and 

National Research Council report, young adulthood - ages 18 to 26 - is a critical developmental 

period during which lifestyle choices can have implications on future employment, financial 

security, health, and well-being.  Freshly independent, young adults must manage new 

responsibilities that can lead to neglecting healthy lifestyle choices. These challenges coupled 

with high local rates of diabetes put young adults in this community at especially high risk for 

chronic diseases.  

There is a tremendous need for affordable healthcare services in this community. The Texas 

Department of State Health Services’ 2013 report shows a higher prevalence of prediabetes and 

diabetes in Hidalgo County compared to the state, which puts local residents at greater risk for 

complications of diabetes along with cardiovascular disease and stroke.  Unfortunately many 

people in this community cannot afford the care they need. According to the 2011 U.S. Census, 

Exhibit B

95



Hidalgo County has the highest rate of uninsured adults of any urban county in the U.S. This 

high rate along with the county’s chronically high 30 percent plus poverty rate (U.S. Census) 

creates serious barriers for people needing care.   

A wide body of evidence indicates when women can plan their pregnancies, they have safer 

births, are healthier, have healthier children, stay in school longer, and get better paying jobs. 

Making family planning available and accessible is good public policy. According to the 

Guttmacher Institute, a leading reproductive health researcher, every $1 invested in public 

programs to help low-income women prevent unplanned pregnancies, saves taxpayers $7 in 

Medicaid-paid births and associated costs (as of 2010).   

The need for family planning services in Hidalgo County is great. The Guttmacher Institute 

estimated in 2014 that only one in three women in Hidalgo County needing family planning had 

access to care. This includes lack of access for pregnancy prevention, preventive health 

screenings, and STI testing and treatment. These services are especially important to college 

students. The National Campaign to Prevent Teen and Unplanned Pregnancy reports that 61 

percent of college students in their 20s who have a child after enrolling in a community college 

drop out before finishing a degree or credential.  

Project Description 

This project seeks to establish a clinic at the STC campus in Weslaco to help students live 

healthier lives and achieve their educational goals. The part-time clinic will open one day a 

week during the school’s spring and summer semesters and will be available to students ages 

18 and older, along with STC faculty and staff.  

Clinic services will focus on preventive health and wellness, with an eye on early detection of 

chronic diseases. The clinic will offer many of the same preventive health services currently 

provided at AEC’s full-time Weslaco clinic. Patients needing full physical exams or more invasive 

procedures will be referred to AEC’s other clinics.  

  Campus Clinic Services: 

  General health assessment 

  Birth control instruction and method supplies 

    Limited to birth control pill, patch, ring, shot, over-the-counter methods, and Plan B 

  Lipids panel testing 

   Includes diabetes, cholesterol, triglycerides testing 

  A1C diabetes testing (reflects average blood sugar level several weeks prior) 

  Basic management of diabetes, high cholesterol, and hypertension 

    Diet and nutrition counseling 

    Initial and basic prescription medication as medically indicated 

Exhibit B

96



  STD testing and treatment 

    Testing for chlamydia, gonorrhea, syphilis, herpes, HPV     

   Treatment for chlamydia, gonorrhea, syphilis, herpes, HPV (treatment plan) 

   HIV rapid testing (results in minutes), confirmatory testing (results in five days) 

   Referrals for treatment 

  Urinary tract infection (UTI) treatment 

  Pregnancy testing 

 

Working under the agency’s Medical Director, Dr. Fernando Otero, the campus clinic will utilize 

nurse practitioners and physician assistants to conduct patient assessments and make 

diagnoses. The project will establish a Class D pharmacy on site to dispense medications, 

including contraceptives, directly through the clinic. Clinicians will write prescriptions for 

medications not available through the clinic’s pharmacy.  

AEC maintains a referral network for patients needing health and social services outside of the 

scope of its clinics. The campus clinic will utilize STC as a primary referral source. Clinic staff will 

work with STC staff on the availability of services, especially counseling services.  

The majority of students are expected to qualify for free clinic services through AEC’s 

governmental grants, including the federal Title X program, the state’s Healthy Texas Women 

program, and the Texas Family Planning Program. To be eligible for free services, students must 

be Texas residents, uninsured, age 64 or younger, and have a household income of 250 percent 

or less of the federal poverty level ($2,452 a month for family household size of one). U.S. 

citizenship, legal residency, and gender will not be barriers to free services. The clinic will also 

accept payment for services through Medicaid, private insurance, and private fees. 

The clinic will require at least two but preferably three rooms that can be secured and 

dedicated to the project, along with close access to restrooms. One room will be used for 

intake and initial counseling, and the second would work as space for the clinician to conduct 

assessments. A third room could be used for nutritional counseling for patients at risk or 

diagnosed with diabetes or other chronic diseases related to cardiovascular diseases. Clinic 

operations will also require working with STC on internet access, a campus phone line, custodial 

services, clinic signage, and on-campus promotion.  

The Campus Clinic Collaboration between STC and AEC would eliminate many of the barriers 

STC students currently face when needing basic healthcare services. This project will benefit all 

connected. Students would have easy and regular access to basic health care at no or very low 

cost to them. For minimal investment, STC would gain a clinic on the campus to help students 

stay healthy and stay in school. AEC would have the opportunity to meet its mission in reaching 

and serving more uninsured people in this community. 

Exhibit B

97



Page 1 of 5 

 

EXHIBIT C TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN ACCESS ESPERANZA 

CLINICS AND SOUTH TEXAS COLLEGE  

 

 

I. 

Insurance 

 

1.1 Coverages 

 

Access Esperanza Clinics Inc. (“Clinic”) shall purchase and maintain during the 

duration of this Agreement, and after this Agreement as provided in Section 1.1(c) 

below, the following insurance coverages: 

 

(a) Worker's Compensation or accidental disability and employers 

liability coverage with minimum limits of liability at $500,000 for 

damages due to bodily injuries either by accident or disease 

occurring to Clinic’s employees, agents, servants or professional staff 

as a result of this Agreement. 

(b) General Liability covering Clinic’s agents, employees and servants for 

bodily injury, personal injury or property damage claims arising out 

of the premises, products or activities of Clinic or its  employees with 

minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000 per occurrence and 

$3,000,000 annual aggregate.  

(c) Professional Liability covering Clinic’s agents, employees and 

servants for bodily and personal injury claims arising out of the 

Clinic’s activities for the rendering or failure to render care by 

professional staff, Clinic or its agents, employees and servants with 

minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000 per occurrence and 

$3,000,000 aggregate.  In the event such coverage is through a 

"claims made" policy and is either cancelled, replaced or non-

renewed, Clinic shall obtain and maintain extended coverage ("tail") 

insurance covering occurrences during the effective period expiration 

or earlier termination of this Agreement. 

(d) Automobile liability covering Clinic’s agents, employees and servants 

for bodily injury resulting from operation of motorized vehicles with 

minimum limits of $1,000,000 per occurrence and $3,000,000 annual 

aggregate.  

(e) Cyber liability insurance for data breaches covering Clinic’s agents, 

98



Page 2 of 5 

 

employees, and servants with minimum limits of $1,000,000.  

 

 

II. 

Certificate 

 

2.1  Certificate Required 
 

Clinic shall provide South Texas College (“College”) with current certificates of 

insurance or renewal of insurance for all policies required under Section 1.1 during 

the term of this Agreement so that College has evidence of required insurance 

being effective at all times. 

 

 

III. 

Compensation 

 

3.1 No Compensation 

 

College will not be charged for any services performed by Clinic. 

  

 

IV. 

Additional Obligations 

 

4.1 Notification of Claims  

 

Clinic agrees to notify College as soon as reasonably practicable, of any 

occurrence, liability, judgment, claim, or other matter arising out of any allegedly 

intentional act, negligence, medical or professional malpractice, or other act or 

omission of Clinic or its employees or agents in connection with the provision of 

services or representatives or warranties hereunder regarding the Clinic’s services 

at the College’s Weslaco campus. 

 

4.2 Corporate Compliance  

 

Clinic represents and warrants that it, its employees and providers at the Clinic will 

conduct their activities in full compliance with applicable state, local, and federal 

law including the Medicare/Medicaid Anti-Fraud and Abuse Laws and the Texas 

Medical Practice Act and Health & Safety Code.  Notwithstanding any 

99



Page 3 of 5 

 

unanticipated effect of any of the provisions herein, the Clinic and its staff will 

conduct themselves in a manner not to constitute a violation of Medicare/Medicaid 

Anti-Fraud and Abuse Law or Texas Medical Practice Act and Health & Safety 

Code provisions.  

 

4.3 Compliance with Applicable Heath Care Law 

 

The Clinic will at all times comply with applicable state, local and federal laws, 

including, but not limited to, the “Stark” law (42 U.S.C. § 1395nn), the Anti-Fraud 

and Abuse Statute (42 U.S.C. § 1320a-7b(b)), the Health Insurance Portability and 

Accountability Act of 1996 (“HIPAA”), and the Texas Patient Non-Solicitation 

Law (Texas Occ. Code Ann. § 102.001) and this Agreement shall be construed in 

accord with applicable The Joint Commission standards.  

 

4.4 Compliance with Law as to Use of Leased Premises 

 

The Clinic (i.e. the Lessee) shall comply with all laws, orders, ordinances, and 

other public requirements now or hereafter pertaining to Lessee’s use of the Leased 

Premises.  The College (i.e. the Lessor) shall comply with all laws, orders, 

ordinances, and other public requirements now or hereafter affecting the Leased 

Premises (the clinic held at the College’s Weslaco campus).   

 

4.5   Compliance with STC Regulations 

 

Clinic’s employees will abide by all applicable rules of conduct applicable to 

South Texas College employees, staff, and students regarding the use of and access 

to common areas on the South Texas College Weslaco campus. 
     
 

V. 

Records and Information 

 

5.1 Patient Information 

 

Clinic warrants and covenants to College that neither Clinic nor any Clinic staff 

shall disclose to any third party, except where permitted or required by law, any 

confidential information, including patient or medical record information regarding 

Clinic’s patients, and Clinic and Clinic’s staff shall comply with all federal and 

state laws and regulations, and all rules, regulations, and policies of Clinic and its 

medical staff, regarding the confidentiality of such information.  Clinic 

acknowledges that in receiving or otherwise dealing with any records or 

100



Page 4 of 5 

 

information from patients receiving treatment of alcohol or drug abuse, Clinic and 

all Clinic employees are fully bound by the provisions of the federal regulations 

governing Confidentiality for Alcohol and Drug Abuse Patient Records (42 C.F.R. 

Part, as amended from time to time) as well as any state laws that govern 

HIV/AIDS and mental health treatment. In addition, Clinic warrants and covenants 

to College that, if necessary, Clinic and all Clinic staff will resist judicial 

proceedings and efforts to obtain access to such records or information except such 

access as is expressly permitted by the aforementioned federal regulations and/or 

Texas law. 

 

5.2 HIPAA Requirements 

 

Clinic agrees to comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability 

Act of 1996, as codified at 42 U.S.C. § 1320d ("HIPAA") and any current and 

future regulations promulgated thereunder including without limitation the federal 

privacy regulations contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 (the "Federal Privacy 

Regulations"), the federal security standards contained in 45 C.F.R. Part 142 (the 

"Federal Security Regulations"), and the federal standards for electronic 

transactions contained in 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 162, all collectively referred to 

herein as "HIPAA Requirements.”  Clinic agrees not to use or further disclose any 

Protected Health Information (as defined in 45 C.F.R. Section 164.501) or 

Individually Identifiable Health Information (as defined in 42 U.S.C. Section 

1320d), other than as permitted by HIPAA Requirements and the terms of this 

Agreement. 

 

 

VI. 

Term and Termination 

 

6.1 Provisions Surviving Termination  

 

The obligations of the parties relating to hold harmless, compliance with federal 

and state law and regulations, non-disclosure of and maintaining confidential 

information, access to records, and all other obligations that by their very nature 

are usually and customarily enforceable after the termination of an agreement shall 

survive the termination of this Agreement. 

  

 

 

 

101



Page 5 of 5 

 

VII. 

MISCELLANEOUS  

 

7.4 Public Safety Law Enforcement and Security Services 

 

Lessor’s Public Safety and Law Enforcement and Security Services will: 

 

i. Assist in contacting the appropriate jurisdiction to obtain a protective 

order, and provide assistance with issuance of criminal protective 

orders, as appropriate; 

ii. Enforce any protective orders on Lessor’s campuses; 

iii. Provide assistance in issuing no-contact restrictions, if requested 

through a complaint alleging sexual assault, dating violence, domestic 

violence, and/or stalking; 

iv. Provide the Lessor’s All Hazards Emergency Plan outline for use by 

Lessee’s employees.  Lessee’s employees will be integrated into the 

plan.   

 

 

102



Exhibit D 
 

 pg. 1 

              

 

3201 W. Pecan McAllen, TX  78502-9701      PH: (956) 872-2556 FAX: (956) 872-3464 

 

 
 

South Texas College / Access Esperanza Clinics 
Statement of Confidentiality 
Acknowledgment Statement 

 
As a College employee, my job duties require me to conduct maintenance 

at the Access Esperanza Clinic Inc. (the “Clinic”) and therefore come in contact 
with Clinic correspondence, records, and other documents, all of which I have 
been instructed are confidential and contain sensitive, health, or other private 
information. 

 
I understand and acknowledge the importance of the confidential nature of 

the information which I may observe.  
 
I acknowledge that I have been advised by my supervisor, and I agree, 

that as a condition of my employment, or continued employment, I will not open 
any folder, file or container where files or documents are kept and will not obtain 
and will not reveal to any person any information of a confidential nature as 
herein described of which I may become aware during my course of employment 
with South Texas College.  Confidential information includes information 
concerning any Clinic employee, student, staff, faculty, or administrative 
personnel.   

For purposes of this acknowledgement, official communications and 
statements which are presumed to be confidential, include, but are not limited to 
the following:  
 

1. Communications and statements regarding student body health issues; 
2. Other communications and statements made in the furtherance of 

official College business dealing with sensitive topics which would lead one to 
reasonably believe that the matters in question are intended to be kept private. 

 
I acknowledge that the presumption of confidentiality may only be 

overcome by express instruction from senior College administrative or executive 
staff. 

 
I further understand and agree to abide by all state and federal statutes 

and laws, which protect the confidentiality of information, related to students’ 

103



Exhibit D 
 

 pg. 2 

records held by educational agencies, specifically including, but not limited to, 
Texas Public Information Act Sections 552.026 and 552.114, the Family 
Education Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. § 1232g; 34 CFR Part 
99), and the Red Flags Rule. 

 
I further acknowledge that I have been advised that I shall refrain from 

releasing and/or otherwise disseminating any confidential information, and that 
prior to releasing information which I suspect might be confidential and protected 
information, I will seek instructions from any immediate supervisor and obtain my 
immediate supervisor’s written permission to release such information prior to 
doing so. 

 
I further acknowledge that I have been advised that improper release 

and/or dissemination of confidential information may create civil and criminal 
liability for South Texas College and/or me.  I further acknowledge that I have 
been advised that failure to comply with this agreement by improperly disclosing 
confidential information may subject me to disciplinary action, which might result 
in the termination of my employment. 

 
I acknowledge that I have understood the foregoing, (and if I speak 

Spanish and not English) it has been explained to me in Spanish). 
 
 
Employee Name: ______________________________ 
 
Employee Signature: ___________________________              
 
Employee ID#: A_______________________________   
 
Date: _____________________ 
 

104



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 18, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Review and Action as Necessary on Contract for Electric Power 
Services 

Review and action as necessary on contracting for electric power services through the 
Texas General Land Office. 
 
Purpose - Approval to contract with the Texas General Land Office (GLO) State Power 
Program for the purchase of electricity is requested.   The terms may be for a period of 
three (3) year through five (5) years at varying kilowatt rates. Pricing on electric power and 
associated services from the State Power Program is administered by Cavallo Energy 
Texas, LLC. (Houston, TX). 
 
Justification - The electric sales agreement, through the General Land Office (GLO), will 
provide electric power to all South Texas College locations, which includes eighty-two 
(82) meters.  By contracting with the GLO, the College will meet the State procurement 
requirements.  The GLO contract includes an exemption to the following charges:  gross 
receipt tax, PUC assessment fee, and sales tax. The exemption of gross receipt tax and 
PUC assessment fee is not available through other providers. 
 
The General Land Office provider provided the following rates, which vary by term length 
on Friday, January 25, 2019: 
 

Start Date 6/1/2019 6/1/2019 6/1/2019 
Term 36 months 48 months 60 months 
Effective Rate $ 0.04831 $ 0.04665 $ 0.04513 

 
Background - The following is South Texas College’s history on providers and rates: 
 

Method  Service Provider Period 
Rate per 

kWh 
General Land Office Reliant 04/1/02 - 03/31/04 $0.03944  
General Land Office Reliant 04/1/04 - 05/31/06 $0.05397  
RFP Hino Electric 06/1/06 - 05/31/07 $0.08099  
RFP Hino Electric 06/1/07 - 05/31/08 $0.08650  
RFP Gexa Energy 06/1/08 - 05/31/11 $0.10200  
RFP/General Land Office Cavallo Energy Texas 06/1/11 – 05/31/14 $0.05676 
General Land Office Cavallo Energy Texas 06/01/14 - 05/31/19 $0.05482  

 
Funds for this expenditure are available in the Utilities budget for FY 2018 - 2019. 
 

105



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 19, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

The Committee requested pricing from the General Land Office (GLO) / Cavallo Energy 
Texas to determine whether to contract with the GLO or to solicit competitive bids from 
retailers.   
 
Pricing on electric power and associated services from the State Power Program is 
administered by Cavallo Energy Texas, LLC. (Houston, TX). 
 
Pricing with executable rates for different term periods will be provided by Cavallo Energy 
Texas no later than 5:00 p.m. on Tuesday, January 29, 2019 and will be presented at the 
Board meeting.  These rates will be valid for a period of twenty-four (24) hours.  If the 
Board approves a specific rate and term, it is requested that the President be authorized 
to sign an agreement. 
 
Mr. Bill Starnes, Senior Management Consultant with ReSolved Energy Consulting 
(formally RJ Covington), will be available at the meeting to provide information and 
respond to questions. 
 
Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, George McCaleb, 
Director of Operations and Maintenance, and Becky Cavazos, Director of Purchasing, will 
be present at the January 29, 2019 Board of Trustees meeting to address any questions. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize contracting with the Texas General Land Office State Power Program for the 
purchase of electricity for a contract period of ____ months at the effective rate of  
________.   
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes contracting with 
the Texas General Land Office State Power Program for the purchase of electricity for a 
contract period of ____ months at the effective rate of ________.   
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 

  

106



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 20, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Purchases, 
Renewal, and Interlocal Agreements 

Approval of the following award of proposals, purchases, renewal, and interlocal 
agreement is requested as follows:  
 
A. Awards 
B. Instructional Item 
C. Non-Instructional Item 
D. Technology Items 
E. Interlocal Agreement 
 
A. Awards 
1) Purchase of Motor Vehicles (Award) 
Award the proposal for the purchase of motor vehicles totaling $138,880.00 to the 
following vendors: 
 

• Caldwell Country Chevrolet (Caldwell, TX) $  31,932.00 
• Spikes Motor, Co. (Mission, TX)   $106,948.00 

 
Purpose – The Department of Public Safety is requesting the purchase of four (4) crew 
cab trucks and one (1) utility vehicle for patrolling through the College district. 
 
Justification and Benefit – The Department of Public Safety requires the additional 
vehicles to provide patrols and responses to incidents at the new Regional Training 
Center for Public Safety Excellence, Mid Valley, and Pecan campuses and hiring of 
additional police officers. 
 
Background – Proposal documents were advertised on October 15, 2018 and October 22, 
2018 and issued to seven (7) vendors, including six (6) local vendors.  Four (4) responses 
were received on October 30, 2018 and reviewed by the Department of Public Safety and 
Purchasing Department. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Campus Police and Safety and Security 
budgets for FY 2018 – 2019. 
 
2) Food Service – Starr County Campus (Award) 
Award the proposal for food service – Starr County Campus to Taqueria Hidalgo, LLC. 
(Rio Grande City, TX), for the period beginning February 1, 2019 through January 31, 
2020 with two one-year options to renew, with a 10% commission of net sales. 
 
Purpose – The food service must be available for the South Texas College faculty, staff, 
and students at the Starr County Campus. 
 

107



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 21, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Justification and Benefit – The Starr County Campus must have food service Monday 
through Friday for breakfast and lunch.  It will include some of the following items:  
breakfast tacos, lunch tacos, potatoes, lunch combos, piratas, and drinks. 
 
Background – Proposal documents were advertised on November 5, 2018 and November 
12, 2018 and issued to twenty-three (23) vendors.  Two (2) responses were received on 
November 20, 2018 and reviewed by Food Services, Operations and Maintenance, Starr 
County Campus Coordinator, and the Purchasing Department. 
 
B. Instructional Item 

 
3) Science Models, Equipment, and Supplies (Purchase) 
Purchase of science models, equipment, and supplies from VWR International, Inc. 
(Radnor, PA), for a total amount of $56,992.90 as follows: 

# Vendor Contract Amount 
1 VWR International, Inc. (Radnor, PA) E&I Cooperative Services $31,248.48 

2 VWR International, Inc. (Radnor, PA) Board Approved Vendor $25,744.42 

 
Purpose – The Biology Program is requesting the purchase of science models, 
equipment, and supplies for student instruction at the Pecan Campus – STEM and Mid 
Valley Campus Health Professions and Sciences buildings.  These items will be for the 
instructional labs and prep-labs located in these new buildings.  
 
Justification and Benefit – The models will include brain stems, advanced female skulls, 
hearts, magnetic teaching skulls, and male torsos.  It will also include small portable EKG 
machines and supplies and student lab basic systems to conduct physiology lab 
experiments including ECG, EEG, EMG, and EOG.  These items are required for students 
to complete the required courses and labs in Anatomy and Physiology courses. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Maintenance and Operations Taxes (M&O) 
Furniture, Fixtures, and Equipment (FFE) budget for FY 2018 – 2019.  
 
C. Non – Instructional Item 

 
4) LED Lamps (Purchase) 
Purchase LED lamps from Crawford Electric Supply (San Antonio, TX/Mission, TX), a 
Texas Association of School Boards – Buyboard approved vendor, at a total amount of 
$113,946.75. 
 
Purpose – Facilities Operations and Maintenance is requesting the purchase of nine 
hundred fifty (950) led lamps retrofit kits, which will replace florescent lamps at the Pecan, 
Technology, Nursing and Allied Health, and Starr County campuses. 
 

108



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 22, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Justification and Benefit – As part of one of the 2019 projects, Facilities Operations and 
Maintenance would like to continue replacing fluorescent lamps with LED retrofit lamps at 
various campuses.  This will be the second phase of several, which will help reduce energy 
consumption, improve maintenance since LED lights are designed to have long lives, and 
improve safety since LED lamps do not contain any harmful chemicals, such as mercury, 
and are safer for the environment. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the District Wide Interior LED Lighting Upgrade 
budget for FY 2018 – 2019. 
 
D. Technology Items 
 
5) Servers (Purchase) 
Purchase servers from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a State of Texas Department of 
Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a total amount of $111,374.38. 

Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to purchase seven (7) servers to replace 
existing devices that have reached its end of life and can no longer meet the intended 
needs.  The servers will be installed at the Pecan Campus Building M data center and will 
be used to support many software applications such as Police Department surveillance 
systems, Information Technology applications, and databases.  

Justification and Benefit – These servers will replace hardware that has reached end of 
life and is no longer supported by the vendor.  Servers host applications and allow many 
connections from everywhere in our district.  If the existing servers fail or stop working, 
students, faculty, and staff using those applications will not be able to access systems 
like Police Department surveillance systems, Jagnet, and student portals. 
 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in Systems and Networking budget for FY 2018 
- 2019. 
 
6) Software Licenses and Maintenance Agreement (Renewal) 
Renew the software licenses and maintenance agreement with DLT Solutions, LLC. 
(Herndon, VA), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved 
vendor, for the period beginning February 27, 2019 through February 26, 2020, at a total 
amount of $81,124.96. 
 
Purpose – Information Technology is requesting to renew the college-wide Red Hat two 
thousand five hundred sixty-four (2,564) licenses and maintenance agreement, which will 
provide maintenance and support for the servers running a wide range of applications. 

 
Justification and Benefit – This operating system runs in servers to support applications 
such Jagnet and Banner. It provides support for servers to be patched and updated 
accordingly in order to mitigate risk and secure the operating systems that support 
college-wide applications serving students, faculty, and staff. 

109



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 23, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in Systems and Networking budget for FY 2018 
– 2019. 
 
E. Interlocal Agreement 
 
7) Facility Usage Interlocal Agreement (Lease/Rental) 
Lease/Rental facility usage interlocal agreement with Region One Education Service 
Center (ESC), for Friday, February 15, 2019, at an estimated amount of $5,390.00. 
 
Purpose – The Office of Professional Development and the Division of Information 
Services, Planning, Performance and Strategic Initiatives is requesting lease/rental of 
facilities for South Texas College professional development day. 

Justification and Benefit – The facility usage interlocal agreement is for the college-wide 
professional development day event held in the Spring for the Division of Information 
Services, Planning, Performance and Strategic Initiatives staff.  The event is as follows: 
 

Dates Location Events Amounts 
2/15/19 Region One ESC College-Wide Professional Development 

for Faculty and Staff 
$ 5,390.00 

 
Funds for this expenditure are budgeted in the Office of Professional Development budget 
for FY 2018 - 2019. 

Recommendation: 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval of 
the award of proposals, purchases, renewal, and interlocal agreement as listed below: 
 
F. Awards 
G. Instructional Item 
H. Non-Instructional Item 
I. Technology Items 
J. Interlocal Agreement 
 
A. Awards 

1) Purchase of Motor Vehicles (Award):  award the proposal for the purchase of 
motor vehicles totaling $138,880.00 to the following vendors: 
• Caldwell Country Chevrolet (Caldwell, TX)  $  31,392.00 
• Spikes Motor, Co. (Mission, TX)  $106,948.00 

2) Food Services – Starr County Campus (Award):  award the proposal for food 
services – Starr County Campus to Taqueria Hidalgo, LLC. (Rio Grande City, TX), 
for the period beginning February 1, 2019 through January 31, 2020 with two one-
year options to renew, with a 10% commission on the net sales; 

 

110



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 24, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

B. Instructional Item 
3) Science Models, Equipment, and Supplies (Purchase):  purchase of science 

models, equipment, and supplies from VWR International, Inc. (Radnor, PA), for 
a total amount of $56,992.90 as follows: 

# Vendor Contract Amount 
1 VWR International, Inc. (Radnor, 

PA) 

E&I Cooperative 

Services 

$31,248.48 

2 VWR International, Inc. (Radnor, 

PA) 

Board Approved 

Vendor 

$25,744.42 

 
C. Non – Instructional Item 

4) LED Lamps (Purchase): purchase LED lamps from Crawford Electric Supply 
(San Antonio, TX/Mission, TX), a Texas Association of School Boards – Buyboard 
approved vendor, at a total amount of $113,946.75; 

D. Technology Items 
5) Servers (Purchase): purchase servers from Dell Marketing, LP. (Dallas, TX), a 

State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) approved vendor, at a 
total amount of $111,374.38; 

6) Software Licenses and Maintenance Agreement (Renewal):  renew the 
software licenses and maintenance agreement with DLT Solutions, LLC. 
(Herndon, VA), a State of Texas Department of Information Resources (DIR) 
approved vendor, for the period beginning February 27, 2019 through February 
26, 2020, at a total amount of $81,124.96; 

E. Interlocal Agreement 
7) Facility Usage Interlocal Agreement (Lease/Rental): lease/rental facility usage 

interlocal agreement with Region One Education Service Center (ESC), for 
Friday, February 15, 2019, at an estimated amount of $5,390.00. 

 
Recommend Action - The total for all award of proposals, purchases, renewal, and 
interlocal agreement is $507,708.99. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the award of proposals, purchases, renewal, and interlocal agreement in the 
amount of $507,708.99 as presented. 
 
  

111



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 25, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

The Following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the award of proposals, purchases, 
renewal, and interlocal agreement in the amount of $507,708.99 as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President  

112



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 26, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Discussion and Action as Necessary on External Auditor Services 
Approval to renew the contract with Carr, Riggs & Ingram, LLC. (McAllen, TX) for the 
external auditor services for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019 is requested. 
 
Purpose – The external auditor services contract renewal is requested to perform the 
College’s annual financial audit and issue an opinion on the financial statements prepared 
by the College Business Office staff. The audited Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report (CAFR) must be submitted annually to the Texas Higher Education Coordinating 
Board by December 31st.  
 
Justification – The Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services and the 
Comptroller are requesting the contract renewal for external auditors to start the interim 
audit work related to the financial audit prior to fiscal year end.  
 
Background - The Board awarded the contract for the external auditor services at the 
April 24, 2017 Board of Trustees meeting for one year with four one-year annual renewals.  
The second renewal period will be for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019 for the audit 
of Fiscal Year 2018 - 2019. 
 

Award Board 
Meeting Date 

Original  
Term 

Renewal Term Audit Period 

Original 4/24/17 4/25/17- 12/31/17 4 – one year options 9/01/16 – 8/31/17 
1st Renewal 2/27/18  1/1/18 – 12/31/18 9/01/17 – 8/31/18 
2nd Renewal 1/29/2019  1/1/19 – 12/31/19 9/1/18 – 8/31/19 

 
The total amount paid in FY 2017 and FY 2018, was $108,000 and $132,000, 
respectively. 
  
Dr. Shirley A. Reed, President, and Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and 
Administrative Services, will attend the Board meeting to address any questions by the 
Trustees.  
 
Funding Source - Expenditures are budgeted in the Audit Services budget for FY 2018 - 
2019 budget and FY 2019 - 2020 pending Board approval of the budget.  
 
The Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee recommended Board approval to 
renew the contract with Carr, Riggs, & Ingram, LLC. for the external auditor services at a 
cost of approximately $140,000.00 for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019 as 
presented. 
  

113



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 27, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize renewal of the contract with Carr, Riggs, & Ingram, LLC. for the external auditor 
services at a cost of approximately $140,000.00 for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019 
as presented. 
 
The Following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees approves and authorizes renewal of the contract with Carr, Riggs, 
& Ingram, LLC. for the external auditor services at a cost of approximately $140,000.00 
for the fiscal year ending August 31, 2019 as presented. 
 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
  

114



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 28, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Review and Action as Necessary on Solicitation of Architectural 
Services for Deferred Maintenance for District Wide Roofs  

The Board is asked to approve the solicitation of architectural services for deferred 
maintenance for district wide roofs.  The approved architect would first be contracted to 
review the specified roofing projects and recommend recoating or reroofing as appropriate 
per location.  The architect would then serve as the architect of record for each roof within 
this project, as necessary. 
 
Background 
The proposed District Wide Deferred Maintenance for District Wide Roofs is part of the 
College’s Deferred Maintenance Plan for the proper maintenance of the College’s 
facilities. The buildings that will be part of this project were built or renovated between the 
years of 1998 and  2008. The roofs for these buildings are between ten (10) and twenty 
(20) years old and their current roof warranties are nearing their expiration periods. The 
buildings that are part of this project are listed below: 
 

Mid Valley Campus 
Building Letter Building Name Year of Roof 

Installation 
Building D Workforce Innovation Center 2004 
Building E Library 2004 
Building F Student Union (previously Student Services) 2004 
Building G North Academic 2004 

 
Nursing and Allied Health Campus 

Building Letter Building Name Year of Roof 
Installation 

Building A NAH East 2000 and 2004 
 

Starr County Campus 
Building Letter Building Name Year of Roof 

Installation 
Building A Admin Bookstore 1998 
Building B Center for Learning Excellence 1998 
Building C North Academic 1998 
Building D Workforce Innovation  2004 
Building E South Academic 2004 
Building F Cultural Arts 2004 
Building G Student Services 2004 
Building H Student Activity Center 2004 

115



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 29, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

At the December 4, 2018 Facilities Committee meeting, College staff recommended the 
process for procurement of services on providing a roof coating for the Deferred 
Maintenance of the District Wide roofs.  College staff proposed using the Master 
Intergovernmental Cooperative Purchasing Agreement (MICPA) with Cobb County, GA 
and U.S. Communities for procurement of these services. During the meeting, the 
Facilities Committee and legal counsel had additional questions regarding the 
procurement of the roof coating services which staff and legal counsel have since met to 
review and discuss.   
 
As a result from various discussions with U.S. Communities, Garland, College’s legal 
counsel, College administration, and staff from the departments of Purchasing, Facilities 
Operations & Maintenance, and Facilities Planning & Construction, College staff 
determined the need to solicit for the professional services of an architectural firm. The 
architect will provide a recommendation to move forward with one of the following options 
along with an estimate of the costs for each and will serve as the Architect of Record for 
the project. The possible options are as follows: 
 
Option 1 – Coating:  
Provides a coating material over the existing roofs to include a minimum 15-year 
manufacturer’s warranty. 
 
Option 2 – Reroofing:  
Provide reroofing of the existing roofs to include a minimum 15-year manufacturer’s 
warranty. 
 
On January 15, 2019, the Facilities Committee recommended Board approval to direct 
staff to move forward with the solicitation of an architect to evaluate the identified roofs 
and recommend maintenance options, and to further serve as the architect of record for 
the maintenance project, incorporating each roof as necessary.  
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees of South Texas College approve and 
authorize the solicitation of architectural services to evaluate and to serve as the architect 
of record for deferred maintenance of district wide roofs within this project, as presented. 
 
The Following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees approves and authorizes the solicitation of architectural services 
to evaluate and to serve as the architect of record for deferred maintenance of district 
wide roofs within this project, as presented. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 

116



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 30, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Update on Status of Non-Bond Construction Projects 
The Facilities Planning and Construction staff prepared the attached design and 
construction update. This update summarizes the status of each capital improvement 
project currently in progress. Mary Elizondo and Rick de la Garza will be present to 
respond to questions and address concerns of the committee. 
  

117



   
   

  

Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ma
na

ge
r

Ar
ch

ite
ct

/E
ng

in
ee

r
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

  Project Development

 Board approval of A/E

Contract Negotiations

 Concept Development

 Schematic Approval

 30%

 60%

 95%

 100%

 Solicit of Proposals

Approve Contractor

 Construction Start

 30%

 50%

 75%

 95% Substantial Comp

 100%

 Final Completion

15
-1

-R
03

 P
ec

an
 - 

Ar
bo

r B
ric

k C
olu

mn
s R

ep
air

 &
 R

ep
lac

em
en

t (
RR

) 
N/

A
Da

vid
16

-1
-0

14
 P

ec
an

 - 
Sa

nd
 V

oll
ey

ba
ll C

ou
rts

 
N/

A
Da

vid
Al

va
ra

do
 A

rch
ite

cts
16

-1
-xx

2
 P

ec
an

 - 
Lib

ra
ry 

(R
en

ov
ati

on
/E

xp
an

sio
n)

 
Ro

be
rt

 P
ec

an
 - 

Bu
ild

ing
 A

 R
en

ov
ati

on
 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Ro
be

rt
FP

C
M&

O
 P

ec
an

 - 
Bu

ild
ing

 M
 O

ffic
e a

nd
 W

or
k S

pa
ce

 R
en

ov
ati

on
 

N/
A

Ro
be

rt
BS

GA
 P

ec
an

 - 
At

hle
tic

 F
iel

d F
en

ce
 E

nc
los

ur
e 

N/
A

N/
A

Da
vid

FP
C/

Ch
an

iin
 E

ng
ine

er
ing

 P
ec

an
 - 

Bu
ild

ing
 D

 R
en

ov
ati

on
 

N/
A

Ro
be

rt
EG

V 
Ar

ch
ite

cts
 P

ec
an

 - 
Bu

ild
ing

 H
 C

afe
ter

ia 
Re

no
va

tio
ns

 
Ro

be
rt

EG
V 

Ar
ch

ite
cts

 P
ec

an
 - 

De
mo

liti
on

 of
 D

r. 
Ca

ss
o P

ro
pe

rty
 

Ma
rtin

PC
E

 P
ec

an
 - 

Bu
ild

ing
 X

 D
ata

 C
ab

lin
g I

nfr
as

tru
ctu

re
 R

ep
lac

em
en

t (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Rd

lG
IS

&P

15
-1

-0
03

 P
ec

an
 P

laz
a -

 E
me

rg
en

cy
 G

en
er

ato
r a

nd
 W

irin
g 

N/
A

Sa
m

DB
R 

En
gin

ee
rin

g
Mc

Do
na

ld 
Mu

nic
ipa

l a
nd

 
Ind

us
tria

l
18

-1
-0

08
 P

ec
an

 P
laz

a -
 B

uil
din

g C
 26

01
 T

es
t S

ite
 R

en
ov

ati
on

s 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ro

be
rt

M&
O

16
-2

-R
06

 M
V 

- B
uil

din
g B

 C
ar

pe
t R

ep
lac

em
en

t (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Sa

m
FP

C
Di

az
 F

loo
rin

g
16

-2
-R

08
 M

V 
- C

hil
dc

ar
e C

an
op

y R
ep

lac
em

en
t (

RR
) 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Sa
m

FP
C

Tr
i-G

en
16

-2
-(0

05
) R

09
 M

V 
- R

es
ur

fac
ing

 P
ar

kin
g L

ot 
#3

 (R
R)

 
Sa

m
PC

E
 M

V 
- T

he
rm

al 
Pl

an
t R

en
ov

ati
on

 
Sa

m
RO

FA
 M

V 
- R

es
ur

fac
ing

 N
or

thw
es

t D
riv

e (
RR

) 
Sa

m
PC

E
 M

V 
- C

ov
er

ed
 W

alk
wa

y f
or

 B
us

 D
ro

p O
ff (

RR
) 

Sa
m

FP
C

Tr
i-G

en
 M

V 
- S

tud
en

t S
er

vic
es

 R
en

ov
ati

on
 

Sa
m

RO
FA

 M
V 

- R
oo

fin
g R

ep
lac

em
en

t (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ma

rtin
M&

O

15
-3

-R
03

 T
C 

- B
uil

din
g B

 R
ep

air
 C

on
cre

te 
Flo

or
 M

ec
ha

nic
al 

Ro
om

 (R
R)

 
N/

A
N/

A
Da

vid
CL

H 
En

gin
ee

rin
g 

5 S
tar

 C
on

str
uc

tio
n

15
-3

-R
03

 T
C 

- B
uil

din
g B

 C
on

cre
te 

Flo
or

 R
ep

air
s (

RR
) 

N/
A

N/
A

Da
vid

CL
H 

En
gin

ee
rin

g 
5 S

tar
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n
16

-2
-R

13
 T

C 
- B

uil
din

g B
 D

om
es

tic
/F

ire
 S

pr
ink

ler
 Li

ne
s (

RR
) 

N/
A

Sa
m

Ha
lff 

As
so

cia
tes

G&
G 

Co
ntr

ac
tor

s
 T

C 
- S

hip
pin

g a
nd

 R
ec

eiv
ing

 B
uil

din
g D

 O
ffic

e R
en

ov
ati

on
 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Ro
be

rt
FP

C
M&

O

15
-4

-R
02

 N
AH

 - 
W

es
t S

ide
 W

ind
ow

 W
ate

rp
ro

ofi
ng

 (R
R)

 
Rd

lG
M&

O
16

-xx
x

 N
AH

 - 
Re

su
rfa

ce
 P

ar
kin

g L
ot 

#1
 (R

R)
 

Da
vid

R.
 G

uti
er

re
z E

ng
ine

er
ing

 N
AH

 - 
St

ud
en

t S
uc

ce
ss

 C
en

ter
 R

en
ov

ati
on

 
N/

A
Sa

m
BS

GA
 N

AH
 - 

St
ud

en
t S

er
vic

es
 R

en
ov

ati
on

 
Sa

m
 N

AH
 - 

W
es

t E
ntr

y C
am

pu
s S

ign
 

N/
A

N/
A

Da
vid

 N
AH

 - 
Ro

ofi
ng

 R
ep

lac
em

en
t (

RR
) 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Ma
rtin

M&
O

15
-5

-xx
5

 S
tar

r -
 B

uil
din

g E
 &

 J 
Cr

isi
s M

gt 
Ce

nte
r G

en
er

ato
r 

N/
A

Sa
m

DB
R 

En
gin

ee
rin

g
Mc

Do
na

ld 
Mu

nic
ipa

l a
nd

 
Ind

us
tria

l
 S

tar
r -

 S
tud

en
t S

er
vic

es
 R

en
ov

ati
on

 
Da

vid
 S

tar
r -

 R
oo

fin
g R

ep
lac

em
en

t (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ma

rtin
M&

O

Pe
ca

n 
C

am
pu

s

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

pu
s

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 C

am
pu

s

N
ur

si
ng

 a
nd

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lth

 C
am

pu
s

St
ar

r C
ou

nt
y 

C
am

pu
s

Pe
ca

n 
Pl

az
a

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

 P
RO

JE
CT

S 
PR

OG
RE

SS
 R

EP
OR

T 
- J

an
ua

ry
 9,

 20
19

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ev
elo

pm
en

t
De

sig
n 

Ph
as

e
So

lic
ita

tio
n 

of
 

Pr
op

os
als

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

Ph
as

e

PR
O

JE
C

T 
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

Project number

118



Pr
oj

ec
t 

Ma
na

ge
r

Ar
ch

ite
ct

/E
ng

in
ee

r
Co

nt
ra

ct
or

  Project Development

 Board approval of A/E

Contract Negotiations

 Concept Development

 Schematic Approval

 30%

 60%

 95%

 100%

 Solicit of Proposals

Approve Contractor

 Construction Start

 30%

 50%

 75%

 95% Substantial Comp

 100%

 Final Completion

CO
NS

TR
UC

TI
ON

 P
RO

JE
CT

S 
PR

OG
RE

SS
 R

EP
OR

T 
- J

an
ua

ry
 9,

 20
19

Pr
oj

ec
t D

ev
elo

pm
en

t
De

sig
n 

Ph
as

e
So

lic
ita

tio
n 

of
 

Pr
op

os
als

Co
ns

tru
ct

io
n 

Ph
as

e

PR
O

JE
C

T 
D

ES
C

R
IP

TI
O

N

Project number

 R
CP

SE
 - 

RC
PS

E 
Bu

ild
ing

 (P
SJ

A 
IS

D)
 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Rd
lG

N/
A-

Re
ce

ivi
ng

 fu
nd

s f
ro

m 
PS

JA
 on

ly
 R

CP
SE

 - 
Ta

rg
et 

Ra
ng

e 
Ro

be
rt

 R
CP

SE
 - 

Si
gn

ag
e 

Ro
be

rt
FP

C
Mo

nu
me

nt 
Si

gn
s

 R
CP

SE
 - 

Ch
ille

r R
elo

ca
tio

n 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ro

be
rt

M&
O

 E
xte

rio
r B

uil
din

g a
nd

 W
ay

fin
din

g S
ign

ag
e 

N/
A

N/
A

Da
vid

FP
C

15
-6

-0
01

 D
W

 - 
Ou

tdo
or

 F
ur

nit
ur

e 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Sa

m
N/

A
NM

 C
on

tra
cti

ng
, L

LC
.

15
-6

-0
02

 D
W

 - 
Di

re
cti

on
al 

Si
gn

ag
e 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Da
vid

N/
A

Inn
er

fac
e

13
-6

-0
03

 D
W

 - 
Au

tom
ati

c D
oo

rs 
Ph

as
e I

II 
N/

A
N/

A
Ro

be
rt

Et
ho

s E
ng

ine
er

ing
5 S

tar
 C

on
str

uc
tio

n
 D

W
 - 

Bu
s D

ro
p O

ff A
re

as
 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

14
-6

-R
01

4
 D

W
 - 

Ma
rke

r B
oa

rd
s R

ep
lac

em
en

t (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Sa

m
N/

A
TB

D
 D

W
 - 

Int
er

ior
 LE

D 
Lig

hti
ng

 P
h I

 (R
R)

 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ri

ck
M&

O
TB

D
 D

W
 - 

Flo
or

ing
 R

ep
lac

em
en

t (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ri

ck
N/

A
 D

W
 - 

Re
str

oo
m 

Fix
tur

es
 R

ep
lac

em
en

t &
 U

pg
ra

de
 (R

R)
 

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

N/
A

Ri
ck

M&
O

TB
D

 D
W

 - 
W

ate
r H

ea
ter

 R
ep

lac
em

en
t &

 U
pg

ra
de

 (R
R)

 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ri

ck
M&

O
TB

D
 D

W
 - 

HV
AC

 U
pg

ra
de

s (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ri

ck
M&

O
TB

D
 D

W
 - 

Ex
ter

ior
 Li

gh
tin

g U
pg

ra
de

 (R
R)

 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Ri

ck
M&

O
TB

D
 D

W
 - 

Ba
sk

etb
all

 C
ou

rt 
Re

pa
irin

g (
RR

) 
N/

A
N/

A
N/

A
Fo

r F
Y 

20
18

-1
9, 

45
 n

on
-b

on
d 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 ar
e c

ur
re

nt
ly 

in
 p

ro
gr

es
s, 

5 p
ro

jec
t(s

) c
om

pl
et

ed
 an

d 
29

 p
en

di
ng

 st
ar

t u
p 

 - 
79

 T
ot

al

D
is

tr
ic

t W
id

e 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts

R
eg

io
na

l C
en

te
r f

or
 P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y 

Ex
ce

lle
nc

e

H
ig

he
r E

du
ca

tio
n 

C
en

te
r L

a 
Jo

ya

K
:\A

G
E

N
D

A
S

\F
A

C
IL

IT
IE

S
 C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E

\2
01

9\
01

 J
an

ua
ry

 2
01

9\
00

6A
 F

Y
 2

01
8-

20
19

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ro
je

ct
s 

P
ro

gr
es

s 
C

ha
rt 

1-
9-

20
19

P
ag

e 
2

119



Pr
oj

ec
t

%
 C

om
pl

et
e

D
at
e 
to
 

Co
m
pl
et
e

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ct

iv
ity

O
rig

in
al

 
B

ud
ge

t
C

on
tr

ac
t 

A
m

ou
nt

C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 
B

ud
ge

t
A

m
ou

nt
 P

ai
d

C
on

tr
ac

t 
B

al
an

ce

A
rb

or
 B

ric
k 

C
ol

um
ns

 
R

ep
ai

r a
nd

 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t

5%
A

pr
il 

20
19

1.
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2.
 C

on
tra

ct
 N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
   

   
   

   
   

 
 $

   
   

  2
0,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 T
B

D
 

Sa
nd

 V
ol

le
yb

al
l 

C
ou

rt
s

5%
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

19
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
 

 $
   

   
  5

0,
00

0.
00

 
$9

5,
53

2 
$4

5,
53

2 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 T

B
D

 
Li

br
ar

y
10

%
M

ar
ch

 2
01

9
1.

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
2.

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s
 $

   
   

49
5,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 T
B

D
 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
A

 
R

en
ov

at
io

n
10

0%
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
18

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

C
om

pl
et

e
 $

   
   

  5
5,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
   

 4
,3

51
.0

0 
 $

   
   

  2
5,

64
9.

00
 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
M

 O
ffi

ce
 a

nd
 

W
or

k 
Sp

ac
e 

R
en

ov
at

io
n

5%
A

pr
il 

 2
01

9
1.

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
2.

 D
es

ig
n 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 $
   

   
  3

2,
40

0.
00

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  $
   

   
  3

2,
40

0.
00

 
A

th
le

tic
 F

ie
ld

 F
en

ce
 

En
cl

os
ur

e
95

%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 B
id

di
ng

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$ 

   
  1

06
,5

00
.0

0 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  $
   

   
10

6,
50

0.
00

 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

D
 

R
en

ov
at

io
ns

95
%

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 D

es
ig

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s
 $

   
   

  1
8,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 1

7,
55

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
 1

8,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
 3

,5
10

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  1

4,
04

0.
00

 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

H
 

R
en

ov
at

io
ns

15
%

A
pr

il 
20

19
1.

 D
es

ig
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 D
es

ig
n 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s

 $
   

   
  6

0,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

 5
5,

50
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

 6
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

 2
,4

97
.0

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 

D
em

ol
iti

on
 o

f D
r. 

C
as

so
 P

ro
pe

rt
y

5%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 D

es
ig

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s
 $

   
   

  6
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
  

$ 
   

   
 6

0,
00

0.
00

 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

X 
D

at
a 

C
ab

lin
g 

In
fr

as
tr

uc
tu

re
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t
5%

M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 D

es
ig

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
83

6,
90

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

16
8,

58
2.

00
 

 $
   

   
  1

23
,5

32
.0

0 
 $

   
   

  1
0,

35
8.

00
 

 $
   

   
17

8,
58

9.
00

 

St
at

us
 o

f N
on

-B
on

d 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
ts

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

Pe
ca

n 
C

am
pu

s

Pe
ca

n 
C

am
pu

s 
To

ta
l

1 
of
 6

120



Pr
oj

ec
t

%
 C

om
pl

et
e

D
at
e 
to
 

Co
m
pl
et
e

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ct

iv
ity

O
rig

in
al

 
B

ud
ge

t
C

on
tr

ac
t 

A
m

ou
nt

C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 
B

ud
ge

t
A

m
ou

nt
 P

ai
d

C
on

tr
ac

t 
B

al
an

ce

Pe
ca

n 
Pl

az
a 

Po
lic

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

G
en

er
at

or
95

%
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

19
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s

 $
   

   
40

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

  
$ 

   
   

 2
13

,3
24

.0
0 

 $
   

   
17

7,
34

2.
20

 
 $

   
   

   
 9

,3
33

.8
0 

B
ui

ld
in

g 
C

 2
60

1 
Te

st
 

Si
te

 R
en

ov
at

io
n

10
0%

N
ov

em
be

r 
20

18
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pl

et
e

 $
   

   
10

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

  4
5,

66
1.

36
 

 $
   

   
  5

4,
33

8.
64

 
 $

   
   

50
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
  $

   
   

  2
13

,3
24

.0
0 

 $
   

   
22

3,
00

3.
56

 
 $

   
   

  6
3,

67
2.

44
 

C
hi

ld
ca

re
 C

an
op

y 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t (

R
R

)
50

%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

  
 $

   
   

  6
0,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 4

4,
74

6.
37

 
 $

   
   

   
 6

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 $

 
C

ov
er

ed
 W

al
kw

ay
 fo

r 
B

us
 D

ro
p 

O
ff

95
%

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

  
 $

   
   

  7
5,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 4

5,
35

7.
77

 
 $

   
   

   
 7

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

  4
0,

22
0.

34
  

$ 
   

   
   

5,
13

7.
43

 
R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 P

ar
ki

ng
 

Lo
t #

3 
(R

R
)

5%
M

ar
ch

 2
01

9
1.

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
2.

 C
on

tra
ct

 N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

   
   

   
   

   
 

 $
   

   
   

 5
,0

00
.0

0 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
Th

er
m

al
 P

la
nt

 
R

en
ov

at
io

n
5%

A
pr

il 
20

19
1.

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
2.

 C
on

tra
ct

 N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

   
   

   
   

   
 

 $
   

   
   

 8
,0

00
.0

0 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 

N
or

th
w

es
t D

riv
e 

(R
R

)
5%

M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

1.
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2.
 C

on
tra

ct
 N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
   

   
   

   
   

 
 $

   
   

   
 8

,0
00

.0
0 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

St
ud

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
en

ov
at

io
n

5%
A

pr
il 

20
19

1.
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2.
 C

on
tra

ct
 N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
   

   
   

   
   

 
 $

   
   

  2
0,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

R
oo

fin
g 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
(R

R
)

95
%

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

19
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
24

1,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

16
3,

97
6.

14
 

 $
   

   
  2

00
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

11
4,

09
2.

34
 

 $
   

   
   

 5
,1

37
.4

3 

Pe
ca

n 
Pl

az
a 

To
ta

l

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

pu
s 

To
ta

l

M
id

 V
al

le
y 

C
am

pu
s 

To
ta

l

Pe
ca

n 
Pl

az
a 

2 
of
 6

121



Pr
oj

ec
t

%
 C

om
pl

et
e

D
at
e 
to
 

Co
m
pl
et
e

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ct

iv
ity

O
rig

in
al

 
B

ud
ge

t
C

on
tr

ac
t 

A
m

ou
nt

C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 
B

ud
ge

t
A

m
ou

nt
 P

ai
d

C
on

tr
ac

t 
B

al
an

ce

R
ep

ai
r C

on
cr

et
e 

Fl
oo

r 
M

ec
ha

ni
ca

l R
oo

m
10

0%
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
18

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2 

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

 
 $

   
   

  3
0,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
   

9,
80

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
 3

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
 8

,8
44

.5
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
 9

55
.5

0 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

B
 C

on
cr

et
e 

Fl
oo

r R
ep

ai
rs

5%
A

pr
il 

20
19

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2 

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

 
 $

   
   

40
0,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

   
 6

4,
30

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

  4
00

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
B

ui
ld

in
g 

B
 

D
om

es
tic

/F
ire

 
Sp

rin
kl

er
 L

in
es

95
%

Fe
br

ua
ry

20
1

9
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s

 $
   

   
90

0,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
  6

38
,9

35
.0

0 
 $

   
   

  6
00

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
55

0,
59

8.
90

 
 $

   
   

  8
8,

33
6.

10
 

Sh
ip

pi
ng

 a
nd

 
R

ec
ei

vi
ng

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
D

 
O

ffi
ce

 R
en

ov
at

io
n

5%
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

19
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

1,
37

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

72
6,

22
8.

13
 

 $
   

  1
,0

51
,8

06
.8

7 
 $

   
   

57
2,

63
6.

53
 

 $
   

   
  8

9,
29

1.
60

 

St
ud

en
t S

uc
ce

ss
 

C
en

te
r R

en
ov

at
io

n
50

%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 D

es
ig

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s
 $

   
   

  1
1,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
  1

1,
13

6.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

7,
50

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 T

B
D

 
R

es
ur

fa
ce

 P
ar

ki
ng

 
Lo

t #
1

10
%

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

1.
 D

es
ig

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 C

on
tra

ct
 N

eg
ot

ia
tio

ns
 $

   
   

  2
5,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

St
ud

en
t S

er
vi

ce
s 

R
en

ov
at

io
n

5%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2.
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
W

es
t E

nt
ry

 C
am

pu
s 

Si
gn

5%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2.
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
R

oo
fin

g 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t 

(R
R

)
95

%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 B
id

di
ng

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$ 

   
  2

50
,0

00
.0

0 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 

 $
   

   
28

6,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

  1
1,

13
6.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
7,

50
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 

N
ur

si
ng

 a
nd

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lth

 C
am

pu
s

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 C

am
pu

s 
To

ta
l

N
ur

si
ng

 a
nd

 A
lli

ed
 H

ea
lth

 C
am

pu
s 

To
ta

l

Te
ch

no
lo

gy
 C

am
pu

s

3 
of
 6

122



Pr
oj

ec
t

%
 C

om
pl

et
e

D
at
e 
to
 

Co
m
pl
et
e

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ct

iv
ity

O
rig

in
al

 
B

ud
ge

t
C

on
tr

ac
t 

A
m

ou
nt

C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 
B

ud
ge

t
A

m
ou

nt
 P

ai
d

C
on

tr
ac

t 
B

al
an

ce

B
ld

g 
E 

&
 J

 C
ris

is
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

en
te

r 
w

ith
 G

en
er

at
or

95
%

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s
 $

   
   

40
0,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

  2
85

,4
93

.0
0 

 $
   

   
  1

42
,2

07
.0

0 
 $

   
   

27
1,

21
8.

35
 

 $
   

   
  1

4,
27

4.
65

 
St

ud
en

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
R

en
ov

at
io

n
5%

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

19
1.

 P
ro

je
ct

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
2.

 P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

R
oo

fin
g 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
(R

R
)

95
%

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

18
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
45

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

33
2,

14
3.

00
 

 $
   

   
  1

45
,5

57
.0

0 
 $

   
   

29
4,

01
8.

35
 

 $
   

   
  3

8,
12

4.
65

 

Ta
rg

et
 R

an
ge

5%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 P

ro
je

ct
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

2.
 P

ro
gr

am
m

in
g 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
Si

gn
ag

e
10

0%
S

ep
te

m
be

r 
20

18
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
C

om
pl

et
e

 $
   

   
  7

2,
28

0.
00

 
C

hi
lle

r R
el

oc
at

io
n

5%
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
19

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 B
id

di
ng

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

  7
2,

28
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 

St
ar

r C
ou

nt
y 

C
am

pu
s

R
eg

io
na

l C
en

te
r f

or
 P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y 

Ex
ce

lle
nc

e

R
C

PS
E 

To
ta

l

St
ar

r C
ou

nt
y 

C
am

pu
s 

To
ta

l

4 
of
 6

123



Pr
oj

ec
t

%
 C

om
pl

et
e

D
at
e 
to
 

Co
m
pl
et
e

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ct

iv
ity

O
rig

in
al

 
B

ud
ge

t
C

on
tr

ac
t 

A
m

ou
nt

C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 
B

ud
ge

t
A

m
ou

nt
 P

ai
d

C
on

tr
ac

t 
B

al
an

ce

A
ut

om
at

ic
 D

oo
rs

 
Ph

as
e 

III
5%

A
ug

us
t 2

01
8

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

 
 $

   
   

  6
5,

00
0.

00
  

$ 
   

  1
28

,0
00

.0
0 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
  $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
M

ar
ke

r B
oa

rd
s 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
R

R
)

85
%

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

19
1.

 P
ro

je
ct

  D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
2.

 D
es

ig
n 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 $

   
   

20
0,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

- 
Irr

ig
at

io
n 

Sy
st

em
 

C
on

tr
ol

s 
U

pg
ra

de
 

(R
R

)
5%

A
ug

us
t 2

01
9

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 B
id

di
ng

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
   

   
  7

0,
00

0.
00

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 T

B
D

 
Fi

re
 A

la
rm

 P
an

el
 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t /
 

U
pg

ra
de

s 
(R

R
)

5%
A

ug
us

t 2
01

9
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  $

   
   

18
0,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 T
B

D
 

O
ut

do
or

 F
ur

ni
tu

re
 

75
%

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

19
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
 

 $
   

   
25

0,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  -

   
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

D
ire

ct
io

na
l S

ig
na

ge
 

U
pd

at
es

95
%

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

19
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
 2

5,
00

0.
00

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 T

B
D

 
W

al
kw

ay
 L

ED
 

Li
gh

tin
g 

U
pg

ra
de

5%
A

ug
us

t 2
01

9
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  $

   
   

  3
5,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
  1

0,
68

7.
50

 
 T

B
D

 
FO

C
U

S 
on

 A
ct

iv
e 

Le
ar

ni
ng

 (R
R

)
5%

M
ar

ch
 2

01
9

1.
 P

ro
je

ct
  D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

2.
 D

es
ig

n 
in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 $
   

   
  3

0,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

   
   

67
6.

90
 

 $
   

   
   

 2
9,

32
3.

10
 

 $
   

   
   

   
 6

76
.9

0 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

In
te

rio
r C

on
tr

ol
s 

U
pg

ra
de

 (R
R

)
5%

A
ug

us
t 2

01
9

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 B
id

di
ng

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$ 

   
   

 7
5,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 T
B

D
 

Fl
oo

rin
g 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t 
Ph

as
e 

I (
R

R
)

5%
A

ug
us

t 2
01

9
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  $

   
   

50
0,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
  2

4,
18

6.
92

 
 T

B
D

 
R

es
tr

oo
m

 F
ix

tu
re

s 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t &

 
U

pg
ra

de
5%

A
ug

us
t 2

01
9

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 B
id

di
ng

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
   

   
  2

5,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

   
4,

04
7.

68
 

 $
   

   
   

 2
0,

95
2.

32
 

 $
   

   
   

 4
,0

47
.6

8 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
- 

W
at

er
 H

ea
te

r 
R

ep
la

ce
m

en
t &

 
U

pg
ra

de
5%

A
ug

us
t 2

01
9

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 B
id

di
ng

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  $
   

   
  2

0,
00

0.
00

  
$ 

   
   

 1
3,

37
2.

47
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  -
   

 $
   

   
   

 3
,5

32
.6

3 
 $

   
   

  1
3,

37
2.

47
 

D
is

tr
ic

t W
id

e

5 
of
 6

124



Pr
oj

ec
t

%
 C

om
pl

et
e

D
at
e 
to
 

Co
m
pl
et
e

C
ur

re
nt

 A
ct

iv
ity

O
rig

in
al

 
B

ud
ge

t
C

on
tr

ac
t 

A
m

ou
nt

C
om

pa
ris

on
 to

 
B

ud
ge

t
A

m
ou

nt
 P

ai
d

C
on

tr
ac

t 
B

al
an

ce
D

oo
r A

cc
es

s 
C

on
tr

ol
s 

R
ep

la
ce

m
en

t (
R

R
)

5%
A

ug
us

t 2
01

9
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  $

   
   

  3
0,

00
0.

00
 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 T
B

D
 

H
VA

C
 U

pg
ra

de
s 

(R
R

)
5%

A
ug

us
t 2

01
9

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 B
id

di
ng

 in
 P

ro
gr

es
s 

   
   

   
   

   
   

  
$ 

   
  1

00
,0

00
.0

0 
 $

   
   

  1
3,

37
2.

47
 

 $
   

   
   

 8
6,

62
7.

53
 

 $
   

   
  2

1,
46

4.
85

 
 $

   
   

   
(8

,0
92

.3
8)

W
at

er
 P

um
p 

St
at

io
ns

 
(R

R
)

5%
A

ug
us

t 2
01

9
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$ 
   

   
 2

5,
00

0.
00

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 $

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
-  

 
 T

B
D

 
Ex

te
rio

r L
ig

ht
in

g 
U

pg
ra

de
 (R

R
)

5%
A

ug
us

t 2
01

9
1.

 C
on

st
ru

ct
io

n 
P

ha
se

2.
 B

id
di

ng
 in

 P
ro

gr
es

s 
   

   
   

   
   

   
  

$ 
   

  2
50

,0
00

.0
0 

 T
B

D
 

 T
B

D
 

 $
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

-  
 

 T
B

D
 

B
as

ke
tb

al
l C

ou
rt

 
R

ep
ai

rin
g 

(R
R

)
5%

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
19

1.
 C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

P
ha

se
2.

 C
on

tra
ct

 N
eg

ot
ia

tio
ns

   
   

   
   

   
 

 $
   

   
  5

5,
00

0.
00

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 
 T

B
D

 

 $
   

1,
93

5,
00

0.
00

 
 $

   
   

19
0,

81
1.

40
 

 $
   

   
  1

05
,5

61
.0

7 
 $

   
   

  6
4,

59
6.

48
 

 $
   

   
  3

6,
62

1.
97

 
 $

   
4,

78
7,

00
0.

00
 

 $
   

1,
42

4,
29

4.
67

 
 $

   
  1

,7
23

,7
48

.9
4 

 $
   

1,
34

0,
62

7.
26

 
 $

   
   

23
2,

84
8.

09
 

D
is

tr
ic

t W
id

e 
To

ta
l

N
on

-B
on

d 
C

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Pr
oj

ec
t T

ot
al

  

Fo
r F

Y 
20

18
 - 

20
19

, 2
7 

no
n-

bo
nd

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
ar

e 
cu

rr
en

tly
 in

 p
ro

gr
es

s,
 0

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 5
2 

pe
nd

in
g 

st
ar

t u
p 

- 7
9 

To
ta

l

6 
of
 6

125



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 31, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
Board action is requested to approve the checks for release and the financial reports for 
the month of December 2018.  The approval is for checks submitted for release in the 
amount greater than $125,000.00 and checks in the amount greater than $25,000.00 that 
were released as authorized by Board Policy No. 5610. 
 
These checks and financial reports were scheduled for presentation to the Board on 
December 27, 2018, but that meeting was cancelled due to scheduling conflicts. 
 
Mrs. Mary Elizondo, Vice President for Finance and Administrative Services, will provide 
a review of the Financial Report for the month of December 2018, and will respond to 
questions posed by the Board. 
 
The checks and the financial reports submitted for approval are included in the Board 
packet under separate cover. 
 
Recommendation: 
It is recommended that the Board of Trustees approve and authorize the submitted 
checks for release in an amount over $125,000.00, the checks that were released as 
authorized by Board Policy #5610, and the financial reports submitted for the month of 
December 2018. 
 
The following Minute Order is proposed for consideration by the Board of Trustees: 
The Board of Trustees of South Texas College approves and authorizes the submitted 
checks for release in an amount over $125,000.00, the checks that were released as 
authorized by Board Policy #5610, and the financial reports submitted for the month of 
December 2018. 
 
Approval Recommended: 
 
 
Shirley A. Reed, M.B.A., Ed.D. 
President 
  

126



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 32, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports 
The Checks and the Financial Reports presented for approval are included in the Board 
Packet under SEPARATE COVER: 
 

A. Release of Checks for $25,000.00 to less than $125,000.00 Released Prior to 
Board Approval for December 2018 

B. Release of Checks for $125,000.00 and Above Board of Trustees Approval 
Required for December 2018 

C. Release of Checks for $125,000.00 and Above Released Prior to Board Approval 
(Policy 5610) for December 2018 

D. Release of Construction Fund Checks for December 2018 
E. Quarterly Investment Report for December 2018 
F. Summary of Revenue for December 2018 
G. Summary of State Appropriations Income for December 2018 
H. Summary of Property Tax Income for December 2018 
I. Summary of Expenditures by Classification for December 2018 
J. Summary of Expenditures by Function for December 2018 
K. Summary of Auxiliary Fund Revenues and Expenditures for December 2018 
L. Summary of Grant Revenues and Expenditures, December 2018 
M. Summary of Bid Solicitations 
N. Check Register for December 2018 

  

127



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 33, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

 
 
 
 
 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 

The Financial Reports are provided under separate cover.  

128



 
 
 

 

President’s Report 
December 13, 2018 – January 28, 2019 

 

 The Spring 2019 Semester is officially 
underway. Classes began on Tuesday, January 
22nd with over 33,000 students enrolled. The 
Office of Admissions and Records offered 
extended hours throughout December and 
January to assist students with registration 
and other student services.  

 

STC RCPSE President’s Advisory Committee met on 
December 13th, 2018 to develop a functioning action plan 
and select goals for 2019 for the Regional Center for Public 
Safety Excellence. The committee meeting was organized to 
identify strategies that will be used in the development of 
the college’s 2020 RCPSE implementation plan. 

 

 

South Texas College closed all campuses for 
Winter Break from December 17th through 
January 1st.  

In observance of Martin Luther King day, all 
South Texas College Campuses were closed on 
Monday, January 21st.  

 

 

South Texas Health System through McAllen Medical 
Center Foundation donated a check in the amount of 
$49,000 to South Texas College’s Nursing and Allied 
Health Division. A check presentation was hosted at 
the Nursing and Allied Health Campus on Thursday, 
Jan. 10. The $49,000 scholarship will provide 
opportunities for students to help reduce their 
financial burden and provide assistance upon 
continuing their education. 

 

 

 

129



 
 
 

 

President’s Report 
December 13, 2018 – January 28, 2019 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
The Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) awarded South Texas College three grants totaling more than $1.3 million 

on Friday Jan. 11. The three grants included a Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) grant totaling $249,096, a Skills 

Development Fund (SDF) Manufacturing grant of $409,890, and a Skills Development Fund (SDF) Healthcare grant 

of $655,153. $315,679 of the Healthcare grant will be for STC to provide job-training opportunities and the 

remaining portion will go to grant partners for training in their areas of the state. Grant partners involved in the SDF 

Healthcare grant include United Health Systems and two colleges, Southwest Texas Junior College and Laredo 

College. The SDF Manufacturing grant business partners are Wood Crafters Home Products and TST NA Trim, LLC. 

The Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) Grant will benefit South Texas College students by providing equipment for 

the Computer Information Technology Program. 

Special guest speakers in attendance at the grant included state Sen. Juan “Chuy” Hinojosa, D-McAllen; Ruth Hughs, 

chair of Texas Workforce Commission; Irma Vento, Human Resources manager at Woodcrafters Home Products; 

and Teresa Johnson, education department at South Texas Health Systems. 

 

In honor of School Board Appreciation Month, South Texas College 
hosted its 5th annual Board Appreciation Breakfast Friday, Jan. 18. 
The event was organized as a ‘thank you’ to South Texas College’s 
many school district partners in education across Hidalgo and Starr 
counties.  

At the event, STC’s Board of Trustees gathered with 
superintendents and board members from local school 
districts as well as educational partners and were lauded 
for their leadership, hard work, and dedication. Districts 
in attendance at the event included leadership from 
McAllen ISD, Hidalgo ISD, Edinburg CISD, La Joya ISD, 
Vanguard Academy, Mercedes ISD, Edcouch-Elsa ISD, 
South Texas ISD, Pharr Oratory, as well as Region One. 

 

 

 
130



 
 
 

 

President’s Report 
December 13, 2018 – January 28, 2019 

 

South Texas College and the University of Texas Rio 

Grande Valley held a collaborative leadership meeting for 

the first time in three years on January 11. 

The leadership meeting was organized and led by vice 

presidents for academic affairs for STC and UTRGV, who 

brought together the leadership teams of both institutions 

with a specific goal of focusing the attention on the 

student transfer process between the two institutions. 

A priority of the meeting was making administrators aware of changes in the leadership teams between 

the two institutions. Attendees then entered into guided group discussions regarding “synergistic 

opportunities”, examining successful existing systems between the two institutions, and discussing future 

opportunities to collaborate. 

Among the most pressing issues, according to administrators, is ensuring that barriers for students 

transferring between the institutions are addressed to make the process as seamless as possible. 

 
 

The Information Security Office invited all 

Faculty and Staff to register and 

participate in a Data Privacy Day online 

event. Data Privacy Day is an 

international event held annually on 

January 28th to promote awareness 

about data privacy and security. The 

focus of this year’s Data Privacy Day is on 

the value of information and on being #privacyaware.  This event aligned with the College’s current 

information security awareness campaign: Email Security Prevents Unauthorized Data Disclosure. 

 

 

Every year, the STC Art Department presents a Faculty Exhibition, 

where full-time faculty, adjunct, and dual-credit art instructors display 

their works for students and the community to view. This year, the 

exhibition will run from Jan 22-Feb 14, 2019 at the South Texas College 

Art Dept. Gallery Building B-103. 

 

 

 

 131



 
 
 

 

President’s Report 
December 13, 2018 – January 28, 2019 

 

The South Texas College Distance Learning Department 

presented Blackboard Fundamentals course for Faculty. The 

purpose of this course was to allow for compliance for 

Campus Continuity in case of a Natural Disaster, as well as 

introduce Blackboard to persons new to the online 

environment. This course covered basic blackboard 

functions, such as Uploading Files (syllabi), Creating 

Discussions, and Creating Basic Quizzes. 
 

 

 Joined Wanda Garza, Executive Officer for External Affairs, in a meeting with Kim Vickers, Executive Director for 
the Texas Commission on Law Enforcement (TCOLE), to discuss the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence 
and upcoming President’s Advisory Council meeting. 

 Participated in an Executive Leadership Meeting at Region One to discuss continued participation in the dual 
credit nursing program and Project Heal Grant.  

 Attended the Regional Center for Public Safety Excellence President’s Advisory Council on December 13, 2018. 
The Council was created to provide regular input and recommendations for professional continuing education 
and degree programs and serves as the principal means to develop advanced training programs at the RCPSE, 
and to ensure that those programs remain current despite changing conditions 

 Met with Juan Carlos Aguirre, Dean of Continuing, Professional & Workforce Education, to discuss proposed 
restructuring of Continuing Education and the job description for the new Dean.  

 Attended the Farewell ceremony for Juan Carlos Aguirre, Dean of Continuing, Professional & Workforce 
Education, who has retired from South Texas College after seventeen years. He was presented with the 
President’s Outstanding Service Award in appreciation of his dedication and commitment. 

 Met with Dr. Fernando Chapa, Dean of Institutional Research, Effectiveness & Strategic Planning, and Dr. David 
Plummer, VP for Information Services, Planning & Strategic Initiatives, to review the proposal to the Texas 
Higher Education Coordinating Board for authority to offer a new Bachelor’s Degree Program in Nursing. 

 Met with Ron Meijerink, CEO of the RGV Foodbank, and Michelle Zamora, President of the Board, to discuss 
our partnership and to seek their support for the new South Texas College food pantries at Mid Valley and Starr 
County campuses.  

 Met with Dr. Virginia Champion, Director of Grant Development, Management, & Compliance, Wanda Garza 
Executive Officer for External Affairs, Mary Elizondo, VP for Finance and Administrative Services, and Jesus 
Ramirez, Legal Counsel, regarding the Target Range Project. 

 Participated in a legislative call with the Texas Association of Community Colleges regarding the 86th Legislative 
Session priorities to review submitted legislation and proposed legislative strategies.   

 Provided opening remarks at the South Texas Health System (STHS) check presentation benefiting the Division 
of Nursing and Allied Health. The McAllen Medical Center Foundation through STHS donated $49,000 towards 
scholarships for nursing students.  

 

 

132



 
 
 

 

President’s Report 
December 13, 2018 – January 28, 2019 

 Met with Dr. David Plummer, VP for Information Services, Planning & Strategic Initiatives, regarding revisions 
to the job description for Dean of Distance Learning. 

 Attended the Lower Rio Regional Pathways meeting at Lone Star National Bank Corporate Office to discuss 
strategies for developing regional pathways for students to pursue careers in the Information Technology (IT) 
industry. 

 Joined UTRGV President Dr. Guy Bailey in offering welcoming remarks at the STC and UTRGV leadership meeting 
on January 11th. STC interim Vice President of Academic Affairs Dr. Anahid Petrosian and UTRGV Executive Vice 
President for Academic Affairs Dr. Patricia McHatton then gave an overview of each institution’s organizational 
structures. 

 Attended and provided remarks at the TWC check presentations on January 11. Three grant awards totaling 
more than $1.3 million were awarded to South Texas College and will support workforce training in cyber 
security, healthcare, and manufacturing industries. 

 Met with Lorenna Trevino, Continuing Education Operations Manager, and Olivia de la Rosa, Director of 
Professional and Workforce Education to review and discuss revisions to the job description for Dean of 
Continuing, Professional & Workforce Education. 

 Met with Educate Texas Managing Director, Chris Coxon and Search Consultant, Carlos Peña to review and 
provide input on the skill set and characteristics desired in the next RGV FOCUS Senior Director. 

 Participated in interview with STC student and Valley Scholar, Eduardo Salinas as part of the RGV Vision feature 
story in their January 2019 edition. 

 Participated in a conference call organized by McWilliams Governmental Affairs, to discuss the 86th Legislative 
Session. The call included Community College Coalition members throughout the state of Texas.  

 Attended the City of Pharr State of the City event on January 17th.  

 Provided opening remarks at STC’s annual Board appreciation breakfast. School district partners were invited 
to the event in recognition of current and future partnerships.  

 Participated in a video shoot as part of the City of McAllen State of the City: “The Magic of McAllen”. The event 
will include a video featuring the accomplishments and highlights of the college and our partnerships with the 
City of McAllen. 

 Met with Mario Reyna, Dean for Business, Public Safety, and Technology, Dr. Carlos Margo, Associate Dean of 
Industry & Economic Development, Celinda Eileen Palacios, Director of Career and Employer Services, and Olivia 
de la Rosa, Director of Professional and Workforce Education, to discuss workforce training opportunities for 
the Bert Ogden Group. 

 Participated in a conference call with Molly Young from TIP Strategies. COSTEP has hired TIP Strategies to 
conduct research on the organizational and programmatic landscape in the Rio South Texas Region related to 
economic development, workforce development, and education.  

 Served on the 2019 Lamar Award Honoree Selection Committee, and participated in the Mirabeau B. Lamar 
Award annual luncheon. Each year the three higher education associations (TACC, ICUT, and CPUPC) jointly 
sponsor an awards luncheon during which an outstanding individual or organization with demonstrated 
commitment to higher education is recognized.    

 Attended the signing ceremony of The General Cooperation Agreement with Universidad Tamaulipeca hosted 
by the Division of Business, Public Safety and Technology on Thursday, January 24. 

 

133



 
 
 

 

President’s Report 
December 13, 2018 – January 28, 2019 

 Participated in a conference call with Dr. Sandra Kurtinitis, President of Community College of Baltimore 
County, regarding student success initiatives.  

 Attended the RGV Legislative tour to present background information and the legislative request for $6.8 M in 
special appropriations funding from the state legislature. 

 Coordinated the agendas and back-up materials for the Facilities, Education and Workforce Development, and 
Finance and Human Resources Committees, as well as the January 15, 2019 Regular Board meeting.  

 Continue to meet with South Texas College’s President’s Cabinet to: 
o  facilitate administrative planning on a weekly basis;   
o  review and address issues of concern; 
o  formulate strategic direction and problem solving; and 
o  provide communication and feedback among the President and the Vice Presidents 

 Continue to meet with South Texas College’s President’s Administrative Staff.  The purpose of the President’s 
Administrative Staff is to communicate information to all administrative staff and to provide the opportunity 
for discussion on areas of concern regarding the leadership and strategic direction for the College.   

 Continue to meet with the College’s Vice Presidents, Administrators, Planning and Development Council, 
Coordinated Operations Council, and other Councils to address immediate concerns and issues facing the 
College.  Topics covered from December 13, 2018 to January 28, 2019  included:   

o Update on Spring 2019 Student Enrollment 
o Review and Discussion of Fall 2018 Clearinghouse Enrollment Report 
o Discussion on TACC Community College Research Fellow Nomination  
o Discussion on Nomination to Participate in Lumina Non-Degree Credentials Research Network 
o Discussion of Opportunity to Nominate for NISOD Excellence Award 
o Discussion of SACSCOC Updated Policy Regarding Combining Students Pursuing Dual Credit and those 

only Receiving High School Credit in some Courses 
o Discussion of SB251 by Senator Bettencourt Related to Courses Offered Jointly by Public Junior 

Colleges and Independent School Districts 
o Discussion of Participation in Transfer Convening in Kingsville on February 1st, 2019 
o Discussion of Agenda for Board Retreat  
o Discussion of Participation in Excelencia’s Data Institute  
o Review and Discussion of EMSI-RGV Information Technology / Computer Systems Employment and 

Projections 
o Review and Discussion of Traditional Enrollment Planning Assumptions: FY 2018-2019 Update 
o Update on Impact of Federal Government Closure 
o Update on Implementation of Guided Pathways 
o Review and Discussion of Opportunity for Input into the 2019-2025 Strategic Plan for Next Biennium  
o Update on Accreditation Activities 

 Dual Credit: National Association for Concurrent Enrollment Partnerships (NACEP)  

 Nursing: Accreditation Commission for Education in Nursing 

 Reaffirmation: SACSCOC 
o Review and Discussion of Legislative Funding Recommendations for Community Colleges 
o Review of College-Wide Professional and Organizational Development Day: Friday, February 15th  
o Review and Discussion of THECB Career Readiness Report 
o Review of Career and Employer Services: 2019 Declare Your Major Day 

 
 
 
 134



 
 
 

 

President’s Report 
December 13, 2018 – January 28, 2019 

o Discussion of Representative to Serve on City of Mission: City Council Workforce Readiness Committee  
o Continued Discussion of Dean for Enrollment Services Position 
o Discussion of Accommodations as a Result of Federal Government Shutdown 
o Discussion of Strategies to Strengthen Relationship with New Mission Economic Development 

Corporation CEO Daniel Silva  
o Review and Discussion of Coordinating Board Career Readiness Report 
o Final Review of: 

 Status Report: FY 2017-2018  

 Comprehensive Operational Plan: FY 2018-2019 to FY 2020-2021 
o Review and Discussion of Student Financial Aid Verification Process 
o Discussion of Opportunity for Faculty to Assist Students with Financial Aid Verification Process 
o Continued Discussion of Policy 4901: Standards of Conduct 
o Updates: 

 Student Affairs and Enrollment Management 

 Finance and Administrative Services 

 Academic Affairs 

 Information Services, Planning, Performance and Strategic Initiatives 
 

135



January 29, 2019 Regular Board Meeting 
Page 34, Revised 01/25/2019 @ 10:41 AM 

Announcements 
A. Next Meetings: 

• Tuesday, February 12, 2019 
 3:30 p.m. – Education and Workforce Development Committee Meeting 
 4:30 p.m. – Facilities Committee Meeting 
 5:30 p.m. – Finance, Audit, and Human Resources Committee Meeting 

 

• Saturday, February 16, 2019 

 8:00 a.m. – 12:00 p.m. – Work Session at the Pecan Campus Student Union 
 

• Tuesday, February 26, 2019 

 5:30 p.m. – Regular Board Meeting 
 

B. Other Announcements: 

• Spring 2019 Census Day is Wednesday, February 6 

• South Texas College will be closed Friday, February 15, 2019 for College Wide 
Professional Development Day 

 
 

136



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
The following documents 

were provided as 
handouts at the meeting. 


































	AGENDA
	Presentations
	Approval of Board Meeting Minutes
	Thursday, December 13, 2018
	Tuesday, January 15, 2019

	Approval and Authorization to Accept Grant Award(s)
	1. Texas Workforce Commission, Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) in the amount of $249,096
	2. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), Carl D. Perkins Basic Grant, Additional Funds (Reallocation) in the amount of $259,286
	3. Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB), 2018 College Readiness and Success Models for 60x30TX, Additional Funds in the amount of $175,088
	4. Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce Solutions, Child Development Associates Credential Program (CDA) in the amount of $40,575
	5. Lower Rio Grande Valley Workforce Development Board - Workforce Solutions, Childhood Conferences Participant Scholarship Funds in the amount of $10,000
	6. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant (TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in the amount of $67,733
	7. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant (TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation in the amount of $14,906
	8. The Texas Higher Education Foundation, Texas Affordable Baccalaureate Grant (TAB) with support from the Michael and Susan Dell Foundation, University of Texas Rio Grande Valley (UTRGV) Subaward in the amount of $40,065
	9. Additional Grant(s) Received/Pending Official Award

	Review and Discussion on Quarterly Investment Report
	QUARTERLY INVESTMENT REPORT

	Presentation of the Delinquent Tax Collection Report for the Period Ending November 30, 2018
	First Quarter Delinquent Tax Collection Report

	Review and Action as Necessary on Renewal of Delinquent Tax Collection Services for Hidalgo County and Starr County
	Summary of Cumulative Delinquent Tax Levy Collections by Fiscal Year
	Summary of Total Tax Levy Uncollected

	Review and Action as Necessary on Resolution to Impose a 15% Penalty for Collection of Delinquent Taxes as Authorized Under Section 33.07 of the Texas Property Tax Code for Delinquent Tax Attorney Fees and Expenses
	RESOLUTION

	Review and Action as Necessary on Renewal Agreement with Access Esperanza Clinic on Outpatient Clinic at the Mid Valley Campus
	AGREEMENT

	Review and Action as Necessary on Contract for Electric Power Services
	Review and Action as Necessary on Award of Proposals, Purchases, Renewal, and Interlocal Agreements
	Discussion and Action as Necessary on External Auditor Services
	Review and Action as Necessary on Solicitation of Architectural Services for Deferred Maintenance for District Wide Roofs
	Update on Status of Non-Bond Construction Projects
	Consideration and Approval of Checks and Financial Reports
	President’s Report
	Announcements

	Return to Agenda: 


